Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact: Michael Cunliffe

Direct Line: 0161 253 5399

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk

Website: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : G McGill (Chair), C Boles, D Duncalfe,
U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, D Quinn,
G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 215t October 2025
Place: Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall
Time: 7.00 pm
Briefing If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require
o briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related
report should be contacted.




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether they
have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to formally declare
that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 2ND SEPTEMBER 2025
(Pages 3 - 6)

The Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 2" September 2025 are attached.
PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 7 -184)
Reports attached.

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 185 - 204)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated planning
decisions since the last meeting of the planning control committee is attached.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 205 - 212)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all planning appeal
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached.

URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may
be considered as a matter of urgency.



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 2 September 2025
Present: Councillor G Staples-Jones (in the Chair)

Councillors C Boles, U Farooq, D Green, J Harris, M Hayes,
B Ibrahim, D Quinn, D Vernon and M Walsh

Public Attendance: 1 member of the Press and 57 members of the public were in
attendance at the meeting.

PCCA1

PCC.2

PCC.3

PCC.4

PCC.5

ELECTION OF CHAIR

A Chairperson was required due to the Chair of Planning Committee being absent from the
meeting.

Delegated decision:

That Councillor Gareth Staples-Jones be elected acting Chairperson of the Planning
Committee for this meeting only and took the Chair.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors D Duncalfe and G McGilll.

Councillor D Green acted as a substitute representative for Councillor McGill.
There was no substitute representative for Councillor Duncalfe.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 22ND JULY 2025
Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 22" July 2025 be approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to applications
for planning permission.

There was supplementary information to add in respect of application numbers 71422 and
72089.

The Committee heard representations from applicants, objectors and Ward Councillors in
respect of the applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker.

Delegated decisions:

1. That the Committee Defer the Application for a site visit to take place at the location:-

Pagel3



Planning Control Committee, 2 September 2025

PCC.6

52 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0ER
Demolition of the Existing Mosque and Community Facility and the Erection of a Replacement
Mosque and Community Facility (F1 (f).

2. That the Committee Defer the Application to await further information in relation to
Section 106 finances to be submitted by the applicant:-

Shore Top Farm, Kearsley Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1FA
Construction, operation and decommissioning of a Battery Energy Storage System (BESS)
facility and associated infrastructure

3. That the Committee Approved with Conditions the following application in accordance
with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and the
supplementary information submitted and subject to all other conditions included: -

34 Ringley Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LE

Change of use from dwellinghouse (Class C3(a)) to children's residential care home (Class
C2)

4, That the Committee Approved with Conditions the following application in accordance

with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and subject to
all other conditions included: -

Land at 12 Holthouse Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3JP
Application for reserved matters (access, appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale) following outline approval (67830) erection of 1 no. dwelling

5. That the Committee Approved with Conditions the following application in accordance
with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and subject to
all other conditions included: -

Land at side of 32 Manchester Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO ODH
Erection of 1 no. dwelling and erection of undercover parking for proposed
dwelling & No. 32 Manchester Road

6. That the Committee Approved with Conditions the following application in accordance
with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and subject to
all other conditions included: -

527 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9SH

Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to 7 no. bedroom/ 7 person HMO
(Sui Generis); Rear dormer extension; Fenestration alterations to rear and
cycle storage

DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent planning
application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last meeting of the
Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report and appendices be noted.

Page 4



PCC.7

PCC.8

PCC.9

Planning ControlCommittee, 2 September 2025

PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent planning
and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report and appendices be noted.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER CONFIRMATION

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted setting out the issues
relating to the current temporary tree preservation order Tree Preservation Order (No. 365)
2024 at 48 Hilda Avenue, Tottington.

Delegated decision:

That the current temporary preservation order issued on the tree within the curtilage of the site
as identified in Appendix 1 of the report was confirmed so that the Order takes effect on a

permanent basis.

URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business was reported.

COUNCILLOR G STAPLES-JONES
Chair

(Note: The meeting started at 7.10pm and ended at 9.00pm)

Page3b



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 21 October 2025
By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include
a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 7



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
Certificates relating to the ownership.

Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
Responses from Consultees.

PONM=

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 8



01 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom App No. 72134
Location: Twine Valley Farm. off Church Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury,
BLO OEH
Proposal: Application for the removal of a condition no. 2 (keeping of animals) on
allowed appeal ref: APP/T4210/C/18/3195131
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

02 Township Forum - Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth App No. 71464
Location: Land at rear of Westminster Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3WD
Proposal: Erection of 14 garages - 2 identical blocks of 7 units each
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N

Visit:

03 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom App No. 71009
Location: Higher Ash Barn, 12 Hawkshaw Lane, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4LD
Proposal: Change of use of land to residential, engineering operations and erection

of a garage/garden outbuilding.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

04 Township Forum - Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley App No. 71422
Location: 52 Bury OIld Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OER
Proposal: Demolition of the Existing Mosque and Community Facility and the

Erection of a Replacement Mosque and Community Facility (F1 (f)).
Recommendation: Minded to Approve Site N
Visit:

05 Township Forum - Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth App No. 72105
Location: 23 Church Street, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5RA
Proposal: Single storey flat roof rear extension
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N

Visit:

06 Township Forum - Ward: North Manor App No. 70213
Location: Lord Raglan, Mount Pleasant, Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SP
Proposal: Conversion of existing public house to 5 no. apartments and changes to

land levels at side and rear of the building to create parking area
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
06 Township Forum - Ward: North Manor App No. 70214

Page 9



Location:

Lord Raglan, Mount Pleasant, Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SP

Proposal: Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 5 no.
apartments
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
07 Township Forum - Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No. 71926
Location: Elms Bank Specialist Arts College, Ripon Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester,
M45 8PJ
Proposal: Installation of temporary Portakabin single-storey building to be used as a
classroom for a temporary period of 156 weeks.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
08 Township Forum - Ward: Bury West App No. 71978
Location: 240 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PA
Proposal: Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to 8 bed house in multiple
occupation (HMO) (sui generis) including extending/raising the roof over
existing rear garage
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N

Visit:

Page 10



Ward: Ramsbottom [tem 01

Applicant: SR & JR Brown Ltd
Location: Twine Valley Farm. off Church Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OEH

Proposal: Application for the removal of a condition no. 2 (keeping of animals) on allowed
appeal ref: APP/T4210/C/18/3195131

Application Ref: 72134/Full Target Date: 22/09/2025
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to an existing agricultural building, that makes up part of the
Agricultural holding associated with Twine Valley Farm. The site comprises of a group of
farm buildings and a yard and that are accessed from Bamford Road/Bye Road/Church
Road entrance. A further agricultural building, to which this application relates is located to
the rear of these buildings at a higher level and accessed from Turn Road.

This agricultural building was constructed as a deemed approval under Schedule 2, Part 6,
Class A of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015
(as amended). The existing building use is for storage purposes only and not for the
housing of cattle or other farm animals.

On 2 September 2016 an appeal was dismissed for the use of this agricultural building for
housing livestock (APP/T4210/W 16/3151468. Council ref: 59947). The appeal inspector
concluded that the use of the building for livestock would be more harmful to the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers due to noise, compared to the use of the building for storage.

Following this appeal, an Enforcement appeal was upheld on 23 February 2019 in relation
to the retention of the building which was not built in accordance with the approved plans
and the Enforcement Notice was quashed, (APP/T4210/C/18/3195131). To mitigate any
potential harm to living conditions of neighbouring properties relating to noise from animals
a condition was added to the appeal decision by the Inspector. Condition 2 of this appeal
stated:

The agricultural building hereby approved shall not be used for the keeping of animals
without any written prior approval of the local planning authority.

This application seeks permission for the removal a condition no. 2 (keeping of animals) on
allowed enforcement appeal ref: APP/T4210/C/18/3195131

The application is a resubmission following refusal due to the applicant failing to
demonstrate that the proposed development would not have a detrimental impact on the
amenity of neighbouring residential properties by reason of noise pollution. This resubmitted
application is supported by a Noise Assessment.

Relevant Planning History

57807 - Prior notification of agricultural building - Prior Approval Required and Granted
03/09/2014

Page 11



59947 - Retrospective application for agricultural building for housing livestock -
02/09/2016 Appeal dismissed

60962 - Agricultural building for silage - Refused 01/03/2017 Appeal allowed 07/07/2017

62677 - Prior notification of proposed agricultural building for the storage of silage - Prior
approval required and refused 08/05/2018 Appeal Allowed 07/03/2019

71611 - Application for the removal of a condition no. 2 (keeping of animals) on allowed
appeal ref: APP/T4210/C/18/3195131 - Refused 15/05/2025

71446 - Installation of a slurry pond - Refused 27/06/2025. Appeal pending.

71611 - Application for the removal of a condition no. 2 (keeping of animals) on allowed
appeal ref: APP/T4210/C/18/3195131 -Refused 15/05/2025

Publicity
Neighbour letters sent 30/07/2025
Site notice posted 06/08/2025

6 objections received in relation to:

¢ Was built without planning permission and only approved on second appeal with the

condition that it should only be used for storage purposes.

Condition has been ignored and already used for cattle since November 2024.

The cows have been confined 24 hours a day, 7 days a week for the last 9 months.

Creates noise, smell and flies

Applicant has also constructed a slurry pit without planning permission and also subject

to an appeal.

No respect for planning system or for the health and welfare of the neighbours.

¢ Applicants spent all of the bank holiday afternoon and evening cleaning out animal
waste and moving it to a different part of the farm land.

e How can this intensive cattle farming activity have been allowed to occur and be
continued in a building designated under planning law as a hay barn?

¢ Itis not clear how the applicant is currently dealing with the slurry generated from this
intensive cattle farming activity or how this is being disposed of.

e There has been no odour assessment for this intensive livestock activity which is so
close to a residential area.

¢ In addition to the existing odour from this activity there is also now a huge silage storage
facility immediately adjacent to the cattle housing.

e Constructed in a piecemeal fashion with no overall review of the total impact of this
intensive agricultural factory farm on local residential amenity.

e This application, and all of the previous planning history, contain no assessment of
odour on residential amenity for this specific development or from the cumulative
impacts across the factory farm site.

e Whilst recognising that the noise assessment has been professionally executed, there is
a strong bias in the report provided by the applicant.

¢ Measurements reported were obtained on days chosen to have the wind direction from
the South and West, i.e. blowing directly away from the nearest residential properties.
This also means that traffic noise from the nearby A56 and M66 to the south and west
would contribute excessively to the background noise levels measured.

¢ Residents are fearful that without proper atmospheric pollution impact assessments, and
an overall assessment of the impact of an intensive cattle farming operation, allowing
this development would breach our rights to peaceful enjoyment of our lives and
properties under the Human Rights Act 1998 and the Environmental Protection Act

Page 12



1990.

e The issue of cattle being kept in the hay barn has been reported to the appropriate
animal care authorities as there is concern for the welfare of the cattle and the
conditions in which they are kept.

e The cows in the lower shed also never get out to pasture as he takes other peoples'
rubble which is now so great all pathways to the field from the lower shed are totally
obstructed by piles of concrete blocks.

¢ A small stream runs within 75m of the haybarn. Has the applicant supplied sufficient
proof to show if this stream is contaminated?

e Inits current form the building is unlikely to conform to the minimum standards for
running a healthy herd of cattle.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - No objections raised.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - The Environment Section has assessed
the application and has no comments to make regarding contaminated land and air quality.

Environmental Health - Pollution Control - We have looked at the noise report. We
believe that there should be another penalty added, distinctiveness +3dB as we believe
cows mooing is distinctive. However, with this penalty still added it would be a low impact as
already stated, bringing the rating noise level above background noise level from -5dB to
-2db.

Drainage Section - No response
Animal Welfare Officer - Appears to be room for the cows to move about and lie down.
Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant

Development Plan and Policies

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

EN7/4 Groundwater Protection

EN9/1 Special Landscape Areas

OoL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt
oL4 Agriculture

OL4/5 Agricultural Development

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
EN7/5 Waste Water Management

JP-P1 Sustainable Places

JP-S5 Clean Air

JP-G9 The Green Belt

SPD8 DC Policy Guidance Note 8 - New Buildings in the Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

Page 13



The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Application History

Appeal reference APP/T4210/W/16/3151468 relates to the use of an agricultural building in
this position for housing livestock. The appeal was dismissed and the appeal inspector
considered that "the proposed use of the building would be a source of considerable noise
that would result in material harm to the living conditions of the occupiers of the adjacent
dwellings on Millhouse Street "

Appeal reference APP/T4210/C/18/3195131 also considered the living conditions of
neighbouring properties in terms of noise and the housing of cattle in a building in this
location and agreed that a suitable approach would be to restrict the use of the building to
storage. The following condition was therefore included by the planning inspectorate:

The agricultural building hereby approved shall not be used for the keeping of animals
without any written prior approval of the local planning authority.

Amenity

PfE Policy JP-P1 aims to create a liveable city region, and requires developments to provide
comfortable and inviting indoor and outdoor environments offering a high level of amenity
that minimises exposure to pollution. This is further supported by PfE Policy JP-S5 that
seeks to implement a comprehensive range of measures to support improvements in air
quality, focusing particularly on locations where people live, where children lean and play,
where there are impacts on the green infrastructure network and where air quality targets
are not being met. UDP Policy EN7/2 - Noise Pollution that restricts development that would
lead to an unacceptable noise nuisance to nearby occupiers and/or amenity users.

The existing building is located approximately 105 metres from the gable of the nearest
property on Edith Street, approximately 130 metres from the garden of the dwelling at No. 1
Millhouse Street and approximately 73 metres from the garden of the nearest property on
Bye Road.

Noise
In consideration of the enforcement appeal APP/T4210/C/18/3195131 the Planning
Inspector stated:

The building is a limited distance from residential properties; notably those along Church
Street and Millhouse Street. The enforcement notice has been issued partly on basis that
the building is being used for housing livestock, but at my site visit | noted that it is currently
being used to store hay and machinery. In addition, the appellant has suggested that a
suitably worded condition could be used to preclude the use of the building to keeping
animals. | agree that this is a suitable approach and would mitigate the potential harm to
living conditions relating to noise from animals. Should the building be used for keeping
animals in the future the Council would be entitled to take appropriate action.

The potential noise impacts of housing cattle in a building at this location was also raised by
the Planning Inspector under appeal APP/T4210/W/16/3151468. The Inspector stated in
this instance:

Due to the building’s elevated siting, and lack of intervening structures or significant belts of
planting between it and Millhouse Street, | consider that the additional noise created by

Page 14



cattle in the appeal building would be of significant harm to the living conditions of the
occupiers of these dwellings

When the Case Officer visited the site, cows were being kept within the shed in breach of
this condition. This has also been raised by enforcement prior to submission of the
application and through objections received from the consultation period.

The applicant has acknowledged the above appeals within their supporting Planning
Statement. A Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted in support of the application,
and is based on the building as existing without the need for any physical mitigation. The
noise impact assessment undertaken measured source noise levels to predict the noise
levels, due to the housing of cattle in the barn, at the nearby noise sensitive receivers. The
assessment concludes that the building housing cows has a ‘low impact’ at the nearest
sensitive noise receptors (dwellings). The report includes a 3D noise mapping model to
illustrate this.

The Environmental Health team have reviewed the assessment and have stated that there
should be another penalty added, distinctiveness +3dB as they consider that cow mooing is
distinctive. However, with this penalty still added it would be a low impact as already stated,
bringing the rating noise level above background noise level from -5dB to -2db.

Odour

When considering the impact of housing livestock within this building at appeal
(APP/T4210/W/16/3151468) the Inspectorate considered the impact of noise but did not
consider odour.

Odour at the site, in connection with sileage and cattle farming has however been
previously addressed by the Planning Inspectorate under appeal APP/T4210/W/18/3202305
the Inspector stated:

I noted at my site visit that a large number of animals are housed in nearby agricultural
buildings at certain times of the year. A such there are likely to be agricultural odours in this
rural setting. There is insufficient evidence before me to establish that the odours likely to
emanate from the use of the building for storing silage would lead to unacceptable levels of
odour above and beyond those that are likely to be reasonably experienced in rural areas.

The application site is a cattle farm, and there are fields that are in closer proximity to the
dwellings on Millhouse Street/Edith Street that can be reasonably used by the cattle. Whilst
acknowledged that the cattle residing in the building would be in a higher concentration than
cattle in the fields, there are already cattle being housed lawfully in the buildings off Bye
Road and set out previously by the inspectorate there are likely to be odours experienced in
rural areas.

The LPA also needs to be mindful of the reason for attaching the restrictive condition being
placed on building in the first place, which related to noise not odour which has been
assessed above.

Conclusion

Given the above, it is concluded that whilst Planning Inspectors did consider that amenity
and living condition impacts are likely, fundamentally, they did not have any evidence in
front of them to substantiate the impact and subsequently a condition was imposed on the
agricultural building based on an assessment of potential noise impacts. The application
and assessment above has not only looked and assessed noise, but odour also. On the
basis of advice provided by the consultees, the noise assessment provided by the applicant,
and the previous planning appeals at the site it is considered that the removal of condition 2

Page 15



should be allowed.

Response to representations
It is considered that the issues raised in relation to noise and odour have been addressed
within the main body of the report.

The Animal Welfare Officer has been consulted on the application and is reviewing the
condition of the housing of animals at the site separately.

It is acknowledged that the application presented is retrospective however an application
has been submitted and the LPA is therefore required to consider the proposal. An appeal is
currently pending for the partial construction of a slurry pond at the site and is not relevant
to the consideration of this application. Planning Enforcement are also reviewing other
reported breaches at the site.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons
1. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location Plan received 18th July 2025

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Pressley on 0161 253 5277

Page 16



Viewpoints - 72134

&
. . Ck
t John in the Wilderness
Church
\
Twine
Valley
Farm

Issues \
r/ﬂ—\

Th' Owd Bakehouse

Twine Valley Farm. off Church

N
Road, Shuttleworth, ‘® e
ADDRESS: Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OEH

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 17/




72134

Photo 1

Page 18



72134

Photo 3

NN
N \\_\3\

)




72134

Photo 5

Page 20



3 P
T

/ Th0vd Bakshoum ailats i

A Loesmon {LAN,




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth Item 02

Applicant: Failsworth Property

Location: Land at rear of Westminster Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3WD
Proposal: Erection of 14 garages - 2 identical blocks of 7 units each

Application Ref: 71464/Full Target Date: 02/04/2025
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to a piece of land located to the rear of properties on Kilburn Road,
Westminster Avenue and Coronation Road. The piece of land is accessed from
Westminster Avenue to the side of No. 7.

Planning permission is sought for the construction of 14.no garages. The garages proposed
would be constructed in 2 blocks of 7no. units each. The proposed garage blocks would be
6600mm deep, 24400mm long, and reach a maximum height of approximately 3400mm.

The application is partially retrospective with the hardstanding at the site being laid prior to
the submission of the planning application.

The application is a resubmission of a previously refused scheme that was refused due to
sub-standard sizes of garages for storage of cars, intensification of the access, lack of coal
mining risk assessment and impact on residential amenity due to insufficient or conflicting
plans. This application seeks to address these previous reasons for refusal

Relevant Planning History
14370 - Plot 5 - Retention of existing garage - Approve 21/04/1983

14531 - Plot 17 - Retention of Garage - Approve 02/06/1983
27770 - Plot 12 - Concrete Garage Approve - 01/10/1992
70808 - Erection of 12 garage - 2 identical blocks of 6 each - Refused 16/08/2024

Enforcement
24/0182 - Site cleared of former garages and new layout ready for new garages -
20/01/2025

Publicity
Neighbour letters sent 05/02/2025

14 representations of support received in relation to:

Parking in area is poor need more spaces.

Need a safe space to store my car off street to prevent damage.

Will provide secure, dry storage.

Have been on the Council waiting list for a garage for a number of years with no joy.
Land was overgrown and unsafe for many years.

Previously attracted rats

Page 23



o Will be an asset to the community

e The properties surrounding this land are flats, that have no gardens so therefore | don't
believe anyone's garden space is actually being taken.

e There are garages built just on the next street that have been great for the community,

and have caused no issues.

Welcome storage.

Happy the waste ground will be used for something that will benefit the whole area.

Almost everyone has a car and some have more than one.

Cars are bigger and can't be accommodated on street.

| can't understand why the odd person has left negative comments as there were council

garages in the past.

o The proposed dwellings would overlook an area of public open space which | believe
would increase natural surveillance of the area and would deter anti-social behaviour.

4 objections received in relation to:

e Applicant has taken Council land

e Increase in noise

¢ Have HSE been informed about the scrapping by machines and asbestos contaminated
land and it's correct disposal.

Support comments seem to want storage not a garage to park cars in.

Danger to road users and pedestrians with double parking right outside the entrance.
Drainage is not adequate. Council should use a drainage camera to check.

There are 3 community centres that face the entrance and people already double park.
Entrance is not big enough.

Made a mess of the land, and caused damage to fencing.

Concern that they would be used for business use rather than domestic.

Could be open 24 hours a day.

No planning but 500 square metres of concrete already laid.

States connected to main drains but there are no services on this site.

No digging permitted due to coal seam and possible release of mine gasses.

Following the receipt of amended plans, reducing the number of proposed garages and
additional information in relation to drainage further neighbour letters sent 16/09/2025

1 representation of support received in relation to:

e This is a private site not a public site.

e There is a great demand for garages in the area.
e The site was formerly a Council garage site.

3 objections received in relation to:

Why have they been allowed to submit again when coal declined beforehand?

The drainage is a joke.

There's enough parking for all garages aren't needed.

Owner chopped down trees then asked for planning permission.

Drainage work has not taken place. There is no main drain running through the site.
No services eg gas, electric, water, drains to connect to.

Just a 100m surface drain running into a soakaway pit.

Was HSE informed in relation to the digging work.

Was a risk assessment undertaken and are there any photos of the side drain.

Was a camera survey done of where the drain led to and connected to.

| assume the objector would have no objection to the Council putting a camera down the
drain to find out.

e Land could be made better use of.

Page 24



e Rare that you see a car parked in a garage anymore.

e Planning inspectors should visit the site on a Wednesday morning (alternate
Wednesdays for one group) when the site is at it's busiest. Cars are double parked all
over the grass verges.

e |t would make much more sense to use this land as a public carpark.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - Conditions requested in relation to a scheme of carriageway works at the
site access, submission of a CTMP, implementation of the access gates, restriction of the
use of the garages and implementation of the turning facilities.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land- Condition requested in relation to
unforeseen contamination.

The Coal Authority - No objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of a condition
that requires a scheme of intrusive investigations, and remediation works. Prior to
occupation a signed statement prepared by a competent person is also required.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - Given that the site has already been cleared, we
cannot recommend that an ecological survey now takes place, however we recommend
informatives in relation to protected species and conditions limiting work outside of the
nesting season and requirement enhancements which could include the integration of bat or
bird boxes.

Property & Technical Services - Estates Consultancy - No response

Drainage - Clairty and confirmation requested in relation to details of the 150cm VC drain.
Final comments to be reported within the supplementary.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant - application is retrospective.

Development Plan and Policies

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

H3 Incompatible Uses in Residential Areas

H3/1 Assessing Non-Conforming Uses

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

ENB8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

EN7/4 Groundwater Protection

EN7/3 Water Pollution

JP-S4 Flood Risk and the Water Environment

JP-S2 Carbon and Energy

JP-P1 Sustainable Places

JP-C6 Walking and Cycling

JP-C5 Streets For All

JP-G7 Trees and Woodland

JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant

Page 25



policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Layout and Design

Policy EN1/2 seeks to ensure that development proposals would not have a detrimental
effect on the visual amenity and character of a particular area. Policy JP-P1 aims to
promote a series of beautiful, healthy and varied places.

The site is an enclosed piece of land, surrounded by residential properties and accessed via
Westminster Avenue.

Planning history on the site suggests that the site was formerly used as a garage colony. No
applications have been approved here for garages since 1992. The application form states
that the use ceased in 2019. Council Aerial photography from 2005/06, 2009/11 and 2016
shows a green vegetated area of land with trees, although the number of trees on site
appears to have reduced in 2016. More recent google earth imagery also show a site that
was heavily vegetated. No buildings are evident on these images.

The site is currently unallocated within the Development Plan. Given the former
documented garages located on the site it is considered that the construction of domestic
scale storage garages on the site is acceptable in principle and would not have a
detrimental impact on the character of the area, providing that the proposal meets the
required policy and material planning considerations.

The proposed garages would be largely screened from public view due to the houses that
currently bound the site. The proposed garages would be constructed in 2 rows of 7 and
would be single storey in height, with dual pitched roofs, constructed from blockwork and
corrugated steel roofs. An existing concrete slab has been laid with a drainage channel
through the middle of the site. The proposed garage are of simple, functional form and given
the nature of the proposal it is considered that the design of the proposed garages is
acceptable.

In relation to the assessment as to whether the garages are sufficient for the
storage/parking of vehicles SPD 11 requires minimum internal dimensions of 6.4m x 3.0m
for a single garage to consider the garage sufficient for parking a car in. This standard has
been met and therefore it is considered that the proposed garages can be utilised for the
storage of vehicles.

Amenity

Policy EN1/2 considers the relationship of the proposal to the surrounding area. UDP Policy
H3 seeks to restrict the development of incompatible uses in areas which are primarily
residential in nature and where possible will seek to resolve existing conflicts. This is further
supported by Policies H3/1 that consider factors such as noise, vibration, smell, fumes,
smoke, soot, ash, grit, dust, visual intrusion, traffic generation and parking arrangements,
and hours of operation, and seeks to implement measures to control these where possible
to minimise areas of conflict and potential nuisance.

Page 26



It is noted that the objectors have raised concerns in relation to the use of the garages for
business or trade rather than domestic storage/car parking. Given that the use of the
garages for trade or business could cause intrusion in relation to noise, hours of operation
and traffic generation these concerns are acknowledged. The proposed garages however
are of a suitable size to park vehicles within and are located within close proximity to a
number of domestic properties that can utilise the units for domestic storage if required. A
condition has therefore been proposed to restrict the use of the proposed garages to solely
for domestic purposes only, preventing them from being used in connection with any trade
or business.

In terms of overbearing relationships the proposed garages are single storey in height,
reaching an eaves height of 2.4 metres and an overall ridge height of 3.4 metres. As such
SPD 6 requires these buildings to be located a minimum of 6.5 metres from the rear
elevations of the dwellings that bound the site.

The proposed garages would be located approximately 14.5 metres from the rear of the
dwellings on Kilburn Drive, 23 metres from the original rear elevations of the dwellings at
103-107 Coronation Road, 13-15 metres from the rear elevations of the dwellings on
115-121 Coronation Road and 14 metres from the rear elevations of the dwellings on
Westminster Avenue. This would far exceed the distances required by SPD 6.

Highways and Access

Policy EN1/2 requires the consideration of the design and appearance of access, parking
and service provision. Policies JP-C5 and JP-C6 require streets to be well designed and
managed to make a significant positive contribution to the quality of place and support high
levels of walking, cycling and public transport. SPD 11 also gives guidance on the sizes of
garages to allow cars to be parked inside.

The size of the garages proposed has been assessed within the above body of the report.

The LPA and Traffic Section are mindful of the former use of the site as a garage colony,
and that the existing access was utilised for this purpose. There are also a limited number of
proposed units seeking to use this access, which would appear to be below the number of
garages that were previously located on the site (plot 17 referenced in planning history).

No objections have been raised to the use of the proposed access subject to conditions in
relation to the submission of a scheme of carriageway works at the proposed site access,
submission of a Construction Traffic Management Plan, implementation of the proposed
pedestrian access gate, restriction of the use of the garages to domestic purposes (as
referenced above) and implementation of the turning facilities.

Ecology

Policy JP-G8 states that through local planning and associated activities a net enhancement
of biodiversity resources will be sought. This is supported by Policy EN6/3 that seeks to
retain, protect and enhance the natural environment and seeks to retain features of
ecological or wildlife value. Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that the planning policies and
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. Policy EN8/2
supports and encourages new woodland and tree planting within the borough. This is further
supported by Policy JP-G7 that aims to significantly increase tree cover and requires 2no.
replacement trees for each tree lost or other measures that would also result in a net
enhancement in the character and quality of the treescape and biodiversity value in the local
area.

As the site has been cleared prior to submission of the application GMEU can not request
an ecological survey is undertaken. As the application is retrospective it is exempt from

Page 27



statutory Biodiversity Net Gain.

GMEU however do recommend informatives in relation to protected species, and a
condition in relation to any further site clearance that should be restricted to outside of
nesting season. Wherever possible measures to enhance the site for biodiversity should
be secured as part of this planning application, and could include integration of bat or bird
boxes. This can be secured as a planning condition.

Drainage
Policies JP-S4, EN7/3 and EN7/5 seek to protect the water courses and other water
features within the Borough, and limit surface water pollution.

Substantial hardstanding has already been introduced at the site that appears to have been
previously vegetated.

As described by the agent:

¢ all surface water from the hardstanding area and garage blocks within the site is
conveyed to the existing 150mm VC drain, which ultimately discharges off-site.

¢ the crates, identified above the existing 150mm VC drain during the percolation test,
appear to serve as a junction with storage function.

o the existing 150mm VC drain was reportedly tested on-site by the consultant and found
to have sufficient capacity to accommodate the surface runoff from a 1 in 100-year
storm event, including a 45% Climate Change allowance.

For clarity and confirmation, the applicant/agent has been asked to verify the above and this
will be reported within the supplementary report prior to Planning Control Committee.
Additionally, the applicant/agent has been asked to identify the final discharge point of this
existing 150mm VC drain to ensure it connects appropriately to the public system and does
not pose any risk of nuisance or flooding to the adjacent properties/highways.

Land Stability

Paragraphs 187 and 196 of the NPPF seek to ensure that sites are suitable for its proposed
use taking into account ground conditions, any risks arising from land instability and
contamination.

The application site falls partly within the Coal Authority’s defined Development High Risk
Area. Therefore, within the site and surrounding area there are coal mining features present
at surface or shallow depths. The risk these features may pose should be considered as
part of the planning process. More specifically, the Coal Authority’s information indicates
that the site lies partly in an area where historic unrecorded coal mining is likely to have
taken place at shallow depth. Voids and broken ground associated with such workings can
pose a risk to ground stability and public safety.

The application is accompanied by a Coal Mining Risk Assessment report (December 2024,
prepared by Earth Environmental & Geotechnical Limited). Based on a review of coal
mining and geological information, the report acknowledges that the site is located in an
area where unrecorded coal mine workings could be present at shallow depth. Accordingly,
it goes on to recommend the undertaking of an intrusive investigation in order to further
assess the shallow coal mining situation.

The Coal Authority have reviewed the submitted Coal Mining Risk Assessment and raised
no objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of a condition that requires a scheme
of intrusive investigations, and remediation works. A condition has been included that states
no further above ground works shall be completed prior to these intrusive investigations

Page 28



being undertaken and this may require the applicant to remove some of the existing
hardstanding that was installed without permission. Prior to occupation a signed statement
prepared by a competent person is also required to ensure that these investigations have
been undertaken.

Contaminated Land and Air Quality

Paragraphs 187 and 196 of the NPPF seek to ensure that sites are suitable for its proposed
use taking into account ground conditions, any risks arising from land instability and
contamination.

It is noted that the land was previously occupied by individual domestic garages . The
application form notes that these have been demolished. There is the potential that
asbestos may have been present in the construction of these garages and it is not known
how carefully they were removed. As such it is recommended that a watching brief for
potential signs of asbestos containing material is carried out during construction. This
maybe on the surface or buried. Concrete has already been laid at the site and some
aspects of this application are retrospective, but this condition should remain as a
precaution and has therefore been included within the recommendation.

The site is not located within an Air Quality Management Area. Due to the scale of the
development, it is considered very unlikely that the development would create an increase
of more than 500 AADT (annual average daily traffic). Therefore, in line with the EPUK
Guidance, an air quality assessment will not be required.

The proposed development is for off-street parking; electric vehicle charging does not
appear to have been considered in the application. Bury Council has been identified by
DEFRA as an area requiring to significantly improve air quality. The required measures to
do this are currently under discussion. Due to this requirement a condition that requires the
installation of EV chargepoints has been included within the recommendation.

Carbon and Energy

PfE Policy JP-S2 sets out the steps required to achieve net zero carbon emissions. The
applicant has confirmed that the proposal would meet the provisions of Part L of the building
regulations.

Digital Connectivity
PfE Policy JP-C2 requires all new development to have full fibre to premises connections
unless technically infeasible and / or unviable.

Full fibre is available within the vicinity of the site. Given the nature of the proposal however
it is not proposed to provide digital connection at this time.

Response to representations
It is considered that the material considerations have been covered within the main body of
the report.

The application has been referred to the relevant statutory consultees who deal with land
stability, coal mining, drainage etc and the responses reported within the main body of the
report.

Any damage caused through the installation of the hardstanding would be a private matter.
The application was submitted following an enforcement complaint and works on site have

ceased following this. Whilst a previous application was refused that the site the applicant is
well within their rights to resubmit to address the previous reasons for refusal.

Page 29



Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location Plan, LAWA-DC 01 Rev 04,
LAWA-DC-BP 02 Rev 05, LAWA-DC-BP 03 Rev 07 and the development shall
not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

2. The garages hereby approved shall be used solely for domestic purposes only and
shall not be used in connection with any trade or business.
Reason. The garages are located close to residential properties and the garages
use for domestic purposes only would maintain appropriate levels of residential
amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, H3 -
Incompatible Uses in Residential Areas and H3/1- Assessing Non-Conforming
Uses.

3. The development hereby approved within any approved phase shall not be
brought into use until written confirmation is provided to the Local Planning
Authority that unexpected or previously unidentified contamination was not
encountered during the course of development works.

If, during development, unexpected contamination is found to be present on the
site, no further works shall be carried out at the affected location until the following
are submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval:

l. Risk Assessment (GQRA or DQRA);

Il. Remediation Strategy & Verification Plan;

If remediation is required, it shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
Remediation Strategy. Upon completion of remediation works, a Verification
Report shall be submitted for approval. The Verification Report must include
information validating all remediation works carried out; details of imported
materials (source/quantity/suitability); details of exported materials; and details of
any unexpected contamination.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs 187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(December 2024).

Page 30



Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide:

¢ A minimum of 1 no. electric vehicle (EV) charging point (minimum 7kW™*) per
10 parking/garage spaces and at least one in every five remaining
parking/garage spaces must be provided with cable routes.

Certification and photographic evidence of the installation of the agreed electric
vehicle charge points shall be submitted to Local Planning Authority for approval
prior to the development being brought into use. The infrastructure shall be
maintained and operational in perpetuity.

*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to
be used. Further information regarding minimum standards can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/transport/low-emission-and-electric-vehicles.

Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the
development is sustainable and to safeguard residential amenity, public health and
quality of life with respect to Local Air Quality, in accordance with paragraphs
112e, 117e, 187e and 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December
2024) and Places for Everyone Policy JP-S5 (Clean Air).

No further above ground development shall commence until;

a)a scheme of intrusive investigations has been carried out on site to establish the
risks posed to the development by past shallow coal mining activity; and

b)any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address land instability
arising from past coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been
implemented on site in full in order to ensure that the site is made safe and stable
for the development proposed.

The intrusive site investigations, remedial works and mitigatory measures shall be
carried out in accordance with authoritative UK guidance.

Reason. The undertaking of intrusive site investigations, prior to the
commencement of development, is considered to be necessary to ensure that
adequate information pertaining to ground conditions and coal mining legacy is
available to enable appropriate remedial and mitigatory measures to be identified
and carried out before building works commence on site. This is in order to ensure
the safety and stability of the development, in accordance with paragraphs 196
and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, a
signed statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person
confirming that the site is, or has been made, safe and stable for the approved
development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in
writing. This document shall confirm the methods and findings of the intrusive site
investigations and the completion of any remedial works and/or mitigation
necessary to address the risks posed by past coal mining activity.

Reason. The undertaking of intrusive site investigations, prior to the
commencement of development, is considered to be necessary to ensure that
adequate information pertaining to ground conditions and coal mining legacy is
available to enable appropriate remedial and mitigatory measures to be identified
and carried out before building works commence on site. This is in order to ensure
the safety and stability of the development, in accordance with paragraphs 196
and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 31



10.

A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of any further above ground works at the
site. The contents of the plan should include native tree and shrub planting and the
provision of bat and bird boxes. The approved scheme shall thereafter be
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the building(s) is first
occupied or within the first available tree planting season, and any trees or shrubs
removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased
within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or
species to those originally required to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory enhancements and net gains for biodiversity
and in the interests of visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape
and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting, JP-G8: A Net
Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity and EN6/3 - Features of Ecological
Value of the Development Plan and National Planning Policy Framework Section
15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

No works to trees or shrubs or demolition shall occur between the 1st March and
31st August in any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably
experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to clearance.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies JP-G8: A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity
and ENG6/3 - Features of Ecological Value of the Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no further
development shall commence unless and until full details of the following have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

1. Scheme of carriageway resurfacing works on the proposed site access between
the junction with Westminster Avenue and the proposed gate position, and all
associated remedial/accommodation works;

2. Measures to prevent the discharge of surface water from the site and site
access onto the adjacent adopted highway.

The highway works subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed
programme before the development hereby approved is brought into use.
Reason. To ensure good highway design and the intervisibility of the users of the
site and the adjacent highways in the interests of road safety and to maintain the
integrity of the adopted highway Development Plan Policies Development Plan
Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, JP-C5 - Streets for All, JP-C6 -
Walking and Cycling, JP-C8 - Transport Requirements of New Development and
JP-P1 - Sustainable Places.

No further development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

1. Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to
and abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required
following construction of the development, replacement of all boundary features
and as a result of any statutory undertakers connections to the site;

2. Access route for all construction vehicles to the site from the Key Route

Page 32



Network;

3. Access point/arrangements for construction traffic from Westminster Avenue
and all temporary works required to facilitate access for construction vehicles;

4. If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, incorporating the provision,
where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection measures;

5. A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the
vicinity of the site and its access onto Westminster Avenue;

6. Confirmation of hours of operation, delivery & construction vehicle sizes that
can be accommodated on Westminster Avenue and enter and leave the site in a
forward gear and number of vehicle movements;

7. Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage
of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres;

8. Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and
construction vehicles, together with storage on site of construction materials;

9. Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto
the adjacent highways as a result of the groundworks operations or carried on the
wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust
nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the
duration of the construction period.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Development Plan
Policies Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, JP-C5 -
Streets for All, JP-C6 - Walking and Cycling, JP-C8 - Transport Requirements of
New Development and JP-P1 - Sustainable Places.

11.  The proposed site access gates indicated on approved plan reference
LAWA-DC-BP 03 Rev 07 Received on the 6th October 2025 shall be installed prior
to the development hereby approved being brought into use and shall
subsequently be maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate pedestrian access to the site, in the interest of
pedestrian safety pursuant to Development Plan Policies Development Plan
Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, JP-C5 - Streets for All, JP-C6 -
Walking and Cycling, JP-C8 - Transport Requirements of New Development and
JP-P1 - Sustainable Places.

12.  The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before the
areas of the development to which they relate are brought into use and the areas
used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of
obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway/new access road, in the interests of road safety pursuant to Development
Plan Policies Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design,
JP-C5 - Streets for All, JP-C6 - Walking and Cycling, JP-C8 - Transport
Requirements of New Development and JP-P1 - Sustainable Places.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Pressley on 0161 253 5277

Page 33



Viewpoints - 71464

Trinity / Roc _ ~
Baptist [ ommunity =]
Church Centre

N

Land at rear of Westminster ‘é‘) E
ADDRESS: Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, [/
M26 3WD S

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 34




71464

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 35



71464

Photo 3

U

~-4 - - -
iwets o £ e
‘-‘r‘mmhﬁm.

- ——
e ~
‘*‘ w-- ).‘— -~
2 “Peiil
- " PSR

Photo 4

Page 36



71464

Photo 5

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



T
S
0
x
g
5
s

X

The existing site gates are to be replaced with new site gates including integral pedestrian access door
reflective of the example image above, the location of the gates is to remain the same.

Tt abed

800

R

N
L3

SITE ACCESS GATES - (front elevation) 1:50 SITE ACCESS GATES - (rear elevation) 1:50

43000

‘\Af-’w

43000

% ">
- \
N\
AN
T
DAMN
MNN
LALLM
MANN
\ LM
\ \ \\\s\\\\\\\\\\\ \
LN MAN
Vo DLW
\ MNN \ \
\ \\\\\\\\\\\\
\ LMY
\ LMY
\ LANN
\ \\\\\\ \\\\\\
\ LMY B
LMY
LA
\ \ LMW
\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \ \ M
\ DN \ \\i\ix\\\i\\\\ \
LN \ LA
\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \ \\\\\\\\\\\\\ \
LN \ LN
NN \ \
&\ MNN \ LN
\\ \\\\E\Q\\\Q\\\ \ \\\@\\\\\\\\i\\
\ \ \\\\\\\\\ \ \) WD )
\ \\\\\\\\\\ﬁ\\k\\\ \\ M
\\\\\i\\\\&\\\\ \ 7
\ \ ~
\ WN X i
\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ e
\ N —
\
\
\ ==

SUPPLEMENTARY DRAINAGE INFORMATION TR BE SUPPLIED ':}'%
DRAINAGE SPECIRLIST - (QUICK DRAINS) - NOTK THE TOP WATER\ @
IS PROPOSED TO BONNECT INTO THE EXISTING BRAINAGE SYSTE

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:250

PLANNING PERMISSION
TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
SPECIFICATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
0 200 300 400 500 1000m

COM REGULATIONS
The ownr, main contractor shouid they noed to do o, must abide by the

fonger than

Itis the clent's ppoint a

contractor i agreed i wriing,

HEALTH AND SAFETY

tention and

Safety at Work Act 1974, and COM 2015

MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP
All works are to be carried out i a workmanlike manner. Al materials and
7of al

3 3 . Product
Ceriication of Schemes (Kile Marks) _etc. Products conforming to a European
hamonised 3

SITE PREPARATION
Ground

0 | vegelable
or shr Seal up,

cap off, d

also be toke
caused by contaminants and ground gases e.q. landfil gases, radon, vapours etc on
orin the ground covered, or o be covered by the bulding.

DEMOLITION
All demoliion work to comply with the Construction ( Design and Managemen)
qulations 1994 ol

contractor.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

thata

for a certficate of lawfulness i order to get written consent / full plans- The
i information

where

required.
RETAINED STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS.

may req replacing.
the bulding control body or structural design engineer to ascertain requirements.

PARTY WALL ACT

it

from land owner / agent.

EXISTING SUB FLOOR VENTILATION - To bo maintained where exsting air bricks.
i the prope be
visible at the ime of ol

proposed works such as wot / dry rot.
SERVICES

, Water,  the prope
the client K ad

are shown on these drawings.

EXTENT OF SERVICES
been

g purpo

proposed Jication will be
required to be designed and produced by ather..

REV| DETAIL BY | CHK| DATE

REVISSION

CLIENT

ADDRESS

LAND TO THE REAR OF
WESTMINSTER AVENUE
RADCLIFFE BURY

M26 3WD

PROJECT

PROPOSED GARAGE BLOCKS

DRAWING

PLANNING PERMISSION

DRAWING CODE DRAWING NUMBER
LAWA-DC-BP 03

SCALE PAPER REVISION
1:250 A1 07

CHECKED

DATE DRAWN
oCT 25 |RG




3400

2400

PLANNING PERMISSION
TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
SPECIFICATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
300 400 500 1000m

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION 1:50

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION 1:50

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION 1:50

24400

*
T
Q
«Q
[¢)
D
N
Garage Garage Garage Garage Garage Garage Garage
g g
8 3
@ 3450 o 3350 © 3350 @ 3350 & 3350 & 3350 @ 3400 K3
* L

2400

1125

2400

1050

2400

1050

2400

24400

1050

2400

2400

1075

2400

PROPOSED LAYOUT PLAN 1:50

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN 1:50

6600

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION 1:50

EXISTING SITE IMAGES

REV| DETAIL BY | CHK| DATE

REVISSION

CLIENT

AADDRESS

LAND TO THE REAR OF
WESTMINSTER AVENUE
RADCLIFFE BURY

M26 3WD

PROJECT

PROPOSED GARAGE BLOCKS

DRAWING
PLANNING PERMISSION

DRAWING CODE DRAWING NUMBER
LAWA-DC 01

SCALE PAPER REVISION
1:50 A1 04

DATE

JULY 25

DRAWN

RG

CHECKED




PLANNING PERMISSION

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH

SPECIFICATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Q 200 300 400 500 1000m
We [ N
St
tmip ster 4 v
eny,

ey abed

Stm i
o SterAv
2
| E3
o
| >
S
o
cou®
P&‘oe\l
\ \ H
\ \ 8 »\'m“w
g
CoMREGULATIONS
\ - \ The owner,main cotactor ahoud hey nee 0 doso, et abid by the
— Constucion Rt
\ — buiding work hours or longer .
\ i lants respondiiy 10 appin  Panring Supereoton l et
o oauatons. s
\ ot iy
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Tho conraior & fomindod o theiabity o oneur duo car, atfrion and
Conceraton s Guen I et 10 S5 acice ncomptance with e Healh and
\ ooty on Ak 1976, ond COM 2075
\ \ MATERIALS AND WORKNANSHIP
\ o
. ! Coropo Sancar . Product
PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:500 \ ol v 0 s ing 3 o
\ ramorioad European "
SITE PREPARATION
\ e o removng et —
o iy
\ \ 1.
i 1o 50 ke
\ caused by contaminanis and ground gases e.g. landfl gases, radon, vapours elc on
o e Ground covred, o o e covered b e bling.
\ s bevoLTIoN
. o comp (
Regulations 1994 and a Health and Safety plan is to be provided by the principal
Comradior
s \ ot dllentand
Toe permeer e
for s cariicats o wtines 1 crdet 1> go o sonsant/ T plane. The
\ Gesar s boen sMpieyed 1 producingiho dravings and Supporing il
\ oot
\ RETAINED STRUCTURAL ELEVENTS
oy roposod o
\ G e sccommosating nereescaloadngs o a fesu of e poposed scheme
e el o b ity i o

PARTY WALLACT-

| onrste- i designer |

higher than

Wnere P

hold property /
pratoin eowner

from land owner / agent.

FLOOR VENTILATION - ir bricks

a6 10 be covered as part of the proposed works on site - Not ar bricks may not be.

visible al the time of he sile survey and therefore may not be marked on the plans -
i it by the

\ proposed works such as wet/ ry rot.

SERVICES
\ - o,
=

i of the propos
approval prop

[ ich from gardl details
are shown on these drawings.

&

EXTENT OF SERVICES

for

y propo: A
required 10 be designed and produced by olher..

po°

REV| DETAIL BY | CHK| DATE
REVISSION

CLIENT

ADDRESS
LAND TO REAR OF
WE INSTER AVENUE

DCLIFFE BURY
M26 3WD

PROJECT

PROPOSED GARAGE BLOCKS

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:250

DRAWING
PLANNING PERMISSION
DRAWING CODE DRAWING NUMBER
LAWA-DC-BP (02
SCALE PAPER REVISION
EXISTING SITE PLAN 1:500 :A:'goo Dm:trizsgneﬁ(lb 05
JULY 25[RG




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Ramsbottom ltem

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Packun
Location: Higher Ash Barn, 12 Hawkshaw Lane, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4LD

Proposal: Change of use of land to residential, engineering operations and erection of a
garage/garden outbuilding.

Application Ref: 71009/Full Target Date: 04/08/2025
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description
The application relates to a site which comprises Higher Ash Barn, a residential dwelling
and associated land.

The site is located in the Green Belt, Landscape Character Area and West Pennine Moors
and is an area characterised by open land and fields. It is accessed off Hawkshaw Lane
which leads from the village of Hawkshaw just over half a mile away. The nearest
residential property is Higher Ash Farm directly to the north which shares access from
Hawkshaw Lane. Withins Farm is just over 100m away to the north west. To the south
west is Hawkshaw Hall approx 200m away.

All three of these neighbouring properties and the application site are on the Council's Draft
Local List as Non-Designated Heritage Assets.

Two public rights of way (PRoW) cut through the site. One PRoW runs west to east
between the Barn and Higher Ash Farm and the other crosses the site in a north/south
direction.

The application seeks the change of use of land to residential, engineering operations and
erection of a garage/garden outbuilding.

The proposed outbuilding would be located on a piece of land to the east of the dwelling.
The land has been excavated out to a lower level than the barn which required planning
permission, hence its inclusion in the description.

The change of use of the land is required as it was outside the red edge site of the planning
application for the conversion of the barn to dwelling.

The proposed building would be located to the east of the dwelling approximately 8.5m
away and would be 5.5m in length, 6.4m wide, 2.4m to eaves with a ridge height of 4m.

The outbuilding would be accessed via two full height timber double doors on the south
elevation. The garage would provide parking for 2 cars with 2 EV chargepoints and would
also accommodate plant equipment for the heating system within the house and storage for
garden equipment and such like.

Materials would comprise timer clad elevations and a slate roof.

The application is a resubmission of a scheme which was previously refused for a detached
garage/store which was refused for 4 reasons -

Page 45

03



1. Siting, scale, massing and height which would be harmful to the openness of the Green
belt

2. Design and appearance including full height roller shutter doors and an external
staircase would be introduce discordant and unsympathetic features which would be
detrimental to the landscape and harmful to the setting of the NDHA

3. Siting, scale and massing and impact on the residential amenity of the adjacent
residential property.

4. Insufficient information with regards to need, proposed siting and design and
assessment of the special qualities of the of the landscape are and Green Belt which
should include a case for Very Special Circumstances.

The applicant states that to address the reasons for refusal, the scheme has been
redesigned, reduced in height and scale to reduce the impact on the Green Belt and special
landscape area and have provided new plans and topographical details to enable a full
assessment of the proposal.

Procedural matters

The application was originally submitted and validated 21/8/24.

It later transpired the application was invalid due to inaccuracies in the description,
inaccurate red edge application site area and concerns with regards to the size and scale of
the proposed outbuilding.

Following receipt of revised information and plans, the application was made valid on 9/6/25
The application was thereafter publicised and neighbours re-notified.

Relevant Planning History

01551/E - Proposed conversion of barn to one dwelling - Enquiry completed 14/08/2014
02530/E - Proposed change of use/conversion of barn to form one dwelling with associated
single storey extension, external alterations (including new/replacement doors and
windows), external works associated with access/parking/hardstanding areas, new pond
and hard/soft landscaping - Enquiry completed 23/03/2021

02741/E - Construction of a garage/garden outbuilding - Enquiry completed 20/07/2022
59866 - Conversion of barn to one dwelling including roof extension - Approve with
Conditions 28/04/2016

66085 - Change of use of barn to form dwelling including single storey, two storey and roof
extensions; External alterations include hardstanding area, new pond and landscaping -
Refused 11/12/2020. Allowed on appeal 15/7/21.

66739 - Change of use from barn to dwelling; Associated single storey, two storey and roof
extensions; External alterations; External works soft and hard landscaping - Approve with
Conditions 07/06/2021

68772 - Erection of two storey garage/garden outbuilding - Refused 31/07/2023

Publicity

Letters sent to 7 properties on 10/09/24
Site notice posted 23/8/24

Press advert 21/8/24

The application as initially submitted resulted in the following representations being
received.

2 objections -
¢ On the basis that the building is to be built on green belt land without strong or

necessary justification is surely grounds enough for it to be rejected.
e The application has already been rejected and not a great deal has changed since the

Page 46



original detail.

The area of outstanding natural beauty will not be improved by the construction and the
precedent set for additional applications in the area should it be approved would be very
negative and concerning.

The construction would add to the already excessive traffic along Hawkshaw Lane
which causes ongoing damage to the road surface particularly by large construction
vehicles.

The building would be visible from the surrounding area.

The water treatment plant must be already housed somewhere else as they have been
living there. The heat pump would normally be outside in any case .

The proposed garage is actually 126m2 i.e. 1,356 sq ft which is the size of a detached
house and this perhaps gives a clue as to the nature of the application

2 support -

Cannot see a problem with the garage

properties have been made more appealing in the area and the applicant has done a
good job of the barn conversion

being a widespread area there is a need for a secure garage

the proposed building would be hidden from view.

The application was made invalid and following receipt of revised information, was
subsequently made valid on 9/6/25 and re-publicised.

Letters sent to 7 properties on 10/6/25.
Site notice posted 12/6/25.
Press advert 19/6/25.

8 further representations received.
5 objections and 3 in support.

Objections

Groundwork machinery already doing work on the site on a daily basis, spoiling the
landscape and causing noise pollution. This is a residential and agricultural area and as
such is not the right location for a proposed engineering works. This is Greenbelt land
not an industrial site

Object to change of use to residential (and engineering), and would hate for another
residence to be built on this land, causing further traffic, noise & air pollution, damage to
the already crumbling lane & further disruption from building works.

It is a very open piece of land making it highly visible for miles around. | do not believe it
will add to this area of outstanding natural beauty, but further take away from it.

We have a property on Hawkshaw Lane, use an air source heat pump and a water
filtration system. The elements kept indoors use no more than 1.5m space. Why is a
2-storey 126m2 building required?

The application refers to change of use land to residential. The application title is
ambiguous.

Stated that the proposed engineering works are in relation to a road/driveway to the
proposed garage. It is submitted that works on this road/driveway may already have
started due to the amount of heavy plant machinery operating at the site over the past
months.

This is a confusing re-submission of App 710089. It is not a change of use, it is not that
straightforward. It is an application for the erection of a building in the Green Belt. Itis
a slight variation of the App 68772 which was refused for perfectly obvious and sensible
reasons that still apply .

Page 47



There is no proof of very special circumstances and no visual impact assessment.
Most of the houses nearby do not have garages and manage perfectly well. The site
was stripped of vegetation and prepared for development some time ago to avoid
Biodiversity Net Gain issues. It is a slightly smaller building than before but is still an
unnecessary building and more importantly it does not comply with planning policy .
The original application was refused for a number of reasons, the majority of which are
still relevant and unaddressed.

The development is plainly visible from both nearby footpaths and roadways.

The development will also negatively impact the already poor condition of Hawkshaw
Lane by way of repeated large vehicle access and the ongoing noise and general
disruption to both the neighbourhood and the local wildlife.

No very special Circumstances have been demonstrated.

Support

Believe this construction should be permitted for several reasons:
The proposed garage is set well back from the road and will be largely obscured from
view. It will not affect the aesthetic or character of the surrounding area, which is
predominantly residential and rural in nature. Its location ensures that the visual integrity
of the neighbourhood will be preserved.
They have already completed significant work on this home, all of which has been done
to an exceptional standard. Attention to quality and detail indicates a commitment to
enhancing the property in a manner that aligns with and even improves upon the
standards of the community.
The request is a reasonable and practical one. It will allow the applicant to secure tools,
vehicles or equipment that would otherwise be left outside and at risk. This is not only a
matter of convenience but also of security.
The occupants have made a fantastic job of the renovations and for it to be enhanced
with the proposed building can only add value to the character of the place. | own the
barn and fields down the road and the conversion is a lovely property and a pleasure to
look at.
Really cant see why there should be any objection to the proposals.
The property has been brought back to life from being a derelict barn and all the owner
wants to do is build a garage to protect his vehicles, water filtration system, possible
storage of feed for birds and wildlife..
The current engineering works that is going on is that the owner is making a pond which
will attract more wildlife and improve views for everyone.
The garage will be out of sight to the majority of people

Living in Hawkshaw for over 50 yrs we as a family have to go past the property
everyday and have no objection but support the application and fully support the
application.

Response by applicant

Just for clarity, the proposed 'engineering works' are works to a road/driveway to the
proposed garage.

The garage would not be a commercial use in any way. Just a domestic garage to keep
cars and gardening equipment in.

Also the works that are in progress is a pond that has prior planning consent.

The plans have been further revised (12/9/25) to reduce the footprint of the building from
63sgm to 35.2sgm, height from 4.7m to 4m and change from stone elevations to timber
cladding.

Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control
Committee meeting.

Page 48



Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Public Rights of Way Officer - No response received.

Conservation Officer - No objection

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to condition.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant

Development Plan and Policies

SPD8 DC Policy Guidance Note 8 - New Buildings in the Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

OL7/2 West Pennine Moors

OoL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

H2/3 Extensions and Alterations

JP-82 Carbon and Energy

JP-G1 Landscape Character

JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity
JP-G9 The Green Belt

JP-C2 Digital Connectivity

JP-C5 Streets For All

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Principle
Green belt

The site is designated as Green Belt under PfE JP-G9.

Paragraph 152 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful
to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances.

Paragraph 153 states that when considering any planning application, local planning
authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt.
‘Very special circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.

Paragraph 154 of the NPPF makes it clear that development in the Green Belt is

inappropriate unless one of eight exceptions apply:
a. buildings for agriculture and forestry;

Page 49



b. the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use), including buildings, for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and
burial grounds and allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green
Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

c. the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building;

d. the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;

e. limited infilling in villages;

f. limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and

g. limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land
(including a material change of use to residential or mixed use including residential),
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not
cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

h. Other forms of development provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with
the purposes of including land within it. These are:

i. mineral extraction;

ii. engineering operations;

iii. local transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt
location;

iv. the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction;

v. material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for outdoor sport or
recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds); and

vi. development, including buildings, brought forward under a Community Right to Build
Order or Neighbourhood Development Order.

Case law (most recently Warwick DC vs. SoS Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 2022
EWHC 2145) establishes the following general points with regard to Paragraph 154(c):

o [154(c), formerly 149(c)] is not to be interpreted as being confined to physically attached
structures but that an extension for the purposes of that provision can include structures
which are physically detached from the building of which they are an extension

e that separation alone does not prevent a development from being part of a dwelling, and
that a detached garage could be considered a normal domestic adjunct.

The proposed siting of the garage is approximately 8.5m from the existing dwelling however
topographically, the site is located at a different level to the main house. This is still
considered to be relatively close to the main house and therefore it is considered that
erection of a garage could be considered to be an extension of the dwellinghouse at Higher
Ash Barn.

The revised proposal would reduce the footprint and height significantly, and as such
considered not to result in a disproportionate additions over and above the size of the
original building (Higher Ash Barn).

The proposed garage would be set back within the site and close to established
development. It would be single storey and have a footprint and height of a typical
domestic garage and the timber externality would be appropriate within the character of the
former barn setting.

As such, it is considered the proposed development would be acceptable and comply with

the principles of the NPPF and in particular para 154 (c) compliant and as such there is no
requirement to demonstrate very special circumstances.

Page 50



Landscape Character

The site is within the Holcombe to Greenmount and Higher Summerseat Landscape
Character Area (LCA 22), an area of Open Moorlands and Enclosed Upland Fringes
(West/South Pennines) as assessed by the GM Landscape Character and Sensitivity
Assessment.

Policy JP-G1: Landscape Character states that development within a Landscape Character
Type should reflect and respond to the special qualities and sensitivities of the key
landscape characteristics of its location, including having regard to:

Topography, geology and drainage;

Land use and field patterns;

Semi-natural habitats and woodland cover;
Archaeology and cultural heritage;

Settlement, road pattern and rights of way; and
Views and perceptual qualities.

The interface of new development with the surrounding countryside/landscape is of
particular importance. These transitional areas require well-considered and sensitive
treatment. In particular, opportunities to improve the intactness and condition of the
landscape should be taken.

The proposal has been reduced significantly in footprint and height, and is proposed to be
timber cladded which would sensitively respond to the surrounding landscape without any
undue impact.

Siting and appearance

Garages and outbuildings are normally considered to be an urban element in the Green
Belt. Where garaging and other buildings are required, SPD8 advises that the design
should be subservient to and closely related to existing buildings.

The garage would be located approximately 8.5m from Higher Ash Barn and as such
considered closely related to the host building. It would be a single storey building with a
ridge height of 4m and a footprint of 35.2 sqm and considered a subservient addition within
the site. Elevations would comprise timber cladding and in terms of the size, design and
external appearance would be similar to farm or stable type buildings commonly seen in
such rural locations.

The site is located over 80m away from Hawkshaw Lane and whilst the land rises away
from the lane towards the site, the garage would be set back into the site next to the rear
boundary and therefore not highly visible to views from the west. The ground on which the
garage would be located has also been excavated out which would result in the garage
sitting at a lower position to the Barn and as such less visible from these views.

The proposed garage would also be screened by mature trees to the south and southern
boundary and nestled into the site and located close to the host building as advised in SPD8
and set at a lower level, the development would not be highly visible from the surrounding
area.

It is therefore considered that given the siting, scale and design of the garage, it is
considered the proposed development would not have a significantly harmful impact on the
Landscape Character Area or the visual and special character of the Green Belt location
and as such would comply with policies JP-G1, JP-G9, OL1/2 and SPD8.

Impact on residential amenity

Page 51



The nearest property to the site would be Higher Ash Farm which is located to the north of
the site. This dwelling faces Higher Ash Barn and is set at a slightly higher level by just
over 1m. The proposed outbuilding would be approximately 20m away from the front
elevation of the neighbour's property and would be off-set from direct views. There would
also be a gap retained through the site towards the south when viewed from the neighbour's
property.

Given the distance away and difference in levels, it is considered the proposed development
would not have a significantly harmful impact on this neighbour.

In terms of impacts on the wider area, Hawkshaw Lane lies to the west, approximately 67m
away. There are also 2 public rights of way which cross through the site.

The proposed garage would be positioned in the northern part of the site which is the
farthermost point from public views when travelling along Hawkshaw Lane which is also set
at a lower level. The proposed garage would also be positioned close to the host building
and as such the proposal would be related to the dwelling rather than becoming a sprawled
site.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would not have detrimental
harmful impacts on adjacent properties or views both close to and further afield and as such
would comply with Policies EN1/2 and SPD8.

Heritage

Higher Ash Barn is considered to be a Non-Designated Heritage Asset (NDHA).

Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework states the effect of an application
on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect
non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the
scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.

The proposed outbuilding would have an indirect impact on the setting of the NDHA
identified.

By virtue of the proposals' size, scale, design, materials and resultant massing with the
NDHA the proposal would not represent a level of visual impact on the setting of the NDHA
that would lead to a loss of significance warranting refusal.

Highway issues

The proposed development would not result in any additional traffic or trips to and from the
site.

The proposed garage would facilitate the parking of 2 cars for the barn dwelling.

SPD11 - Parking Standards in bury states that the Council; will only consider garages as
providing a functional car space where the design would genuinely provide for them to be
usable on a casual daily basis.

According to SPD11, minimum internal dimensions for a double garage are 6.4m x 5.5m.
the proposals would have an internal footprint of 8.6m x 6.6m and as such would be a
usable space for storing cars. The proposed garage would also be located adjacent to the
host building and readily accessible.

It is therefore considered from a highway perspective, there would be no associated issues
or concerns and the proposed development would comply with HT2/4 and SPD11.

Ecology

Page 52



Summary
The only potential issue is biodiversity net gain

Bats

Whilst a bat roost was identified previously in the barn under conversion, the additional
proposals for a garage will not directly impact the barn or any habitats that may benefit bats
in the area. GMEU are therefore satisfied that the proposed garage/outbuilding is very
unlikely to affect the conservation status of the local bat population. No further information
or measures are required.

Other Wildlife
The location of the building is hardstanding. It is very unlikely that there will be any other
wildlife issues including to nesting birds. No further information or measures are required.

Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment & Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)
Section 180 of the NPPF 2023 states that the planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. 10% BNG is mandatory under
Schedule 7A of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by schedule 14 of the
Environment Act 2021). The development would be located on hardstanding, which will be
replace with a building. Both negligible value habitats.

With regard biodiversity net gain, GMEU note the development is partly outside the red
edge of the approved barn conversion and therefore the hardstanding on which the
application is located is not covered by the existing permission.  Google earth imagery
indicates that no vegetation has however been present in this location since prior to 2020.
(no vegetation on the 2019 aerial, but clearly vegetated in 2013). Therefore whilst this may
have been brownfield or bare ground in 2020, GMEU are satisfied that no deliberate
damage to vegetated habitats has occurred since the cut-off date for mandatory BNG ie any
works that have occurred were incidental and permitted development and that the
development is exempt under the de minims rule.

As mitigation/enhancement GMEU would recommend one bird box. This would be
conditioned.

Response to objectors

¢ Revised plans have been received to reduce the height and footprint of the building and
change the external materials to timber cladding.

e the change of use of land is required as the application site was not within the
applicant's residential curtilage.

o BNG has been assessed as not required for this development.

e All other issues have been covered in the above report.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Page 53



Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings -
Proposed plans - Location plan, site plan, elevations and floor plans C-267-3 rev G

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

3. Prior to first occupation/use of the development hereby approved, 1 no. electric
vehicle (EV) charging point (minimum 7kW*) per parking space shall be provided.

Certification and photographic evidence of the installation of the agreed electric
vehicle charge points shall be submitted to Local Planning Authority for approval
prior to the development being brought into use. The infrastructure shall be
maintained and operational in perpetuity.

*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to
be used. Further information regarding minimum standards can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/transport/low-emission-and-electric-vehicles.

Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the
development is sustainable and to safeguard residential amenity, public health and
quality of life with respect to Local Air Quality, in accordance with paragraphs
112e, 117e, 187e and 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December
2024) and Places for Everyone Policy JP-S5 (Clean Air).

4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
materials detailed on the approved plan C 267-3 rev G for timber clad elevations.
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to UDP Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and
SPD8.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 253-5320

Page 54



Viewpoints - 71009

Pond

2.

N\

ring

N
/
. w=@E)=E
ADDRESs: Higher Ash Barn, 12 Hawkshaw /
Lane, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4LD S

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 55



71009

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 56



1S abed

IMPORTANT NOTES
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS PLAN

THESE ELEVATIONS ARE DRAFTED TO ALLOW THE PLANNING
AUTHORITY TO MAKE A DECISION ON THE PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT AND FOR NO OTHER PURPOSE. THESE ELEVATIONS
ARE NOT BUILDING REGULATION COMPLIANT AND SHOULD NOT BE
, | RELIED UPON AS SUCH. THE DECISION NOTICE (WHEN AVAILABLE)
{, | SHALL PROVIDE THE EXACT DIMENSIONS OF THE PROPOSED
BUILDING AND SHOULD BE RELIED UPON. THESE PLANS SHOULD
NOT BE USED AS DEFINITIVE AND ANY MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE
TAKEN AND CHECKED FROM THE PROPOSED SITE.

235.5m

Electric Car
Charging Point

Proposed new
| 100 timber T&G doors

5500.0
Garage
Proposed Garage Front Elevation
Scale (1:100)

N Proposed finish

0 be T&G |
_- -- _- - - timber cladding |

Location Plan
Proposed Garage Ground Floor Plan Scale (1:1250)

Scale (1:50 . ©Crown Copyright and database rights 0S Licence no.
) Proposed Garage Rear Elevation PN S SecRRRR T 202 O3 e o o0
Scale (1:100)

Spring

0

Higher Ash Farm

HAWKSHAW LANE

Proposed Garage Side Elevation
Seale (171007 Existing Site P
Scale (1:500)

g 20
S,

lan

h Proposed Volume of
New Garage
w I
115m?
3 G. | Garage footprint amended at the request of the L.P.A. 11/09125.
P [ —————Ta g
s, D. Amended at the request of the L.P.A. 28104125
A P [
=l . . B. Additional information noted on plan at the request of LA. 16104124
P r o p O S e d G a r a g e S i d e E I e V a t i O n Qe\/is;;d:‘mn-\mwm-uannoxeﬂonphnluhem«enm.k ;:tzu
Scale (1:100) o
>
/A:/
(
L .
\,
S~ X
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, . ((oraving Tite
- - wa: . Proposed Garage ‘
| : 1 - : g
" \ ) ('ste Location 1
4 ‘? + Higher Ash Barn, Hawkshaw,
d | . . BL8 4LD
SeLing Mouse 5rouns Froor Lo r | Draving Stalus
aluinitionze iraundFloct L errecrrrrgrren) = [ Proposed Plans ]
= e . Dete; Drawnby:
= = + . fmos/os/zozz ][ JHolden ]
Scale. Ref. Revision
oposed Section A-A Proposed Section B-B =} ; @:50”1100@’“}[0267'3 G
roposed Site Plan
le (1:200) Scale (1:200) P i Glent
Scale (1:200) Mr & Mrs Packun




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley ltem

Applicant: on behalf of Prestwich Muslim Welfare Trust
Location: 52 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OER

Proposal: Demolition of the Existing Mosque and Community Facility and the Erection of a
Replacement Mosque and Community Facility (F1 (f)).

Application Ref: 71422/Full Target Date: 11/04/2025
Recommendation: Minded to Approve
The application was deferred from the September meeting to carry out a site visit,

The application is subject to a s106 Agreement to secure a contribution towards
additional parking enforcement officers.

Description

The application relates to an existing single storey building which serves as a mosque and
teaching facility for the local Muslim community. The building sits within a rectangular
shaped plot, circa 1350 sq m in size and is set back from the frontage by approx 19m,
running linear and adjacent to the north western boundary. Due to the gradual rise in levels
through the site, the building sits at a higher level to Bury Old Road.

There is a private car park in front of the building for 17 cars and a sperate public car park to
the south east which shares the access off Bury Old Road. The site is bounded by a 1.5m
wall along the Bury Old Road frontage behind which is a timber fence with a wall and fence
bounding the rear of the site

To the north east are houses on Woodthorpe Grange, behind the site boundary are houses
on Woodthorpe Court to the north east and to the south west across Bury Old Road is a row
of shops designated as a Local shopping centre which are served by a separate access
road and lay-by for parking. There are houses which continue along the frontage of Bury
Old Road to the south.

The building has been extended in an ad hoc manner over a period of years and the
building had deteriorated in its state. The applicant states that it provides limited facilities for
the Mosque community and is no longer viable or feasible to continue to add to the existing
building.

This application seeks to demolish the existing building and provide a new place of worship,
teaching and community facilities.

The footprint of the proposed building would be sited approximately 6.5m from the back
edge of the pavement on Bury Old Road and would project towards the rear of the site by
27m. It would run linear to the boundary with Nos 2 and 4 Woodthorpe Grange and would
be 16.5m wide. A landscape buffer and paved area would be provided from the front
entrance to Bury New Road and a paved pathway would continue round the perimeter of
the building for access purposes.

Twenty parking spaces in total would be provided, 11 (including 2 accessible spaces) would

Page 59

04



located in a row along the south eastern elevation and a further 9 spaces at the back of the
site along the northern boundary where there would also be an area for a drop-offs and a
cycle stand for 18 bikes and bin store.

The existing shared site access would continue to be used and there would be no loss of
parking provided within the public car park as a result of the development

On the matter of design and appearance, the building would be 3 storey in height
comprising a lower ground floor, ground floor and first floor which would be set back from
the main front elevation by 5m. Due to the gradient of the site and difference in levels, part
of the site would be excavated and the building would be located at a lower ground level.

The design of the building would be bespoke, and the building designed to be identifiable for
a particular religious community. The build would comprise sandstone elevations with
ashlar stone surrounds and detailing with full height glazed openings along the front and
side elevation facing the car park. The north western elevation would be blank and the rear
elevation would have windows to part of the ground and first floors and a second access to
the back of the site.

Whilst the size of the building and footprint area would increase, the intention is to provide
the same but improved community facilities.

The lower ground floor would provide a youth recreation room, library and community
meeting space, ablution room, storage and WC facilities. On the ground floor would be the
prayer hall with 200 sgm of floorspace (the same floorspace as the existing prayer hall),
mortuary, ablution room, office and storage and WC facilities.

The first floor would contain the teaching areas comprising separate male and female
lecture/teaching rooms and 4 classrooms, an office and store. Access through the building
would be via lift or stairs.

The main entrance would be on the front with a secondary entrance at the rear.

The applicant has provided a breakdown of the existing and proposed floor areas as
follows -

Existing
Whole building - 466 sgm

Main prayer hall - 200 sgm
Office - 20 sqm

Circulation areas - 71 sqm
Classroom 70 sqm
Ablution area - 72 sqm

Proposed
Whole building - 1205 sgm

Lower ground floor level - 410 sgm (youth recreation room 134 sgm, library and community
space 111 sgm, ablutions 12 sgm, office, WC's and plant room 47 sqm)

Ground floor - 410 sgm (main prayer hall - 200 sqm, mortuary 21 sgm, ablutions 24 sqm,
toilets, mortuary 21 sqm, office, store, WC's and plant 43 sqm)

First floor - 385 sqm (male and female teaching lecture rooms 166 sqm, 4 classrooms 67
sqgm, office, store and plant 28 sqm).

Page 60



It is stated that the proposal would not intensify the use at any one time to what is already
provided within the existing building. The purpose being to provide better quality and more
functional spaces and facilities, with no increase in the number of people who would visit the
main prayer room or number of children taught.

The size of the proposed main prayer hall would not change from what is currently provided,
staying the same size at 200 sqm.

Relevant Planning History

02891/E - Demolition of existing mosque and Islamic Centre and proposal for the erection of
replacement mosque/Islamic Centre (Class F1(f)) - Enquiry completed 13/05/2024

53283 - Single storey extension (retrospective) - Refused 24/01/2011

56824 - Single storey extensions to form washroom facilities and kitchen (retrospective) -
Approve with Conditions 21/01/2014

60004 - Temporary Siting (for 3 years) of 1 no. Portacabin for use as a Classroom and
Alterations to Car Park Layout - Approve with Conditions 27/07/2016

68057 - Extension of temporary permission of 3 years for retention of existing portacabin for
use as a classroom with the addition of main entrance extension and toilet facility at rear;
Alterations to car park layout - Approve with Conditions 24/06/2022

Publicity

Letters sent to 31 properties on 15/1/25.
Site notice posted 21/1/25

Press advert 23/1/25

A total of 1180 representations have been received

Objections - 164
Support - 1009 and a petition with 1630 signatures
Comments - 7

Objections (includes 3 objections from planning agents on behalf of residents)

Parking and traffic issues

¢ Already insufficient parking available to accommodate the mosque's users.

o During prayer times, vehicles park at corners, block residential driveways, park on
pavements and create hazardous conditions for other road users. ,Enforcement has
either not been carried out effectively or has been entirely absent, allowing the problem
to worsen.

e As the responsible authority, Bury Council must take immediate and sustained action to
enforce parking laws and ensure that residents are no longer subject to repeated
obstruction and inconvenience.

e The current situation is not sustainable and places an unfair burden on local residents,
in direct violation of the Council's statutory duties under the Highways Act 1980, the
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, and the Traffic Management Act 2004.

e Congestion caused by uncontrolled parking is restricting access for emergency vehicles
and other road users, creating a serious risk to public

e Inadequate parking capacity for the anticipated rise in visitors

e The Council owned car park is barricaded off and unusable for shoppers and marshals
have not resolved any issues.

¢ Over 2 and a half times bigger than existing, over 3 storeys and only 3 additional
parking spaces.

¢ Negligible net gain of parking for 3 extra spaces

Page 61



o As local residents we constantly face parking issues at prayer times.

e Parking issues have been raised with local councillors on numerous occasions and no
resolutions found

o The development relies totally on the existing access to Brooklands Car Park and 2
bays will not be used during drop of classes to enable vehicles to manoeuvre

¢ Insufficient information to understand travel distances of the congregation.

e The applicants appear to have limited control over the access and no control of the
public car park.

o Clear current worshippers do not find modes other than the car to travel to the site. No
concrete strategy is offered to reduce car use.

¢ No formal agreement to secure off-street parking and needs a full and transparent
assessment of traffic and parking impacts and a realistic mitigation strategy.

e Proposal to provide parking at Heaton Park would not be feasible. There is no evidence
of formal agreement, control, or long-term viability. Lack of enforceable usage control
make this proposal speculative and unfit to be relied upon in determining a major
development.

Impact on residential amenity

e The proposed development is out of scale and character with the surrounding residential
area

¢ Overbearing and overlooking to adjacent houses

e Impacts on privacy

¢ Noise and disturbances with the extended operational hours and increased occupancy

Environmental issues

¢ Increased traffic will exacerbate air pollution in an area that already struggles with clean
air standards

e Additional vehicles and congestion will be worse and contrary to objectives of reducing
pollution and improving sustainability.

o Tree removal with environmental impacts

Design

e Overspill of people at the front will block pavements and cause obstructions

e Imposing, dominant to the streetscene

e The architectural design is unsympathetic to the area and the features are incongruous

with the existing terraces, detached houses, and shops.

Materials of white render on images but white sandstone on plans

Impact is compounded by the selection of white coloured materials over 3 storeys.

Little or no space for landscaping

Contrary to what the applicant says, an increased size of 250% will significantly intensify

the use of the building and people using it.

Other issues

e Could set a precedent for further non-residential developments in this quiet residential
area.

e A mortuary is now proposed - a number of funeral processions would therefore start at
the mosque - intensified use

e Should find an alternative location which can accommodate the scale of building and
parking needed

e Strain on local services due to increased visitors and users causing more issues for
residents.

e Continuous overlapping of activities is a significant intensification of use.

e The schedule of activities was submitted late in the application process and raises
questions over the true extent of the original description.

e The Schedule of Activities and Parking Addendum were both submitted after the formal
consultation window closed. These documents materially alter the understanding of the
proposed development’s scale and impact.

Page 62



Introducing these documents at this stage undermines transparency and procedural
fairness for neighbours, consultees, and members of the public.

Request that the Council refuse the application as submitted or require a revised
application that provides a complete and transparent mitigation strategy backed by
secured mechanisms, and demonstrably aligned with adopted parking standards and
national policy.

Objection received which was reported in the Supplementary Agenda for the 2nd
September Planning Committee meeting -

Write on behalf of a group of concerned residents and the officer's report now prepared
for Committee.

Formally request that this matter be deferred due to critical omissions in the assessment
of parking impacts, which undermine the integrity of the consultation process and the
reliability of the recommendation being presented.

Despite the extensive number of objections submitted by local residents, the volume of
complaints to Bury Council and Greater Manchester Police regarding existing parking
issues, and the submission of additional planning documents by the applicant, these
concerns remain substantively unaddressed in the officer's report and by the statutory
consultee response from the Highway Authority.

The Highway Authority's final response is dated 19 August 2025. This is a crucial date,
as it falls after the applicant submitted their Schedule of Activities (14 April 2025) and
their updated Addendum Travel Plan (July 2025). These documents provide a
significant revision to the scale and frequency of use proposed for the site, introducing
extended hours of activity throughout weekdays, weekends, and evenings. Yet despite
this, the Highways response makes no reference whatsoever to the Schedule of
Activities, nor does it evaluate the implications of this more intensive use on local traffic
and parking.

It is clear that the current proposal would offer a net gain of only three parking
spaces-increasing from 17 to 20-while greatly increasing activity at the site.

There is no evidence that the applicant has provided any meaningful mitigation, and the
Highway Authority appears not to have tested the submitted travel data against Bury
Council's adopted parking standards or wider national guidance, including the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraphs 110 and 111, which require that new
development avoids creating unacceptable impacts on the road network.

The current situation on surrounding streets is already untenable. Residents have
documented numerous instances of blocked driveways, pavement obstructions, and
inappropriate parking on corners and yellow lines. These are issues that have been
repeatedly reported and are a known problem for the area. Yet the officer's report
provides no analysis of how this development would affect that existing pressure, nor
how the proposal would help manage or alleviate the well-evidenced problems that
already exist.

To proceed to Committee based on this incomplete and inadequate assessment would
not only be procedurally improper but would risk a decision that is legally and
substantively unsound. The Highways Authority had the necessary documents in their
possession when they issued their final response but failed to address them. Their
conclusions therefore cannot be relied upon to demonstrate compliance with local or
national transport policies.

We urge the Council to defer this application and require a full reassessment by the
Highways Authority that explicitly considers the Schedule of Activities, Addendum Travel
Plan, and the numerous local objections relating to the safety, accessibility and amenity
of residents affected by existing and future parking pressures.

Support

Page 63



o Keeping this mosque ensures continued contribution to education, charity, and social
harmony, preserving diverse, inclusive, and thriving community for generations.

e Desperately need a new mosque and community facility. the existing building is not fit
for purpose.

e There is only one in Bury South within a 6 mile radius to serve the community

e Current building cannot accommodate the worshippers at prayers times nor is it suitable
for the children's classes that take place their every evening.

e A new mosque is not just about increasing physical space; it's about expanding
opportunities for spiritual growth, community engagement, and collective well-being.

e The proposed extension will allow for improved facilities, educational growth, community
Services

e There are several volunteers from the mosque, identifiable by their high-visibility jackets,
who are on-site to assist with parking and ensure minimal disruption in the area

e The new mosque design aims to be modern and environmentally sustainable,
demonstrating a commitment to reducing carbon footprint.

e The proposals has been reduced in height from the full 3 storeys

o There are no windows which would overlook neighbouring properties

e Parking, while currently a challenge during specific times of the week will be significantly
improved by the proposed 20 spaces

e Arrangements have been made to rent out a nearby car park to accommodate additional
vehicles.

e This development is not expected to increase footfall

¢ Improved toilet and ablution facilities would be provided and upgrade a poor building

¢ An open space at the front would minimise crowding and 2 entrances would prevent
congestion.

e The mosque has the potential to strengthen inter faith relations and contribute to the
social fabric of Prestwich.

Petition of support

The planning application fits in with the Bury Council's 'Inclusion Vision for Bury 2030 - and

Inclusion Strategy and Objectives 2021-2025

e The mosque is an asset to the community of Bury South in terms of its numerous
activities that are held and to maintain this community structure and facility which has
been vastly beneficial over the years.

The proposed building would not result in an increased congregation but will allow for much

needed necessary facilities

e Careful to make sure the building would fit in with the surrounding area and the height of
the building would not surpass the other surrounding buildings. The additional space in
the proposed building

e the additional space would be for accommodating extra facilities which would not
increase the flow of traffic as they are no part of main Friday prayer facilities. In short the
number of parishioners would remain the same in the new building and numbers
attending Friday prayers would remain the same.

There would be 20 parking spaces excluding the 48 spaces in Maccabi and excluding bury

Council car park.

e SCP (an independent organisation) carried out a parking assessment which concluded
there was capacity on street to park.

¢ The number attending the mosque would not increase

e Bury council's parking standards are set out as maximums and as such the proposal
does not need to meet these maximum requirements. in context the site is in a highly
sustainable location for walking and cycling.

¢ should not be refused on highway grounds, as there is sufficient evidence there will not
be an impact on capacity or safety

Page 64



There should be a review of the Travel plan and marshalling plan and are open to
agreeing a localised traffic plan for a residents parking scheme.

Response to objections by applicant
The applicant has provided a response to the objections and concerns raised, which are
summarised as follows -

Parking and Traffic Issues

Proactively sought to address both current and potential issues arising from the
proposed development.

Engaged transport specialists who carried out a parking survey of the area focusing on
peak prayer tomes, particularly a Friday.

The management has successfully implemented a traffic marshal system and which has
significantly reduced congestion, leading to a proposal to continue the Traffic Marshal
System on Fridays.

Whilst the new building would have a larger footprint than the current, its function and
purpose would remain unchanged.

The payer hall would remain the same size as the existing at 200 sqm. The classrooms
would be purpose built with segregated teaching and bathroom facilities.

The mosque serves a local community where majority of visitors reside within walking
distance, typically less than a five-minute journey. The site is in a highly sustainable
location, encouraging walking and cycling, with a significant Muslim population and a
relatively low level of car ownership.

The proposed development aligns with sustainable transport measures.

The development includes cycle stands to promote alternative modes of transport.

Pollution

The development encourages sustainable transport options and the implementation of
travel plans will further mitigate any potential environmental impact.

In respect of traffic concerns related to the nearby school, it is located 0.9miles away
from the mosque and school dismissal times do not overlap with peak periods.
Initiatives including cycling club, walking club will encourage healthier and more
environmentally friendly commuting options.

Scale and design concerns

It is not feasible or viable for continued extensions to the building which have in the past
been ad hoc and not relate well to the building or area.

The proposed building has been scaled down and reduced in height form initial designs.
It still addresses the streetscene but set back from the frontage to align better with the
surrounding development pattern.

a significant number of religious buildings are a focal point of the community and it
would be uncharacteristic for them to be hidden away. They should be open, visible,
available and solidify the character of a particular area.

The build would not be much higher than the adjacent dwellings on Woodthorpe grange
and only 2m taller than No 48 Bury old road. This is due to the raised levels of the
neighbours properties and flat roof design of the proposed mosque.

There is significant separation distance between the proposed building and the dwelling
at 48 Bury Old Road (32m).

Screen planting would also be provided between the highway and the building to soften
the buildings appearance within the street.

Given the above, the height and size would not appear out of scale or character to the
detriment of the surrounding built environment. The build would make better use of the
site in this sustainable location.

Page 65



Impact on Residential Amenity and Privacy

e To the houses on Woodthorpe Grange/Court, there is tree planting along a sizable
boundary fence and wall which greatly limits views into the site. There would be a
distance of 37m from the rear of these houses to the side elevation of the building. The
dwellings on Woodthorpe Court are positioned on a substantially greater land level and
the build would also retain a distance of 27m to the backs of these properties.

e |tis considered height above existing ground levels would not represent an overbearing
or dominant feature and would meet the interface distances between properties as set
out by the Council. Given the level differences and boundary, there would not be
overlooking or privacy issues.

e A daylight and sunlight assessment has been carried out which concluded impacts on
neighbours would be minimal.

¢ On-site noise monitoring concluded no adverse impact would be experienced.

e The new layout will improve vehicle flow and reduce congestion, with dedicated drop-off
points and increased parking spaces.

Social and Community Impact

e This is an existing established facility which has operated from the site for more than 20
years. Generally, it has an excellent relationship with all faith groups in the surrounding
area.

¢ The new mosque would address community needs by providing a purpose built facility
catering for all ages and genders to offer better quality facilities and services.

¢ Would provide a long term and durable use for the future

Environmental Impact

e A detailed landscaping scheme is included as part of the development to ensure
biodiversity within the site and bat and bird boxes provided within the development.

¢ BNG would be provided off-site to meet biodiversity objectives.

¢ vehicle emission would not increase to cause harm to air pollution.

Economic Impact

e The number of attendees would not increase, the building would be more fit for purpose.

e The value of properties is not a material consideration. This would be a local
community project and would enhance the social and amenity benefits in the area.

Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control
Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions.

Borough Engineer - Drainage Section - No comments received
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objection

Waste Management - No objection

Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - No comments received
United Utilities (Water and waste) - Recommend a drainage condition

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions

Property & Technical Services - Estates Consultancy - No response received.
Prestwich Village Neighbourhood Forum - No response received.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Development Plan and Policies
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Page 66



EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

JP-C2 Digital Connectivity

JP-C5 Streets For All

JP-C6 Walking and Cycling

JP-C8 Transport Requirements of New Development
JP-P1 Sustainable Places

JP-P3 Cultural Facilities

JP-S1 Sustainable Development

JP-S2 Carbon and Energy

JP-S4 Flood Risk and the Water Environment
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Public Sector Equality Duty

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act

2010 and associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due

regard for:

e The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

e The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and person who do not share it;

e The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the
protected equality groups.

Religion or belief is a protected characteristic under the 2010 Act and the main report sets
out how, in considering this application, regard has been had to how any implications in
relation to equality is based on objective material planning considerations.

Principle

PfE Policy JP-P3 - Cultural Facilities - Seeks to protect existing cultural and community
venues, facilities and uses and supports the development of new cultural venues in town
centres and places with good public transport connectivity. The policy also seeks to promote
new, or enhancing existing, locally-distinct clusters of cultural facilities, especially where
they can provide an anchor for local regeneration and town centre renewal.

UDP Policy CF1/1 - Location of New Community Facilities takes into account the following

Page 67



factors -

e impact on residential amenity and the local environment;

traffic generation and car parking provision;

the scale and size of the development;

where applicable, access to shops and other services;

if the use is intended to serve a local community or catchment area, the suitability of the
chosen location in relation to that community or catchment area;

e accessibility by private and public transport;

¢ the needs and requirements of the disabled.

The site and building has an established use as a place for public worship and teaching and
the principle of the redevelopment of the site for the same purpose in land use terms would
be acceptable.

The main issues relate to the scale, design and appearance of the building, access and
parking and impacts on the surrounding area. arising from the constraints of the existing
building's size and state of dilapidation.

These issues are covered in the report below.
Layout and siting

The layout and siting of the building have been largely informed by factors including the
need to provide a more functional, accessible, and safer facility to serve the needs of the
community, balanced with providing parking whilst being sensitive to the surrounding
residential properties and the relationship of the building within the streetscene.

Having investigated various options, it is proposed to set the building back from the
pedestrian footway on Bury Old Road by approximately 6.5m. This would result in the
frontage positioned halfway between No 2 Woodthorpe Grange to the north (set close to the
main road)) and No 50 Bury Old Road to the south (which is set further back) and as such it
is considered the building would integrate appropriately between the existing built
development and assimilate within the streetscene.

There would be a paved area and landscape buffer which would provide a safe area away
from the pavement and highway for people to meet before entering the building. Planting
along the frontage would also soften the front of the site.

The building would extend 27m towards the rear of the site and would cover a footprint area
of approximately 460 sqm.  Around the perimeter of the building, a paved pathway would
be provided which would facilitate the safe movement of pedestrians away from the car
parks and facilitate access to the rear of the building and the secondary entrance.

The proposed parking would now be moved to the side and rear of the building to provide a
total of 20 parking. There would be 11 spaces (including 2 accessible spaces) located in a
row along the south eastern elevation and 9 spaces along the rear boundary.

Moving the parking away from the frontage would remove the sense of parking at the front
and allow the building to address the streetscene in a positive way.

The rear of the site would provide a bin store and cycle parking for 18 bikes.

The development would continue to use the existing access which is shared with the
adjacent public car park and which ramps upwards into the site from Bury Old Road.

Page 68



Whilst the proposed re-development of the site would result in changes to the current
layout, including size and position of the building's footprint, location of the parking which is
now proposed to the side and rear of the building and servicing and store area, the usability
of the site would be bettered for pedestrians by creating a safer and route to and from the
area and around the building and would maximise the parking potential. The set back of
the building from the highway and planting and paved area to the frontage would also
provide a relief within the street scene.

The proposed development would deliver a practical and functional facility for the
community as opposed to the existing building which has past served its purpose.

It is therefore considered the proposed development would be acceptable and comply with
policies EN1/2, CF1/1 and JP-P3.

Scale, design and appearance

The final design of the building has been influenced by a number of factors. Providing a
usable and modern building with segregated facilities for children including welfare facilities,
accessible and safe for all was a critical consideration for the applicant in terms of the how
the building could serve the community now and into the future, whilst being aware of the
surrounding development and sensitive receptors.

Having scaled back the building from initial design stages, where a 3 storey build set close
to the front of Bury Old road was proposed, and whilst in parts the build would still be 3
storeys, the second floor would be set back from the ground and first floors by 5m and the
footprint moved back 6.5m from the road frontage and as such this would aide in reducing
the massing and scale within the streetscene.

Comparative to the surrounding properties, which are residential in both character and
scale, the building would not be dissimilar in height and this is due to the topography of the
site where houses on Bur Old Road to the south east are set back from the road and in a
higher position, the elevated houses on Woodthorpe Court to the north east.

Land levels within the site would also be reduced and the flat roof design of the building
would aide in the integration of the building within the streetscape and therefore not overly
dominant or overbearing within the context of the surrounding area.

In terms of the actual design and elevations, the building form derives from a specific
religious community and this is acknowledged in the design features which have been
incorporated, including ornamental infill patterns, feature arches and domes and main
entrance arch above which would be the name of the place of worship.  Aluminium curtain
wall glazing would also feature primarily on the south east elevation facing the car park and
on the front elevation. The primary material would be a sandstone build with ashlar
surrounds and detailing and the final palette of materials would be secured by condition.

As a building to serve a specific need and community group, the building has a role to play
comparative to the surrounding existing development and as such it is accepted that the
design approach reasonably identifies the intended form and function.

It is therefore considered that the scale, design and appearance would be acceptable within
the streetscene and in this location and as such considered to be acceptable and comply
with policies CF1/1, EN1/2, JP-P3 and the principles of the NPPF.

Impact on residential amenity
There are residential properties to three boundaries of the site.

Page 69



Woodthorpe Grange

To the north west are houses on Woodthorpe Grange. The building would be set 1.5m
away from the shared boundary with Nos 2 and 4 and would run linear to this shared
boundary.

The applicant has carried out a daylight and sunlight assessment to these properties given
they are the closest and likely be the most affected.

The study shows that to the windows at Nos 2 and 4 Woodthorpe Grange, the loss of
vertical sky would equate to no more than 1.8% and loss of sunlight during both the summer
and winter months would be no more than 2% as a result of the development.

There would be some overshadowing to the gardens of these houses but it would be at the
far end of the gardens and affect a thin strip of land to the western side of the garden only.

The building would be approximately 37m from the rear elevations of the houses and whilst
visible from these dwellings and gardens, there are substantial trees along the rear
boundary which would screen the new building to some degree.

It is therefore considered that there would not be a significantly adverse impact on these
neighbours in terms of overshadowing, loss of light or overbearing relationship.

Woodthorpe Court

To the rear of the site are houses on Woodthorpe Court which are set at a higher level to
the site. The proposed site section plan shows that apart from the projecting structures on
the roof of the proposed building, given the levels differences and that the lower ground
floor would be excavated into the land, the top of the main roof would be no higher than the
dwellings on Woodthorpe Grange and the relationship similar to that of a 2 storey building.
There would be a separation distance of 26m.

Given the level of separation and difference in levels it is considered the proposed
development would be acceptable and there would not be a detrimental impact on
occupiers of Woodthorpe Court.

Bury Old Road

To the south of the site are houses which front Bury Old Road. No 50 is located next to the
boundary with the public car park and there would be a distance of more than 28m from the
side elevation of the dwelling to the new building.

Given the distance away and the intervening car park and that windows on the side
elevation of this dwelling appear to be to non-habitable rooms it is considered that impacts
on occupiers would be limited.

Whilst the development would result in a larger sized building in terms of both its footprint
and height on the site, with the separation distances and level differences to the adjacent
houses, impacts on privacy, outlook and sunlight are considered not to be adverse or
detrimental to impact neighbours to any significant degree.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be acceptable and comply
with policies CF1/1 and EN1/2.

Highway issues

PfE Policy JP-C8 - Transport Requirement of New Developments - requires new
development to be located and designed to enable and encourage walking, cycling and
public transport use, to reduce the negative effects of car dependency, and help deliver high
quality, attractive, liveable and sustainable environments. Appropriate provision for
deliveries and servicing should be provided.

Page 70



UDP Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development requires development to make
adequate provision for parking and servicing requirement.

SPD 11 - Parking Standards in Bury provides further detail and specifies that for a place of
worship, 1 parking space per 10 sgm of public floorspace would need to be provided and 1
cycle space per 200 sgm.

Parking overview

The main parking problems arise reflecting the Friday prayer time, from 12pm to 3pm,
which is the time the building is most intensely used and visited. Attendance numbers are
generally in the region of between 100 and 150 people.

Residents who live nearby and local businesses have objected on the matter of parking,
with local streets heavily parked, fly parking on the footways of Bury Old Road, cars
blocking driveways and complaints of not being able to park on the adjacent public car park
adjoining the site.

This has been a problem for a period of time and continues to be a problem.

The existing mosque car park provides 17 spaces and this gets full early on at main Friday
prayers. Similarly the adjacent public car park is heavily parked at this time. Under an
informal agreement which has been in place for a few years, additional parking at the
Maccabi sports centre 170m to the north is used as an 'overflow' car park for those
attending Friday prayers although there is no formalised agreement and it cannot be relied
on should the sports club decide to no longer make this available to the mosque.

This application proposes to provide 20 spaces which would be located along the side
elevation next to the public car park and at the rear of the building.

Whilst the building itself would have a combined floor area of circa 2 and 1/2 times that of
the existing over 3 floors, it is important to note that the size of the proposed main prayer
hall at 200 sgm would be the same as currently provided in the existing building and would
serve only the existing congregation.

However, as there is an existing problem and potential for increased capacity of the
building, the proposed new development should seek to improve current conditions.

The Highway Authority have maintained concerns about the increased floor area and scale
of the proposed development, with limited proposed on site parking and the existing
problem of on street parking without any contingencies or additional parking formally
secured off-site

To summarise the issues -

e There would be an increase in floor space in the new building comparative to the
existing building (from 466 sgm to 1205 sgm) and therefore the potential for a worsened
parking situation should some or all of the uses be available at one time, particularly if
the uses occur at the main Friday prayer time

e Only 3 additional parking spaces (20 in total) for the increased floorspace.

e Existing and unacceptable pressure on street parking in the area during main Friday
prayer times

e Lack of any formal and long term agreement to provide additional parking in the vicinity.

Applicant's proposals for parking and alternative travel

The applicant has carried out a travel survey to understand how attendees travel to the

mosque. Of those who responded to the survey, 70% travelled to the mosque as a one-off

Page 71



journey with 30% on their way to or from another location.

A significant proportion, 55% chose to travel by car, 31% travelled on foot, 8% car shared,
5% cycled and 1% arrived by public transport. There is clearly scope for a change in
behaviour about the way some attendees travel to the site.

In finding a way forward, a number of initiatives have been secured to address the obvious
parking problems which occur at the Friday prayer time.

Contribution to additional parking enforcement

In discussion with the Highway Authority, the applicant has agreed to make a financial
contribution of £6,000 which would be secured by a s106 legal agreement to fund additional
parking enforcement officers. This contribution would initially cover a 12 month period and
would be reviewed annually with periodical monitoring to identify how many tickets have
been issued to those visiting the mosque and when the tickets were issued.

Should unlawful parking on the streets cease, or noticeably decline at the main Friday
prayer times, then a revised contribution could be negotiated and agreed with the applicant.
Annual reviews however would remain in place should the parking problems arise again in
the future.

The applicant has also agreed to a condition to restrict the use of the mosque so that during
the Friday prayer times, no other programmed activity, teaching session of any other facility
be provided or available, or that any other part of the mosque be hired out for use whilst
Friday prayers take place.

During the week and evenings, there appears to be a much lesser problem with parking.
That said, the building's footprint would significantly increase comparative to what is there
now and the building could offer a combination of facilities at any one time.

Building utilisation - combined uses and times

In terms of the different uses and the times they would be held, the applicant has provided a
breakdown of each use and the times they would take place.

Prayer Hall - upper ground floor
Prayers -5 times daily and up to 25 attendees.
Friday prayers - two afternoon gatherings between 100-150 attendees

Youth recreation space - lower ground floor
Main use at weekend for youth activities

Library and community space - lower ground floor
New facility for public use and drop-ins

4 classrooms/lecture room - first floor
Children's education classes, Monday to Friday 5-7pm, up to 50 attendees
Adult education, weekends 10am to 4pm, up to 20 people

The above breakdown shows that after the Friday prayer time, the next popular facility
would be the children's education classes where 4 classrooms would be provided. In total
the classrooms would comprise 67 sqm of floor area. There is currently one classroom
which is 70 sgm in area.

The proposed teaching rooms would provide better educational facilities and enable
different year groups and curriculums to be taught. There would not be an increase in floor
area or the number of children attending the classes.

Page 72



Adult education would be at the weekends, limited to approximately 20 people.
The youth recreation room would mainly be used at weekends with expected limited
activities.

In terms of the other uses, there would be less demand for parking than for the Friday
prayer time.

This notwithstanding, there is the opportunity for services and facilities to expand and for
more people to use and visit the mosque at other times of the week. It is this 'unknown'
which still gives rise to concerns that parking problems could occur on the local highway.
This being the case, the S106 contribution would cover additional enforcement officers
during the week for a period of time. Again, this would be monitored and if enforcement
officers are no longer needed or if no problem arises, the scope would be reviewed.

The legal agreement and contribution would necessarily need to be fluid and flexible and be
so designed to ensure controls are in place in the event future parking issues arise but also
be reasonable and rationale for the applicant.

Other parking initiatives

The applicant has also secured parking spaces off site at Heaton Park (accessed from
Sheepfoot Lane). The agreement with the park would secure 25 permits which could be
used 24 hours a day 7 days a week, to be renewed on an annual basis. The permits would
be allocated those who regularly drive to the mosque who would then park up and either
walk to the mosque or catch a pre-arranged minibus for the Friday prayer times.

Should the agreement cease, the applicant would need to secure off-site parking elsewhere.
This is written into a Travel Plan which would be conditioned.

The Travel Plan also sets out a number of objectives and targets to reduce the reliance on
the car and promote alternative modes of travel. Measures proposed are as follows -

e Travel awareness - provide a travel information pack for all attendees, to include maps
of the local area highlighting public transport routes and local cycle and walking routes,
taxi contact details.

e Promote walking initiatives

¢ Promote cycling including provision of cycle stands and storage (9 cycle stands
proposed which would comply with SPD11).

e Promote car sharing

e The Travel Plan would be monitored and reviewed annually and it is hoped the secured
off-site parking and these initiatives would see a reduction in car users.

The applicant has confirmed they are agreeable to the condition for the Travel Plan to be
adhered to.

The informal agreement with Maccabi would also continue.
Conclusion

There are a number of factors to consider -

e The current building operates lawfully with a prayer room floorspace of 200 sqm and this
proposal would offer the exact same floor area for the prayer room.

e A condition would be included to restrict any other facility or activity at the mosque
during Friday peak prayer time.

e Agreed contribution towards funding additional parking enforcement officers

Page 73



o Off-site parking at Heaton Park which would be secured by conditioning the travel plan.

e Informal arrangement with Maccabi sports club

e Fallback position that the existing building could continue to operate at the same
capacity during Friday prayer times without any additional benefits.

e The site is also in a highly sustainable and accessible area. PfE Policy JP-C1: An
Integrated Network seeks to deliver an accessible, low carbon Greater Manchester by
delivering a pattern of development that minimises both the need to travel and the
distance travelled by unsustainable modes and by locating and designing development
to deliver a significant increase in the proportion of trips that can be made by walking,
cycling and public transport. The applicant is committed to promoting sustainable
modes of travel to and from the mosque which are detailed in the Travel Plan (to be
conditioned).

It is therefore considered that given the above, in view of the contribution to fund additional
parking enforcement, controls which would be put in place and the applicant's commitment
to working with the Council, the proposals seek to minimise adverse highway impacts which
would otherwise warrant refusal of the application on highway grounds.

The proposed development is therefore considered acceptable and would comply with
policies CF1/1, EN1/2, HT2/4,JP-P3, JP-C1, JP-C5 and JP-C6.

Drainage
United Utilities (UU) have been notified of the application.

Following review of the revised Drainage Strategy, UU have confirmed there is no
objection in principle and recommend a condition that the development be carried out in
accordance with the submitted strategy.

Ecology

Summary
Ecological Issues include nesting birds, wall cotoneaster and biodiversity net gain.

Bats

An updated bat assessment has been provided. As previously the building was assessed
as having negligible bat roosting potential. GMEU have no reason to doubt the findings of
the report. No further information or measures are required.

Nesting Birds
Bramble scrub will be lost, potential bird nesting habitat. All British birds nests and eggs

(with certain limited exceptions) are protected by Section 1 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act
1981, as amended. GMEU recommend a condition be applied to any permission to restrict
the removal of vegetation.

Wall Cotoneaster

This species is listed under schedule 9 part 2 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended). Itis an offence to introduce or cause to grow wild any plant listed under this
schedule. Only one specimen was however recorded, the site would not be regarded as
wild and this species is primarily an issue in calcareous areas. GMEU are therefore
satisfied that the risk of an offence is very low and that all that is required is an informative
to advise the applicant of their responsibilities under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981.

Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment & Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)
Section 180 of the NPPF 2023 states that the planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. 10% BNG is mandatory under

Page 74



Schedule 7A of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by schedule 14 of the
Environment Act 2021). The development will result in the loss of an area of bramble scrub
and associated bird nesting habitat. The consultant has also taken in to account
previously cleared vegetation along the frontage in line with government guidance. This
included a line of likely leylandii and two trees facing on to Bury Old Road. Wildlife issues
are restricted to loss of bird nesting opportunities. New soft landscaping is proposed along
the road frontage.

The development is subject to the general biodiversity gain condition. A BNG assessment
and metric have been provided. These indicate that off-site compensation will be required
for area based habitats, to cover a shortfall of 0.28 units. There is a net gain of linear units
in excess of 10%. The loss is small and therefore off-site compensation should not result
in an obstacle to the discharge of the general biodiversity gain condition.

The consultant has correctly identified the line of tree and trees along the frontage and
taken a precautionary approach.

There is however potentially evidence that the two trees on the frontage could be assessed
otherwise, based on historical streetview imagery, which show both the trees lost to be
sycamore. They also appear not to have reached maturity or to have any ecological niches.
Second, it is also arguable that they form part of a hedge with trees.

GMEU are therefore willing to accept an amendment to the baseline for this habitat.

GMEU have responded in terms of BNG, the on-site measures include urban tree and
section of hedge.

Both are medium distinctiveness habitats but the units generated very small.

Therefore whilst defined as distinctive under defra guidance, control by legal agreement
would be unreasonable. GMEU therefore recommend the mitigations are retained for 30
years via a simplified HMMP condition. The statutory general gain condition will also apply
with regards both the on and off-site measures

GMEU recommend provision of a bird box on one of the mature trees adjacent to the site
and there is the potential for the inclusion of swift bricks within the development. The
details can be provided via condition.

The proposed development would therefore be acceptable and comply with policies JP-G8
and the principles of the NPPF.

Air quality

Environmental Health Officers have been consulted on the proposals. The site is not
located within an Air Quality Management Area. Due to the scale of the development, it is
considered very unlikely that the development would not create an increase of more than
500 AADT (annual average daily traffic). Therefore, in line with the EPUK Guidance, an air
quality assessment will not be required.

The proposed development will have off-street parking. Bury Council has been identified by
DEFRA as an area requiring to significantly improve air quality. The required measures to
do this are currently under discussion. Due to this requirement, and the requirements of the
Building Regulations (The Building Regulations 2010, Approved Document S, Infrastructure
for the charging of electric vehicles), the team recommends a condition to be placed on any
grant of permission for a minimum of 1 no. electric vehicle (EV) charging point (minimum
7kW*) and at least one in every five remaining parking spaces must be provided with cable

Page 75



routes.

PfE Policy JP-S2 - Carbon and Energy

Sets out the steps required to achieve net zero carbon emissions and development
proposals should set out how this has been achieved in an energy statement in accordance
with the energy hierarchy.

The applicant states that energy efficient measures and renewable energy technologies
would be integral to the building's design and specification and passive design measures
have also been included to prevent overheating and subsequently reduce carbon
emissions.

Compliance with Building Regulations will be achieved through high levels of thermal
insulation and efficient heating systems and the development would provide EV charge
points in line with Part S of Building Regulations.

It is therefore considered the development would comply with Policy JP-S2.

PfE Policy JP-C2 - Digital Connectivity
Requires new development to have full fibre to premises connections unless technically
infeasible and/or unviable.

The applicant states they would ensure the new development would have future ready
digital infrastructure including full fibre connections and multiple provider capacity and would
encourage local community involvement to identify specific needs and shape digital
connectivity.

Response to objections

e The submitted schedule of activities does not introduce any new information which is not
already contained in the Planning Statement and the Design and Access Statement.
The schedule of activities provides a more readable comparison of the proposed
facilities and when they would be used. The proposed floor plans have not changed
which also show the full extent of the proposed uses. There is no requirement for
re-notification of neighbours if further information is subsequently submitted and in this
case, the information was supplemental to the original application.

e |tis stated that the Local Highway Authority (LHA) response was received after the
applicant submitted the Schedule of Activities and updated Travel Addendum. There
would be little point to the LHA making their recommendation until after all information
relevant to the application had been received, reviewed and conclusions drawn to inform
their response and the other mitigation measures which have been agreed.

e As detailed in the Officer Report, the applicant has sought to offer solutions and
mitigation to provide parking in addition to the 20 spaces proposed on site, by securing
off-site parking at Heaton Park, implementation of a travel Plan, continuing the
agreement, albeit informally, with Maccabi and agreeing to enter a S106 legal
agreement for additional parking enforcement officers to deter unlawful parking in the
area.

e There is a known problem with parking at the Friday prayer time. However, the fallback
position is that the existing building could continue to operate at the same capacity
during Friday prayer times without any of the additional benefits proposed here.

e The LHA is satisfied that the mitigations negotiated with the applicant are sufficient to
support the application and there would be no reason for the recommendation to be
deferred.

¢ Interms of the use of the building, Places of Worship are often used for other

Page 76



community uses such as education and training which are in the same use class. Any
other facility/use within the building would be considered to be ancillary to the main use.
o All other issues have been covered in the above report.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Minded to Approve
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings

Location plan LU281-P01C

Existing site plan LU281-P02A

Existing section LU281-P03

Existing floor plans and elevations LU281-P04
Proposed site plan LU281-P0O5H

Proposed floor plans LU281-P06D

Proposed site section LU281-PO7E

Proposed elevations LU281-P08A

Swept path analysis 360-22-4

Revised drainage plan by Redford dated 18th February 2025

Acoustic Survey and Assessment by martin Environmental Solutions Feb 2024
report no. 2663-1

Carbon and energy statement Nov 2024

Digital connectivity statement April 2025

Travel Plan by SCP ref 240049 August 2024

Addendum to Travel Plan dated May 2025

Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment by Pennine ecological November 2024
Preliminary ecological Appraisal by Pennine ecological November 2024
Arboricultural Impact assessment

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

Page 77



The development hereby approved within any approved phase shall not be
brought into use until written confirmation is provided to the Local Planning
Authority that unexpected or previously unidentified contamination was not
encountered during the course of development works.

If, during development, unexpected contamination is found to be present on the
site, no further works shall be carried out at the affected location until the following
are submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval:

l. Risk Assessment (GQRA or DQRA);

Il. Remediation Strategy & Verification Plan;

If remediation is required, it shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
Remediation Strategy. Upon completion of remediation works, a Verification
Report shall be submitted for approval. The Verification Report must include
information validating all remediation works carried out; details of imported
materials (source/quantity/suitability); details of exported materials; and details of
any unexpected contamination.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs 187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(December 2024).

Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide:

e A minimum of 1 no. electric vehicle (EV) charging point (minimum 7kW*) and
at least one in every five remaining parking spaces must be provided with
cable routes.

Certification and photographic evidence of the installation of the agreed electric
vehicle charge points shall be submitted to Local Planning Authority for approval
prior to the development being brought into use. The infrastructure shall be
maintained and operational in perpetuity.

*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to
be used. Further information regarding minimum standards can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/transport/low-emission-and-electric-vehicles.

Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the
development is sustainable and to safeguard residential amenity, public health and
quality of life with respect to Local Air Quality, in accordance with paragraphs
112e, 117e, 187¢e and 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December
2024) and Places for Everyone Policy JP-S5 (Clean Air).

The (Biodiversity Gain Plan and) Habitat management and monitoring plan shall
be prepared in accordance with on-site habitat creation proposals within the
Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment dated November 2024 and prepared by
Pennine Ecological. The HMMP shall include:

1. the roles and responsibilities of the people or organisation(s) delivering the
HMMP;

2. the management measures to implement and maintain the proposed tree and
species rich native hedge for a period of 30 years from the completion of

Page 78



10.

development; and
3. the monitoring methodology and frequency in respect of the created or
enhanced habitat to be submitted to and agreed by the local planning authority

Reason. To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and
Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Policy JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of
Biodiversity and Geodiversity.

No scrub removal shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in any year
unless a precautionary working method statement for nesting birds by a suitably
experienced ecologist has been supplied to and agreed in writing by the LPA.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and ENG6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

The landscaping shown on the approved site plan LU281-P0O5H shall be
implemented prior to the first occupation/use of the development hereby approved.
The development shall also provide a bird box on a mature tree adjacent to the
site which shall thereafter be maintained. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying or
becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those
originally required to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in
accordance with principles set out in the submitted Foul & Surface Water Drainage
Design Drawing Proposed Drainage Layout , Dated 18/02/2025 which was
prepared by REFORD. For the avoidance of doubt surface water must drain at the
restricted rate of 8.9 I/s. Prior to occupation of the proposed development, the
drainage schemes shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and
retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Reason. To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue
increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding pursuant to PfE
policy JP-S4 and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding
and coastal change of the NPPF.

Details/Samples of the materials to be used in the external elevations, together
with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is
commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used for the construction of the
development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Other than Friday prayers, no other facility or activity in the mosque shall take
place or be available on a Friday between midday and 3pm and the Friday prayers

Page 79



11.

12.

shall be restricted to the 200 sgm prayer room as approved on the proposed upper
ground floor plan .

Reason. To control and manage the occupation and use of the building to limit
trips and activity to the site and the surrounding area in the interests of highway
safety and to protect the amenity of nearby occupiers pursuant to policies EN1/2,
CF1/1 and JP-P1.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Travel Plan and 'Addendum to the Travel Plan' dated May 2025 which
shall be implemented on first use of the building hereby approved. The Travel
Measures shall thereafter be retained.

Reason. To promote alternative sustainable modes of travel and secure off-site
parking to support the development in the interests of residential amenity and the
amenity of the users of the development pursuant to policies EN1/2, HT2/4, JP-P1
and JP-C8 and the principles of the NPPF.

Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted on a
topographical survey of the site and adjacent adopted highways/shared site
access to the Local Planning Authority:nst

(1) Formation of the proposed vehicular and pedestrian access alterations
and improvements to a scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating the
reconstruction of the Bury Old Road footway abutting the site, replacement of the
tactile paved crossing point at the shared Brooklands public car park/site access,
demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway, and all associated highway and
highway drainage remedial works.

(2) Formation of the proposed 'Paved Area' abutting Bury Old Road, to a
level, scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating the demarcation of the
limits of the adopted highway, measures to prevent the discharge of surface water
onto the adopted highway, measures to prevent vehicle encroachment of/access
to the pedestrianised area from both Bury Old Road and the adjacent car parking
areas, demarcation of the limits of the adopted and all associated highway and
highway drainage remedial works.

(3) Provision of visibility splays on land within the applicant's control at the
junction of the site access with Bury New Road in accordance with the standards
in Manual for Streets for a design speed of 30mph, with no obstructions with the
splays above the height of 0.6m.

(4) Scheme of carriageway resurfacing works on the shared access
between Bury Old Road and the new car park access to the rear of the building, to
a scope and specification to be agreed.

(5) Measures to demarcate the proposed 'Public Access'/pedestrian route
to the north of the shared access between Bury Old Road and the new car park
access to the rear of the building, to a scope and specification to be agreed.

(6) Provision of new give-way markings at the junction with Bury Old Road
and all required alterations to refreshing of existing road markings/waiting
restrictions abutting the site.

(7) Swept path analysis of the proposed refuse collection arrangements/
access to the proposed bin store at the rear of the building on land within the
applicant's control and in a vehicle size to be agreed, incorporating, if required,
alterations to the proposed servicing and car parking arrangements.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme
prior to the development hereby approved being brought into use.

Page 80



13.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway
safety, ensure good highway design, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the
site and the adjacent highways and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway,
all in the interests of highway safety pirsuanrt to policies HT2/4, JP-C5, JP-C6 and
JP-CS8.

No development shall take place until a Construction Traffic Management Plan
(CTMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The CTMP shall include:

(1) Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways
leading to and abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are
required following demolition works, construction of the development and as a
result of statutory undertakers connections to the site.

(2) Access route for all demolition/construction vehicles to the site from the
Key Route Network.
(3) Access point/arrangements for demolition/construction traffic, taking

into consideration the need to maintain safe pedestrian/vehicular access to
adjacent Brooklands public car park and all temporary works required to facilitate
access for demolition/construction vehicles.

(4) Hours of work for site preparation, delivery of materials and
demolition/construction works and number of vehicle movements.
(5) Arrangements for the parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors

on land within the applicant's control, together with storage on site or on land
within the applicant's control of demolition/construction materials.

(6) Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the
curtilage of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle
manoeuvres including details of areas designated for the loading, unloading and
storage of plant and materials.

(7) Details of the siting, height and maintenance of any required security
hoarding clear of adequate visibility splays onto Bury Old Road.
(8) The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian

facilities/protection measures on the adopted and unadopted highways and Public
Right of Way that crosses the site.

(9) A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in
the vicinity of the site and its access.

(10) Arrangements for the provision of wheel washing facilities for vehicles
accessing the site.

(11) Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not
spread onto the adjacent adopted highways or shared car park access as a result
of the groundworks operations or carried on the wheels and chassis of any
vehicles leaving the site and measures to control the emission of noise, dust and
dirt during construction.

(12) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction
works.
(13) A strategy to inform neighbouring occupiers (which as a minimum,

shall include those adjoining the site boundaries) of the timing and duration of any
piling operations, and contact details for the site operator during this period.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition and construction
periods and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended
purpose for the duration of the both periods.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of

Page 81



the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Policies EN1/2 and
JP-C8.

14. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans, including at 'Bay 7 and 8 to
be kept clear during class times to aid manoeuvring within rear car park area’,
shall be provided before the areas of the development to which they relate are
brought into use and the areas used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall
subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all times/times specified.
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to policies HT2/4 and JP-CS8.

15.  The car and cycle parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced,
demarcated and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved
being brought into use and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

16. The refuse storage and access arrangements to be provided within the curtilage of
the site shall be made available for use prior to the development hereby approved
being brought into use and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure that adequate bin storage arrangements are provided within
the curtilage of each dwelling pursuant to policy JP-C8.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 253-5320

Page 82



Viewpoints

ADDRESS: 52 Bury Old Road, Prestwich,
Manchester, M25 OER

i
m@z
=

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 83



71422

Photo 1

Photo 2




71422

Photo 3

Photo 4




71422

Photo 5

o |
-

-

L

= W

—

— e &

————

.,‘s '

Page 86



)8 abed

LUM

LUMITEKTON

LUZ81-POZA

Revisions

revision Idate I comments

A 22.11.23 Red line amended

N

e
/

ankment

Building to be demolished
(outlined in blue)

Site extents
(outlired in re

Existing car par

.C")}; N

& NN
\ .\j\ 0" f@,)
Oy
Y

»
N

aaaaa

o)
S
%,

e,

V%5

Main entrance
oS

N

%

Public car pa
(2 E;%spaces)

;;;;;
\ N

Job Title

Demolition of existing Al-Bilal
Mosque and erection of new
purpose built Islamic Community
Centre

Site Address

Al Bilal Islamic Centre
52 Bury Old Rd

@ Prestwich
M25 OER

Drawing Title

Existing Site Plan

Scale
1:200 @ A1

Date
07.10.22

A. 275a Upper Brook St

EXISTING SITE PLAN

12900 Drawn

uf

T, 07894401574

E « info@lumitekton.com



LUM

LUMITEKTON

LUZ281-PO5H

Revisions
0

& revision Idate I comments

O A 22.07.23 Building repositioned

OO Parking amended
’?)\ Exit lane removed

Adjacent levels

88 afied

shown
B 17.08.23 Levels amended
C 22.11.23 Red line amended
D 24.11.23 Further detail
clarified
86.:2 E 22.12.23 Building moved back
and tiered
3 F 22.03.24 Top tier moved
Fecight further back
" G 18.11.24 Retaining wall
v 2 removed. Dis spaces
L) added, bollards
Retaining\walls shown in red . ) added, EV points
- %6@ H 18.11.24 Cycle store relocated
. ,% path made
o iV o continuous
. o . . ¥ ~ Retaining watls
Existing building.shown in dotted line. To RN
) N g : showwin red
be demolished ;
N A Bay 7 artd 8 to be kept N
N . .
> // N\, h uring class time
\/ N L2 ;
Secondary entrance A N ® tptk?'ld maneuv 1n§
. . . O 2
into building E55 AN ., within rear cdr par
SN W E
\\ / Ei +
’7777*% \ ~ \ Ry AR B
d 7ONL Bollards
7/ \\ £ < % 97’05
) ‘ S
\ +
7 A\NZ 3
AN
\\ 4
A\
N +
\ 62“57 o 9213
y \ ex .LEVEL :
ar40 A :a 926
/’/"'"" SN
7. e < 7, 04 70
£ e 8 R
% 7 %
Vd /vr ' \)d_
. 10 o : ¢ :
/ psat S ’ %
ey EOQRGAM f’é,
11 / B3 o 34°0) ®
12 , S S PN . \
. /s Y . \ l
< exM.VE +
* 13 , At
LEVEL] " .'/ <
) 79.56 “‘ / b »O% ~
Trees and planting % " / <
N O
* Q 15
0“ QQ \\ /// & .
. _ <
Primary entrance/ N, S 7 BN ;
building frontage : KN 19 27 5
xLEVE“‘ - v i
w7942 “ 17
Doukl I N ™ . Y
ouRle storey e S 2 ; .
A"/ 2y .
- %, /\ 4
153 v g
. . X A %
Main buildin el - B %,
storey el N N R 5 S
20 P 4 ‘\&Q%
I\ & N ‘ < / z °©
N ) = g i 2o + / y
% : ./’
Paved area 2@ \ u SN // e
)/ . — . =
\ _‘/—/ / g

Remrarcated for public ACCREs

Vehicle access
into site retained

é} .

@

Job Title

Demolition of existing Al-Bilal
Mosque and erection of new
purpose built Islamic Community
Centre

Site Address

Al Bilal Islamic Centre
52 Bury Old Rd
Prestwich

M25 OER

Drawing Title

Proposed Site Plan

Q) Scale
1:200 @ A1
Date
07.10.22
O A 275a Upper Brook St
Manchester
PROPOSED SITE PLAN 5 13 OFiR
rawn
1:200 uf
. 07894401574

-

« info@lumitekton.com



\' y:

A

SR

.

N

<

—T—

D

N,

N
O

N
$o

X/

N

N

/|

N\
N\

—

/<

7

N
AN

.

N
S

/ 2
A
D

AN

~§\\\~

p
WS

N

L7

/

|
\!sv

N\

—

N\

~—

=S
—/

N

A
N
N\

A

N

RO

/]

N

v

NN

NS
7N

s

W

NS

\g\s!
=

—
]

)

éﬂ%

.\
\
=
=

£\
_—
</

/>

A

.

=

\{:

\

/

\

N

A

.
Al

.
—

i

<

%S

N

XX_~
v

—7

—\
-
Y

N\

N

— |

AN

AR

N
iN\Sy

N

NS

SN

i

S

\

’

AN

‘\
J
e

~

_—

/)

N

L

=

.
NS

/]

\$

VL
N

\vZ

R
o0 \\

’

d

<7

N

N

dlIN

=AY

1&4:

N

,.;\‘

=
v

<[
D)

Y%

</

=

>

N
\

T

Al

68 abe d
D

W

lkzag,'z

N

4

4

-
>

S

%

N\

N

~
2

NS

N\

Se—
N

R

N

NS

i

IS

v

N V1Y
'llf
7

=%
QK

X

)
\ / 4
é} \\\. L=

f ——

\

O

N

<

/

4

N
—
S
AN

Vi

N

—

N
\

|

il

A

\

S\
—

—

N\

W
N
1k
> \‘/’4/!
.74 /]
A=
3
A
7 {
‘ " h ’;’i‘
I (V7
Wi
7 /E/ ‘4
17/
— “'
L=

b

<)

[

CLASS ROOM

NiIBs

B

‘y;l l‘
~

</

N

>

I

b

J

ENTRANCE
AREA

SECONDARY

\
\
\
\,
\\
/:>-
e
7/

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

1:100

EXISTING FLOOR AREA

LUM

LUMITEKTON

LU281-P04

Revisions

revision Idate I comments

14625

MENS PRAYER HALL

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION(SW)
1:100

. F.E.
\ [}
A
\\\ /I \\
~—. VRN
—’/ \\s

LADIES PRAYER HALL

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION (NW)
1:100

|
|
|
L

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION(NE)
1:100

S &

Job Title

Demolition of existing Al-Bilal
Mosque and erection of new
purpose built Islamic Community
Centre

Site Address

WHOLE BUILDING

MENS PRAYER HALL
WOMENS PRAYER HALL
OFFICE

CIRCULATION AREAS
CLASSROOM

ABLUTION AREA

466m2

155m2
45m2
20m2
71m2
70m2
72m2

Al Bilal Islamic Centre
52 Bury Old Rd
Prestwich

M25 OER

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION(SE)
1:100

Drawing Title

Existing drawings

Scale
1:100 @ Al
Date
07.10.22
A. 275a Upper Brook St
Manchester
M13 OHR
Drawn
uf

T . 07894401574

E « info@lumitekton.com



06 afed

EXISTING FLOOR AREAS

27990

NOTE:
WHOLE BUILDING 466m2
O
MENS PRAYER HALL 155m2 PLANS SHOWN FOR PLANNING
WOMENS PRAYER HALL tom2 SUBMISSION AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO LUMITEKTON
m
CIRCULATION AREAS 71m2 CHANGE
ABLUTION AREA 72m2
, 9
’7 1 2 3 4 o 7 R ..
€VI1S10ns
PROPOSED FLOOR AREAS
revision I date I comments
BINS
WHOLE BUILDING 1 205m2 A 28.07.23 Building moved back
1 left
LOWER GROUND FLOOR LEVEL 410m2 .
B 22.12.23 Building set back,
tier formed
UPPER GROUND FLOOR LEVEL 410m?2 c 220324  Upper tier set back
(Prayer hall size) 200m2 | | further
[ ———— e ———_———_——_— = T — - 7 D 18.11.24 Cycle store relocated
|
FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 385m?2 i \‘
! \
\ |
OUTLINE OF EXISTING BUILDING _ —-—! \ é
F-—— - — " I
\‘ \
|
| \
|
“ |
|
' | &
|
,,,,, R \ Q
\ L -
‘\ BICYCLES h 1
1 \
|
|
16500 \ |
‘ ‘ | SECONDARY \
‘ \ ENTRANCE |
|
N RN A
4 1 7:::::::::::: ] \‘ : ] _777777777777 1 o o 1 1 | i Py Py
3 //,/’ 1 1 3 //,/ 1 /,\\\ // “ 3 ) -7 1
/ up ‘\ / up :::/ \::: LOBBY “ / don
/ | i ~ , ‘ |/
| — \, v \\. O 1 ———-—- . CLASSROOM 1 CLASSROOM 2
} T \ - A O ‘J - 18.5m2 18.5m2
‘ // | // S 2 /l \\ N | ‘ //
} — / ‘\ / - o OISR ABLUTIONS (D) | A \. 7\ e
| i > ‘ 15m2 24m2 \ ! N / \\
\ | B | \ a O 4 \ \ : ‘
\\\ ‘\ \\\\ FOYER / N ol “ \\\ I
12 \\\\\ “ 12 \\\\\ 4 \ “ 12 Se _/ |
‘ ! Va \ ! 27N
\ o | ‘\ V4 A | «\ \ /)
\\\ ; ‘ \\ Y // »1 \\ \ //
V4 “ SHOES el 1 e
TSl 7.5m2 e > < ~
// YOUTH%(E&EATION \‘ AN / N \' CLASSROOM 3 / \ N
i 134m2 f Ny | 15m2 ! \/ \
YOUTH STORE ~ / |
18m2 ! \ \
|
/ |
| |
! \
| | =
‘\ \ " MALE TEACHING /
! MORTUARY SSo | i i LECTURE ROOM 83m2
\ 21m2 & 9
‘\ / | CLASSROOM 4
! , | i 15m2
| 9720 \
|
| |
| |
|
\ \
| PLANT MIBINGS JIRIBA PRAYER HALL \\
\l fda y < (total ip(;‘:ity 200) L J
/ . |——— - — - —
\l .. 1 == . ;————"—‘_'__-—_———_——__-———_— \________ J
— 3 R i Tp)
\\ / \ // o
O ¢ > 3
- LADIES s
O ABLUTIONS OEF;CZE / \ / \ OIPIIEICZE
ml L O 12m2 L L] L L] o2} i 1 o .5m
“ i O // // “ //
- ! 9 — / : FEMALE TEACHING /
" Structural St;tﬂ;l "\ Structural,~” LECTURE ROOM 83m2
reited . piged eening
1305 x 1630 \ / ] Il 1393 X630 ||IFmS == Il 1995 x\16§\0
/// Lift \\\ \ // // (:E 7Lt N4 7 Lift ‘
PLANT = FOXER / 3\ QUIET T SR o A L =i
om2 / N \ LIBRARY AND CE READING Jm2 / N L Jmz 7
, COMMUNITY AREA j - - ; :
- . 5 MEETING SPACE ,J : — : - ‘ Job Title
7 IIlN o 7_ Himz - v - e B Demolition of existing Al-Bilal
/ — o L < CE \ / / / Mosque and erection of new
/ Illn 7V O\ U i / . . -_— purpose built Islamic Community
] X ; ) T ‘, T Centre
- —_ \\ as y / I \ WOMENS AREA .
. Site Address
I Al Bilal Islamic Centre
\ : ) \ 52 Bury Old Rd
N\ P LOBBY I 5\ P \ P Prestwich
| | B B B . c O, M25 OER
I \ 3 : ' Drawing Title
N t | Proposed ﬂOOl" plans
PRIMARY ENTRANCE

Scale
1:100 @ Al

Date
07.10.22

A. 275a Upper Brook St
PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED UPPER GROUND FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN Drawn
1:100 1:100 1:100

. 07894401574

™ —

« info@lumitekton.com



16 abed

L U I O
LUMITEKTON
Revisions
Feature minaret
revision Idate I comments
A 22.12.23 Building setback and
tiered
GRP dome - to appear like lead
B 22.03.24 Full details added,
top tier set further
Pattern screen back
behind glazing
EAVES
90'62 E;\./eEzs
Primary material - - e
sandstone
Q
&
lofs] e B
&
Ornamental detailing S e
Feature arches
F;L - 77 FFL PR. grnd LEVEL
82.77 L W/ a2ty grndil:rear
,,,,,,,,,,,,, R )_ —_ [
Aluminium glazing - - E— ”. /////// 7777777 . ————— —
Bronze coloured " ]
Red hatch and red profile shows ’
existing land shape and area of
— excavation
75.57
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
1:100 1:100
Ashlar stone surround
and detailing
EAVES
Aluminium detailing = o T s eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeem—————— ey =
X -
POy €D IS ITHS g Job Title
- o 7 P 7 S R 2= N S — e .
< I < I XN @ Demolition of existing Al-Bilal
Cast concrete ornamental f#;‘)\‘w”:,’.ﬂ E#;‘}\‘W’f:,’.ﬂ Aluminum curtain . Mosque and erection of new
infill pattern W"W [}:("’I \\\*‘ wall glazing 2 purpose built Islamic Community
e e e ’ \ o Centre
PEA XN §
.v ZANS/\ [
FFL
- AN o e | s8] Site Address
Al Bilal Islamic Centre
- - e - 52 Bury Old Rd
X Q Prestwich
XX I K> 0 a M25 OER
5’«{@' 1 }:'1:’“ 5.?:‘ Main entrance o )
MO N\ arch 3
. > =X pam= © - -
—— e AN ‘ﬁ PR. grnd LEVEL == DraWIng Title
Wi SN 7 e | |
///77//// 777 - el e el et ————  v—7 o Il ®T R R VT Proposed Elevations
FFL
77777777777777777777 73.57 B
Scale
1:100/1:200 @ Al
Date
17.08.23
. 275a Upper Brook St
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION A
1:100 1:100 5 panchoster
rawn
uf . 07894401574

m

« info@lumitekton.com



26 abed

+95.00

+94.00
+93.00
+92.00
+91.00
+90.00

F_Agss
90%62

EAVES LEVEL

+89.00

+88.00
+87.00
+86.00

+85.00

F§L
8835

FIRST FLOOR

+84.00
+83.00
+82.00
+81.00

+80.00
+79.00

PROPOSED SECTION A - A

1:200

pmmmm—-

GROUND LEVE

PRLEVE!
*
8282

..-r—,v7"f/7777/777/7-W//r-_

W)

LUM

LUMITEKTON

LUZ281-PO7E

Revisions

revision Idate I comments

Road

Red hatch and red profile shows

existing land shape and area of

excavation

+95.00
+94.00
+93.00
+92.00
+91.00
+90.00

+89.00
+88.00
+87.00
+86.00
+85.00

+84.00
+83.00
+82.00
+81.00
+80.00

+79.00

PROPOSED SECTION B - B

1:200

+95.00

Site

Neighbour

Road

/'/777//777/777/_

Red hatch and red profile shows

Site

existing land shape and area of
excavation

Neighbour

+94.00
+93.00
+92.00
+91.00

+90.00 e

+89.00
+88.00
+87.00
+86.00
+85.00

+84.00
+83.00
+82.00
+81.00
+80.00

7777

Red hatch and red profile shows
existing land shape and area of

+79.00

PROPOSED SECTION C - C

1:200

+95.00

Neighbour

excavation

Site

A 25.07.23 Building shown in
new position

B 17.08.23 Levels updated

C 22.12.23 Building setback and
tiered

D 22.03.24 Top tier set further
back

E 18.11.24 All sections updated

Job Title

Demolition of existing Al-Bilal
Mosque and erection of new
purpose built Islamic Community
Centre

Site Address

+94.00
+93.00
+92.00
+91.00

Al Bilal Islamic Centre
52 Bury Old Rd
Prestwich

M25 OER

Drawing Title

+90.00
+89.00
+88.00
+87.00
+86.00
+85.00

Proposed Site Sections

+84.00
+83.00
+82.00

+81.00
+80.00

F;L
8277

W//////ﬂ////// T

+79.00

PROPOSED SECTION D - D

1:200

Red hatch and red profile shows
existing land shape and area of
excavation

Scale
1:200 @ A1
Date
07.10.22
A. 275a Upper Brook St
Manchester
M13 OHR
Drawn
uf
T 07894401574
E. info@lumitekton.com




TN PR [ s -;I"‘--

MR T aay

.ﬁlﬂ"-—-:—u#- B

R |







=

b
)

s ﬁmmﬁh

i

X
¥es

o

i
%

z * I
N

I.J..H o

=

e —
o
R







5 h .I... ! e 7k ey <
% .ﬂuﬂ A

ol
h#ﬂw W







Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth Item

Applicant: A&J Riu Ltd T-A Casalingo

Location: 23 Church Street, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5RA

Proposal: Single storey flat roof rear extension

Application Ref: 72105/Full Target Date: 22/09/2025
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

This application is being presented to Planning Control Committee as it has been
submitted on behalf of Clir J Lancaster

Description

The application site lies within Ainsworth Conservation Area. It relates to a property in use
as a restaurant (Class E) located at 23 Church Street, Ainsworth. It is a white rendered
property that is located on Church Street at the crossroads junction of Victoria Street and
Bradley Fold Road. The application site is on the corner of Victoria Street.

The rear of the property backs onto an unadopted lane which shares a border with
properties on Camden Close. The gable of no. 4 Camden Close is located directly behind
the application site, albeit is orientated away from the back street, so the property does not
directly overlook the rear of the application site.

The building forms the western end of a terrace row of properties, nos. 23 - 41 (odd) Church
Street.

Historically, the application site was two properties. It is in use as a restaurant (Use Class
E) - 'Casalingo Italian Restaurant’. It has a stainless steel flue projection on the rear
elevation which extends up the rear elevation and projects above eaves level by
approximately 0.55 metres. It also has a small brick built pitched roof single storey
extension. Part of the rear elevation of the building is rendered, part is traditional brick.
The rest of the terrace to which the application site forms have rendered rear elevations.

Permission is sought for a single storey rear extension that proposes to be fully rendered.
The rear extension would project from part of the rear elevation of the building by

approximately 3.0 metres. The extension would have a width of approximately 4.7 metres.
It would have a mono-pitch roof with an eaves height of approximately 2.8 metres.

Relevant Planning History
27135 - Single storey rear extension - Approved, 28/05/1992
26497 - Single storey extension at rear to form Laundary Room - Approved, 28/11/1991

25674 - Change of Use of part of dwelling (no.21) to provide extension to Lounge and Bar
Area of adjoining Restaurant - Approved, 23/05/1991

01843 - 2 camopoes on side elevation at first floor level - Refused, 28/07/1989

Page 99

05



15147 - Escape staircase, flue enclosure and box fascia sign - Approved, 10/11/1983

Publicity
The application has been advertised by Site Notice erected in front of the property.

9 neighbours have also been notified by letter.

One representation has been received that questionned how big the proposed extension
would be and raised concerns that the loss of the car parking space within the rear yard
would put futher pressure on the lack of car parking provision in the locality.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Conservation Officer - No objections

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objections

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to a condition securing details of where
construction materials would be stored.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant

Development Plan and Policies

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas

EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

JP-C1 Our Integrated Network

JP-C4 Strategic Road Network

JP-C8 Transport Requirements of New Development
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Sites location within a Conservation Area and Visual Amenity

The application site is within Ainsworth Conservation Area. The first consideration in the
assessment of this application is therefore the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990. Section 72 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 states that in the exercise of planning functions special attention shall be paid to
the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation
area.

As defined by the NPPF, the Conservation Area is a designated heritage assett.

Page 100



UDP Policies EN2/1 and EN2/2 concern themselves with development in conservation
areas requiring all development to accord with the requirements of the above-mentioned
act. Extensions should be compatible with the host building and the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

The proposed extension would be single storey and have a flat roof. It would be positioned
centrally upon the rear elevation of the building.

The proposed extension would appear subordinate to the host property. Due to its single
storey scale, it being set well in from the gable end of the property, its massing, design and
materials, the proposal would have a neutral impact on the character and appearance of the
conservation area. Accordingly, the proposal would preserve the character and
appearance of Ainsworth Conservation Area. Given the above, then proposal also
complies with the relevant criteria within UDP Policy EN1/2.

Residential Amenity

Neighbouring properties exist on either side of the application site. One of the neighbouring
properties, no.21 Church Street, is positioned on the opposite corner of Victoria Street to
the application property. No. 25 Church Street shares a party wall with the application site.
Properties on Camden Close boarder the back lane/ street to the rear.

Due to the single storey nature of the proposed development, its central location on the rear
elevation of the application building and the presence of the traditional brick boundary wall
along the back lane/ street, the proposal would would be sited a sufficent distance from
neighbouring dwellings and would not cause any loss of light or privacy.

To conclude, the proposal would not cause any demonstrable harm to the amenity of
neighbouring residents.

Parking and Highway Safety

The representation asserts that parking is at capacity within Ainsworth village. Having
visited the village in an evening, it is evident that the on-street car parking bays are full, as
too, were adjoining and nearby streets. The representation advises that the applicant
parks their car within the rear yard area. The proposal seeks to extend the kitchen facilities
at the restaurant. Whilst the reason for this has not been stated, it is likely to be due to
health and safty legislation and a better running operation. Whilst the kitchen area is
proposed to increase, the proposal would not increase the number of covers/ customers
eating/ attending the property.

The proposal would result in the loss of part of the rear yard area, which appears to have
been used to park one car. Whilst this may be the case, the NPPF is clear that
development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road
network, following mitigation, would be severe. The addition of one car, parking on-street,
would not result in conditions that would be demonstrably detrimental to highway safety and
certainly would not cause severe residual impacts on the highway network. The proposal
thus accord with the requirements of partagraph 116 of the NPPF (2024) and PfE Policy
JP-C1.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

Page 101



1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to the following drawings:

Drawing no. 347-404: Location Plan;

Drawing no. 247-406: Proposed Block Plan

Drawing no. 347 - 401 Rev.A: Proposed Floor Plan; and,
Drawing no. 347 - 403 Rev. A: Proposed Elevations

numbered ......... and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 102



Viewpoints - 72105

N
/
. w=@E)=E
ADDRESs: 23 Church Street, Ainsworth, i
Bolton, BL2 5RA S

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 103



72105

Photo 1 - Church Street Frontage

-
- -

Yot

Page 104



72105

Photo 3 - Rear and Side Elevation

Photo 4 - View from street at rear

Page 105



7 Proposed
| Works

Client
CASALINGO

Date June 2025  Status  Planning

Drawn JB Checked Js
Scale 1:1250 Size A4
Rev. Drawing No.

- 347 - 404

Drawing Title
Location Plan

Project Title

Casalingo Restaurant

23 Church Street, Ainsworth
Bolton, BL2 5RA

mO0 125 25 50 75 100 125
SCALE

5 JSA DESIGN

1:1,250

Page 106



/0T abed

©

2/

410250

9l

T\

25

1 STREET

166.1m CHURC
/r o
v\

164.9r

PH

\
)y

AL

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
contractor prior to commencement of works. Any
variations must be reported to JSA Design.

All information hereon in is the copyright of JSA Design.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from JSA Design.

moO 5
SCALE

10

40

45

50

[ ]-

Client
CASALINGO

Date  June2025  Status  Planning
Drawn JB Checked Js
Scale 1:500 Size A3
Rev. Drawing No.

- 347 - 406
Drawing Title

Proposed Block Plan

Project Title

Casalingo Restaurant

23 Church Street, Ainsworth
Bolton, BL2 5RA

5 JSA DESIGN




80T abed

Allow to form new flat roof extension in
rendered finish to match existing building. N
New flat roof with associated —_
gutters/drainage to match existing style.

B I
[— 1
N N\ N\ N\ N\
— 1 —
ifffffffi’:‘iffffffi T

‘Wg
[

|
L

Fire Esape Stairs

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION Scale 1:50 PROPOSED EAST FACING ELEVATION Scale 1:50
1no new 1200mm wide Allow to form new flat roof extension in
upvc window. rendered finish to match existing building.
New flat roof with associated
gutters/drainage to match existing style.

1no new 1200mm wide opening
for new door and half.
B I
1
N k —
N\ J N \
Ll Adjoining Property T
— T—Tr
1
/\< h_j :
L \ \ +
\ <>
\ \ = Hb SK; aclae ae i}iﬁ
A\
26.07.25  Flue added to all elevations.
Client
CASALINGO
HBHBIHB & [HhHRH
Date  June 2025 Status Existing
PROPOSED BACK ELEVATION Scale 1:50 PROPOSED WEST FACING ELEVATION Scale 1:50 Drawn_JB Checked Js
Scale  1:50 Size Al
Rev. Drawing No.
A 347 - 403
Drawing Title
Proposed Elevations
Project Title
mo 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 S worth
Al levels and dimensions must be checked on site by SCALE | . ; . ; , : : : : ] Bolton, BL2 5RA
contractor prior to commencement of works. Any 1:50

variations must be reported to JSA Design.
All information hereon in is the copyright of JSA Design.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written DESIGN

permission from JSA Design.




COURTYARD

3000

~

PLANTING
BED

f ELEC. J
LOBBY /T P

s
—

KITCHEN

—

1200

F2C: 893
C2H: 986

STORE

STORE
— — — — T
K——jup
| NEIGHBOUR
PROPERTY

RESTAURANT

BAR

-

LOBBY

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
contractor prior to commencement of works. Any
variations must be reported to JSA Design.

All information hereon in s the copyright of JSA Design.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from JSA Design.

F2C: 743 F2C: 743 F2C: 743
C2H: 1776 C2H: 1776 C2H: 1776

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

NOTES:

- Form new flat roof extension in rendered finish to
match existing building.

- New flat roof with associated gutters/drainage to match
existing style.

- 1no new 1200mm wide opening for new door and half.
- 1no new 1200mm wide upvc window.

Page 109

F2C: 743
C2H: 1776

Extents of new
extension

mo

0.5

10 15 20 25 30 35 40

4.5

zr

5.0

SCALE |

1:50

Client
CASALINGO

Dale  June2025  Stalus  Planning
Drawn JB Checked Js
Scale  1:50 Size At
Rev. Drawing No.

A 347 - 401
Drawing Title

Proposed Floor Plan

Project Title
Casalingo Restaurant

23 Church Street, Ainsworth
Bolton, BL2 5RA




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: North Manor ltem 06

Applicant: Windlehurst Estates Limited
Location: Lord Raglan, Mount Pleasant, Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SP

Proposal: Conversion of existing public house to 5 no. apartments and changes to land levels
at side and rear of the building to create parking area

Application Ref: 70213/Full Target Date: 06/05/2024
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The proposal relates to a vacant public house and its rear and side curtilage located on
Walmersley Old Road, Nangreaves. The Public House is a grade |l listed building that falls
within the Mount Pleasant Conservation Area and the Green Belt. The application site also
sits within the Pennine Foothills (West/South Pennines: Knowl and Rooley Moors, Fringes
and Foothills) landscape character area.

The application site is located at the northern end of the former cotton mill complex and
associated factory village of Mount Pleasant. It is accessed off a cobbled road which rises
up hill towards Harden Moor. The application site is in an elevated position relative to the
neighbouring buildings to the south and west. Surrounding land also rises to the north and
east.

The northern boundary of the application site forms the southern boundary of a car park that
was previously associated with the former public house use. The land to the rear/ west of
the application building, which includes a rendered two storey flat roof extension, falls
westwards from the rear of the building.

The boundary of the application site with the former pub car par is formed by retaining walls
at the juxtaposition with the curtilage area to the public house as the application site is at a
lower level that the adjoining former pub car park.

Planning permission is sought for the conversion of the former pub to 5 self-contained 2
bedroom apartments, along with external alterations.

During the course of this application, the development has reduced the submitted red edge
to exclude the car park which contained 3no. terraced dwellings.

The proposed conversion of the Lord Raglan would comprise:

e Conversion of the public house to create 5 no. two bedroom apartments; 3 of which are
proposed to be duplex apartments;

Insertion of two rooflights to the principal roof slope;

Installation of a glazed roof lantern on part of the existing flat roof rear extension;
Demolition of an external steel staircase and blocking up of the associated fire door;
Removal of the trees and planting to the rear of the building and the re-grading of the
land to the rear of the building to create car parking provision and space for refuse
storage;

e Erection of retaining walls to the side and rear of the listed building.

Page 111



Relevant Planning History
59669 - Listed building consent for installation of defibrillator and cabinet on front elevation -
Approve with Conditions 31/03/2016

64476 - Conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments and erection of 6 no.
terraced houses - Withdrawn 10/12/2019

64594 - Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments
and erection of 6 no. terraced houses - Withdrawn 10/12/2019

65331 - Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments
and erection of 4 no. terraced houses - Withdrawn 09/09/2022

70214 - Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 5 no. apartments -
Received 06/05/2024

Publicity

The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 13th March 2024 and a
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 21st March 2024. Site notices were posted
on 14th March 2024.

The neighbouring properties and objectors were notified of revised plans on 1 October
2024, 28 January 2025 and 1 August 2025. The revised plans removed 3 dwellings and as
such, any representations that relate to the proposal for 3 dwellings on the adjacent car
park are not included in this report.

28 representations from the surrounding community have been received, which raise the
following issues:

e The Raglan lies in the conservation area and it is in the Green Belt.

e The Lord Raglan is a Grade Il Listed building in the Conservation Area. Local and
national planning policies are designed to protect the green belt, conservation areas and
listed buildings and the previous reasons for refusal still apply. The development would
have a negative on the conservation area and listed building.

e The pubis a community asset and the only building in Nangreaves where locals could
get together. Removal would result in the loss of the one community asset in the
village.

o Residents desperately need a community hub - there are no other buildings in the
village.

e The village have come together with a viable business plan to open the Raglan as a
community asset.

e |t will be of no community value at all if it is converted into more residences.

e |tis suggested by the applicant that the licensed business did not sell because it was
unviable. Offers were made but not accepted.

e There is already a large new build estate less than a mile from the pub, therefore
additional housing is not required in the area. No additional need for housing in the area

¢ No confidence the conversion would be sympathetic to the area

e Negative visual impact and out of keeping with Mount Pleasant

e Building on the site will bring undue disturbance to the village in terms of traffic, noise
and pollution.

e Pressure on existing infrastructure.

e Impact on wildlife.

Page 112



o Assert weight should be given to Policy LP:CM4: 'Community Facilities' within the draft
Local Plan which seeks to protect community buildings.

e The road to the village is in a terrible state and is already subject to heavy loads from
farm vehicles. To subject it to construction traffic will bring further damage which the
council clearly do not have the money to repair.

e The car park should also be a community asset as it provides overspill and visitor
parking to the village, which is essential due to the village having no parking.

¢ Building on the car park conflicts with policy around the local conservation plan, the

greenbelt and are further reasons to refuse this application.

Already parking issues in the area - where will other residents and visitors park?

Is the road a sufficient width to facilitate a fire engine?

Please confirm the upgrade of the road.

The Highway Technical Note highlights the existence of the hourly bus service into

Bury, a lifeline for many residents. This service is currently under threat due to the

excessive number of vehicles in the area, frequently blocking the bus turnaround and

leading to cancelled services. Further parking demands on Walmersley Old Road will
only exacerbate this issue.

e Cycling does not present a viable alternative to car owning for current Mount Pleasant

residents.

How will drainage be addressed?

The water pressure would be severely compromised.

The revised plans area cosmetic changes to previously refused applications.

Provide an Environmental Impact Assessment including confirmation and scope of

works and interruptions for all utility connections and confirm sufficient capacity within

the existing infrastructure. Written calculations and statements from utility providers to
be provided.

¢ Nangreaves has long faced challenges relating to the condition of the roads,
accessibility and parking and as a resident, | see these challenges become worse year
on year.

e The scheme is unsustainable development.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - Objection. Recommend refusal as level of parking is insufficient, proposed
access and parking would be substandard and concerns about parking spaces parallel to
the adopted highway, which would obstruct pedestrian access.

These comments were received prior to submission of revised parking layout on 19
September 2025.

Drainage Section - No objections, subject to a condition relating to surface water drainage
scheme.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of
conditions relating to contaminated land, relating to the land at the rear of the building.

Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition
relating to electric vehicle charging facilities.

Environmental Health - Commercial Section - No response.
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objections.

Conservation Officer - No objections, subject to conditions relating to appropriate windows

Page 113



and fenestration.
Waste Management - No response.
Design for Security - No comments or observations received.

United Utilities - No objection, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and
surface water drainage.

GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to a condition relating to the submission of a
landscaping scheme to secure native tree planting, bat and bird boxes.

Rossendale Borough Council - No response.

GM Fire Service - No objection, subject to a condition securing sprinklers within the
building.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H2/4 Conversions

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas

EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

EN2/3 Listed Buildings

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value
EN7/5 Waste Water Management
OoL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt

OL1/4 Conversion and Re-use of Buildings in the Green Belt
EN7/5 Waste Water Management
OL1/4 Conversion and Re-use of Buildings in the Green Belt

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

JP-P1 Sustainable Places

JP-P2 Heritage

JP-H1 Scale of New Housing Development

JP-H3 Type, Size and Design of New Housing

JP-H4 Density of New Housing

JP-C1 Our Integrated Network

JP-C2 Digital Connectivity

JP-C5 Streets For All

JP-C6 Walking and Cycling

JP-C8 Transport Requirements of New Development

JP-G1 Landscape Character

JP-G8 A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity
JP-G9 The Green Belt

JP-S2 Carbon and Energy

JP-S4 Flood Risk and the Water Environment

JP-S5 Clean Air

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD8 DC Policy Guidance Note 8 - New Buildings in the Green Belt
SPD 9 Conversion and Re-use of Buildings in the Green Belt
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

Page 114



NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Principle of Development

Housing Land Supply and Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated as a material planning
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. The Framework
states that unless they have an adopted plan that is less than five years old that identified a
five year supply of specific deliverable sites at the time of conclusion of the examination,
then local planning authorities should identify and update annually a supply of specific
developable sites to provide either a minimum of five years' worth of housing, or a minimum
of four years' worth of housing in certain circumstances set out in NPPF paragraph 226.

The Joint Places for Everyone Plan was adopted with effect from 21 March 2024 and sets
the up-to-date housing requirement for Bury against which the deliverable supply of housing
land must be assessed. PfE Policy JP-H1 sets the following stepped targets for Bury:

- 246 homes per year from 2022-2025;
- 452 homes per year from 2025-2030; then
- 520 homes per year from 2030-2039.

Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the deliverable land supply
calculations as many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully
developed (e.g. some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). In addition to
the housing land supply in the SHLAA, the joint Places for Everyone Plan allocates
significant strategic sites for housing within Bury and will accelerate housing delivery within
the Borough to meet housing needs.

Following the adoption of Places for Everyone, the Council is able to demonstrate a
deliverable 5 year supply of housing land when assessed against the adopted PfE housing
requirement.

The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially
below (less than 75%) the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and

Page 115



therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential development.

Therefore, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning Policy Framework states that where
there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for
determining the application are out-of-date, planning permission should be granted unless:

i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or

ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole.

In this instance the site relates to a Listed Building and is located within the Green Belt and
so therefore paragraph 11 (d)(i) applies, and the proposal needs to be assessed against the
relevant heritage and Green Belt policies which are set out in detail below.

Sites location within the Green Belt
The site is designated as Green Belt under PfE Policy JP-G9: Green Belt.

NPPF Chapter 13 - Protecting Green Belt Land and OL policies of the UDP set out the
national and local considerations of development within the Green Belt. UDP Policies are
largely consistent with the NPPF and therefore hold significant weight. The policies of the
NPPF hold substantial weight in terms of the consideration of development within the Green
Belt, not least as these policies are more up to date than the UDP.

Paragraph 152 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful
to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances.

Paragraph 153 states that when considering any planning application, local planning
authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt.
'Very special circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.

Paragraph 154 of the NPPF makes it clear that development in the Green Belt is
inappropriate unless one of eight exceptions apply:

a. buildings for agriculture and forestry;

b. the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use), including buildings, for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and
burial grounds and allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green
Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

c. the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building;

d. the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;

e. limited infilling in villages;

f. limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and

g. limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land
(including a material change of use to residential or mixed use including residential),
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not
cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

h. Other forms of development provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with

Page 116



the purposes of including land within it. These are:

i. mineral extraction;

ii. engineering operations;

iii. local transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt
location;

iv. the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction;

v. material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for outdoor sport or
recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds); and

vi. development, including buildings, brought forward under a Community Right to Build
Order or Neighbourhood Development Order.

UDP Policy OL1/4 - Conversion and Re-use of Buildings in the Green Belt is not

inappropriate development and would be permitted provided that:

¢ it would not have a materially greater impact than the present use on openness;

e any extensions of re-used buildings and any associated uses of land surrounding the
building do not conflict with the openness of the green belt;

¢ the buildings would be capable of conversion without major or complete reconstruction;
form, bulk and design would be in keeping with the surroundings;

e suitable access and traffic can be accommodated;

e necessary services can be provided;

e no damage to habitats or protected species.

In terms of the requirements of the NPPF, paragraph 153 of the Framework states that
when considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt and that 'very special
circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.

The proposed development would involve the conversion of an existing building to 5
dwellings. The building is constructed from stone with a slate roof and as such, is capable of
conversion. The issues of form, bulk, design and access will be addressed later in the
report. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with the exception in
paragraph 154 h) iv of the NPPF and would be appropriate development.

Impact on Openness

The proposal seeks to convert the building, with no extensions. The proposed
development involves the creation of an access to the side of the building and a car park
and bin storage area to the rear. These changes would involve the erection of a wall with a
planted hedgerow along the northern boundary. The proposed conversion of the building
and the proposed changes to the side and rear would not cause significant harm to the
openness of the Green Belt. Therefore, the proposed development would not have
significant adverse impact upon the openness of the Green Belt and would be in
accordance with UDP Policy OL1/4 and the NPPF.

Access to services and amenities

PfE Policy JP-C1: 'An Integrated Network' seeks to deliver an accessible low carbon
Greater Manchester. They seek to do this via a range of measures, including, amongst
other things, delivering a pattern of development that minimises both the need to travel and
the distance travelled by unsustainable modes to jobs, housing and other key services and
locating and designing development, to deliver a significant increase in the proportion of
trips that can be made by walking, cycling and public transport

Page 117



The application site is on the main Walmersley Old Rd and is within a short walk of the bus
stop. This bus stop has an hourly service, therefore linking the village to the public
transport network within the borough. Although the representations received, concern has
been raised over how long this service will last, the Council has to take into consideration
that the settlement of Mount Pleasant is served by an hourly bus service.

Loss of a Community Facility

NPPF 2024 makes clear that to support a prosperous rural economy, planning decisions
should enable the retention of accessible community facilities including public houses.
Paragraph 88 of the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should enable, amongst
other things, the retention and development of accessible local services and community
facilities, such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural
buildings, public houses and places of worship.

PfE Policy JP-P3: 'Cultural Facilities' seeks to develop and support cultural businesses and
attractions, where appropriate, including, amongst other things, protecting existing heritage,
cultural and community venues, facilities and uses.

Representations received, assert weight should be given to the emerging Draft Local Plan,
Policy LP-CM4: 'Community facilities' which seeks to resist proposals that would result in
the loss of sites and premises currently, or last used for the provision of community facilities
and states:

"Their loss will only be accepted if:

a. It can be clearly demonstrated that the community use is no longer needed or
economically viable; or

b. Alternative provision of equivalent or greater community benefit is made available in a
location that continues to serve the community from which the facility is to be lost."

In terms of the weight to be given to this Draft Local Plan policy, the preparation of the
Council's local plan is at early stage in the preparation process of creating a new Local
Plan. Itis part way through Regulation 18 stage which allows local planning authorities to
seek public and stakeholder feedback on draft options and issues before a more formal
consultation under Regulation 19 Publication stage. The Council is currently in the process
of reviewing the representations received following closure of the initial consultation period
ending in May, 2025.

Due to the Council's Draft Local Plan being at this stage, case law directs Council's to give a
Draft Local Plan at this stage in the plan preparation process very limited weight. In
contrast, the adopted plans; Bury Unitary Development Plan and the Greater Manchester
Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan, should be given full weight in the assessment
of planning applications.

In addition to the above, it is important to understand the history of the site becoming
vacant. The application site was put up for sale for approximately three years before the
former landlord retired and its closure at the end of October 2017 as a result of the former
landlord retiring. Since its closure local residents have formed a community cooperative,
"The Raglan Community Hub' (RCH), who have advised that since the closure of the Pub
they have established a legal structure, won grant aid to support their efforts, commissioned
a specialist professional survey and valuation of the pub and developed a Business Plan
setting out a financial and organisational model for its successful renovation and reopening.
The RCH was helped with this work by other successful community based 'Pub Is The Hub'
initiatives. The RCH also asked the Council to include the building on the Council's List of

Page 118



Assets of Community Value (ACV).

The process of including Assets of Community Value on the Council's ACV list is separate
from the planning process. It recognises that the land has in the recent past furthered the
social wellbeing of the interests of the community. Section 88(2) of the Localism Act 2011
provides that land in a local authority's area is an ACV if:

"There is a time in the recent past when an actual use of the building or other land that was
not an ancillary use furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local community, and

it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there could be a
non-ancillary use of the building or other land that would further (whether or not in the same
way as before) the social wellbeing or interests of the local community'.

The effect of the listing is that if the landowner intends to sell the land, community interest
groups have a right to be treated as a potential bidder and if they do so, the sale cannot
take place for six months to allow the community group to put a bid together. However, at
the end of this "moratorium", it is entirely up to the owner to determine whether a sale goes
through, to whom, and for how much. There is no requirement for the owner to accept an
offer that may be made by the community and this means that the community bid may not
be the successful one.

It is also important to note that the provisions also do not place any restriction on what an
owner can do with their property, once on the list, so long as it remains in their ownership.
This is because it is planning policy that determines permitted uses for particular sites. In
this regard, planning applications have to be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The owner of the site gave notice to the Council of the intension to sell the site on
02/07/2018. This triggered the 6 month moratorium period where the owner could not sell
the site unless to a local community group.

Through the ACV process, the owner is under no obligation at any point to sell the pub to
the community group, providing the 6-month moratorium has been adhered to, which in this
case itwas. The applicant also does also not have to demonstrate whether the pub is or
was a viable business and they can choose to seek alternatives uses should they wish.
After the moratorium, the owner is free to sell the site to whoever they chose and at
whatever price.

The moratorium ended on 02/01/2019 and whilst the Raglan Community Hub submitted a
bid for the application site, it was not an acceptable bid to the former owner of the building
and therefore the application site was not sold to the community group.

The application site was subsequently sold to the applicant in 2020 and following the sale,
the Council was required to remove the site from the Council's ACV Register. It would
have been removed in any event after 5 years. Following the sale local residents
subsequently sought to re-include the building on the ACV list which was unsuccessful. In
light of the above, the application site is no longer on the Council's list of Assets of
Community Value. As such this has no material weight in the planning consideration.

Whilst considering residents concerns and their assertion they have the funds to both buy
and run the building as a pub again, the applicant has advised that the offer verbally given
to him was not enough and also points out that the offer was not put forward formally. The
planning application process cannot force an owner to sell their site.

Taking the above in to consideration; the fact that the former owner tried to sell the site as a

Page 119



going concern before selling to the applicant, the offers made to the current owner (the
applicant) and that the owner does not want to sell the building to the community at the
price they have offered and that the planning system cannot force an owner to sell their
land/property, along with the fact that the closure of the pub occurred at the end of October
2017, the Grade Il listed building has been vacant and thus the former pub has not served
as a community facility for the last 8 years, or held a place within the community for the
same length of time and it is clear through the AVC process and since that time, that the
community has not been able to purchase it. The building has therefore has not been
recently used or is presently used for or by the community. These facts lead officers to
conclude that the proposal does not conflict with PfE Policy JP-P3: 'Cultural Facilities'.

Principle of Development Conclusion

The proposed development of converting the existing building would comply with Green Belt
Policy and would not have a significant adverse impact upon the openness of the Green
Belt.

It has been demonstrated that there is no justification to resist the application based on the
loss of the community pub that has now been vacant for very nearly 8 years, which has
been proved through the AVC process and following it.

Based on the above, the proposal to convert the building into 5 dwellings would be
acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policies H1/2 and OL1/4 of the
UDP and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF.

Heritage Assets

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 require
decision makers to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or
its setting or any feature of architectural or historic interest it possesses. The decision maker
must also give considerable importance and weight to the desirability of preserving a listed
building and the setting of a listed building.

Section 72 of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
local planning authorities to give special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and
should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations

Paragraph 210 of the NPPF states that in determining applications, local planning
authorities should take account of:

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.

Paragraph 212 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight
should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm,
total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance."

Paragraph 213 states any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage

Page 120



asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should
require clear and convincing justification.

Mount Pleasant conservation area is located on the exposed shoulder of Snape Hill below
Harden Moor to the north of Bury. According to the Mount Pleasant Conservation Area
Appraisal the settlement developed as an isolated factory village and illustrates an important
aspect of early textile industrial growth in the Upper Pennine area. The Mill complex
employed over a 100 people at its height.

The Mill has now been demolished and the village redeveloped to incorporate new housing
which blends into the stone terrace style of the original village. The conservation area
covers the whole of the building group. The earliest surviving buildings date from the 18th
century and substantial numbers of the buildings have been included on the National
Heritage List for England (NHLE), including the former Public House and the adjoining
terrace, which are all designated as Grade Il listed buildings. Together they form a group
of listed buildings providing group value within the conservation area.

It is understood and accepted that the heritage significance of the former Lord Raglan
Public House is derived from its architectural and historic interest by virtue of its age,
design, use of local materials and its communal connection to the factory village and as
such it makes a strong contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation
area.

In respect of the proposed internal adaptations, the proposal would result in works that
would be reversible requiring the soft strip of non-historic fixtures and fittings within the
building. As such, subject to sympathetic windows, doors, rooflights and fenestration details
being used, where they need to be replaced, its group value within the conservation area
would be preserved and its significance as a listed building would not be harmed. Similarly
the proposed sprinkler system to meet GM Fire Service requirements is considered to not
harm the listed building.

In terms of the external alterations to the listed building, the submission contains plans
indicating timber top hung windows would be provided. The Conservation Officer has
indicated that mock sash windows would be appropriate but of a single sash sliding type.
On the front roofslope of the property two rooflights are proposed to serve two bedrooms. It
is considered that these rooflights should be conservation area style rooflights. Details in
relation to window details, rooflights and rainwater goods have been secured by condition.

Subject to the use of conditions, the proposed works and changes would safeguard the
character of the listed building and minimise the effect any external changes on the
character and appearance of the conservation area.

The works proposed within the area to the rear and side of the listed building, within its
former rear service area, include; removal of soft landscaping, creation of a slightly wider
access and the regrading of this part of the application site, to create a level area in which to
accommodate the proposed car parking, a small amenity area for future occupiers, and the
refuse storage and cycle storage facilities.

This area of the proposals would have the more noticeable effect on visual amenity primarily
due to the loss of the planting and trees that are currently present on the application site.
These are visible in views from Bury Old Road and also from the rear of neighbouring
properties.

The proposal also includes rebuilding the boundary wall separating the site at its lower level
from the former car park that was associated with the building and its former use as a Public

Page 121



House. However, the proposed external changes could be sympathetically incorporated
into the area at the side and rear of the building by constructing the proposed altered
boundary walls out of materials appropriate to this rural conservation area and securing soft
planting within the proposed amenity space to the rear of the building and on top and/ or
within the proposed new retaining wall. This would be secured by planning condition.

The proposed alterations to form parking provision, landscaping, bin storage and amenity
space would have no more significant visual impact on the setting of the listed building than
the existing arrangements have. As such, the alterations listed above would not lead to any
loss of significance of the listed building. Similarly, the external proposals would result in a
small reduction of the former car park, which represents a negative feature within the
conservation area, and would have no more of an impact upon the conservation area than
the existing arrangements. As such, the proposed development would be considered to be
neutral in terms of impact and therefore would preserve the character and appearance of
the conservation area.

In conclusion, the proposed development would preserve the character of the listed building
and the conservation area and would be in accordance with Policies EN2/1, EN2/2, EN2/3
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Policy JP-P2 of the Places for Everyone Joint
Development Plan and the NPPF.

Highway Safety

PfE Policy JP-C8: "Transport Requirements of New Development' states that new
development will be required to be located and designed to enable and encourage walking,
cycling and public transport use, to reduce the negative effects of car dependency, and help
deliver high quality, attractive, livable and sustainable environments. It also requires,
amongst other things, developments to make adequate car parking provision, including for
disabled drivers and passengers; ensuring that car parking provision is well integrated and
unobtrusive, so it supports the street scene and incorporates enough secure and covered
cycle parking to meet long-term demand from occupiers and visitors in a convenient location
that helps to maximise its use.

The application site is on the main Walmersley Old Rd and it has a bus stop linking it to the
public transport in close proximity. Vehicular access is proposed to the side of the former
Public House, between the property and the former car park. This would utilise the existing
access and lead to a parking area, refuse storage and an amenity area.

The Traffic Section has raised objections to the proposed intensification of use of this
existing access, which they consider to be sub-standard in design and have also raised
concern that the visibility splay to the north of the access relies on land not within the
applicants ownership.

To address these objections, the planning application is supported by a Transport
Statement prepared by WA (ref ST20131 0001) which demonstrates that there is sufficient
visibility for vehicles emerging from the site access in line with advice in Manual for Streets
(MfS) based on a 30mph speed limit (referring to WA drawing number ST20131-004) and
that a large refuse collection vehicle has sufficient space to utilise the proposed site access
for turning (referring to WA drawing number ST20131-005).

Whilst it is recognised that reversing manoeuvres present a higher safety risk than forward
manoeuvres, it should also be acknowledged that existing traffic flows on this part of
Walmersley Old Road are very low. The proposed development of 5 dwellings would
generate significantly less traffic than the existing use of the building as a pub. As such, the
level of traffic using this road would not be materially changed by the proposed
development, and chances of any interactions with existing vehicles would be very low. In

Page 122



addition, it is evident that the Council collect refuse from properties located north of the
application site and therefore it is unlikely the refuse wagon would turn around here,
particularly as the Council's Waste Management and Collection team have not used the
former pub car park for turning round since the closure of the pub and the car park a few
years ago.

In addition, the proposal provides a splayed access. The visibility splay to the north of the
application site crosses the former car park, which is not within the applicants ownership.
However, it should be noted that no application has been submitted to the Council for
development on this land and the land would remain open. If an application was to be
submitted, the Council could reasonably insist that the visibility splay for the current
proposal must be accommodated within any proposed development. As such, the proposed
development would provide the required level of visibility and would not be detrimental to
highway safety.

The applicant has also amended the layout of the proposed rear car park so any users
would enter and leave the proposed car park in a forward gear. This would ensure that
future users would have a safe access/egress which they could enter and leave in forward
gear.

In their recommended reason for refusal, the Traffic Section has raised objections relating to
the car parking provision being inadequate and substandard, at a site where off-highway
parking could be "easily accommodated" on the former car park. As such, the proposed
parallel parking spaces, would lead to vehicles parking and carrying out manoeuvres on
Walmersley Old Road to the detriment of the free flow of traffic. The applicant has
confirmed that the car park is in separate ownership and does not form part of this
application.

Walmersley Old Road is a cobbled road that is effectively made single-track by existing
kerbside parking, leading to a low-speed environment leading to surrounding farms and
properties. Along Bury Old Road in front of the terraces which face onto the road, kerbside
parking is part of the existing character of the road, and continuation of this at the site
frontage would have no material impact on the operation of the road.

Walmersley Old Road is generally a low speed road which has negligible amounts of
through traffic, as there are only a handful of farm and former farmstead properties who
access their homes and businesses by the road to the north of the site and therefore
collisions are likely to be very low, and certainly not severe, as the NPPF requires.

Therefore, the proposed development would not have a severely detrimental impact upon
highway and pedestrian safety and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and
HT2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Policies JP-C5, JP-C6 and JP-C8 of the
Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan.

Parking

The application site is located within Parking Standards Zone 4, as defined by SPD11.

This SPD requires that apartment developments provide car parking provision of 1.5 spaces
per apartment/ dwelling,1 covered and secure cycle parking storage provision per
residential unit, and either 6% of the parking spaces should provide bays suitable for
disabled parking, or 3 disabled parking spaces, whichever is the greater.

This equates to 8 parking spaces, 5 secure cycle storage provision and 3 disabled parking
bays.

The proposed development would provide 7 parking spaces, 1 disabled parking bay and no

Page 123



cycle parking would be provided. 6 parking spaces would be provided at the rear of the
building and there would be 1 parking space and 1 disabled parking bay at the front of the
building.

The applicant has also removed one formal car parking space initially proposed to the front
of the building, to aid in visibility at the access to the rear car park. Given the nature and
location of the development and given that only 1 of the apartments has a level access for a
person with mobility difficulties, the number of parking bays and disabled parking spaces
would be acceptable in this instance. This is acceptable given the application site is a listed
building and the provision of a lift within the building would be highly likely to adversely
affect the historic fabric of the listed building.

The submitted Transport Assessment presents census data from 2021 that shows that the
overwhelming majority of households within the existing village own 1 or 2 cars. There is no
evidence to dispute this claim and no reason to assume that future residents of the
proposed development would have a higher prevalence of car ownership, particularly as the
development comprises apartments. It is proposed that each apartment would have at
least one designated car parking bay and therefore 3 spaces would operate on a first home
basis.

Whilst cycle parking is referred to in the supporting information, none is shown on the
proposed plans. The submitted floor plans and site plans demonstrate that there is space
both within the basement area of the building to safely secure bikes and this could be
secured by a condition.

Therefore, the level of parking provision would be acceptable, and the proposed
development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan and SPD11.

Drainage/Flooding

The site is not in an area at risk of flooding and has previously been in use, with the building
already served by drainage. The proposal is not expected to increase flooding further
down stream.

In respect of the surface water drainage and flooding, particularly from the proposed
changes to the land to the rear of the application building, concerns have been raised within
the representations received that discharge of water onto adjoining farm land would not be
acceptable to the land owner, as it would prevent the use of their agricultural land for their
agricultural business. In respect of this, paragraph 200 of the NPPF is clear that new
developments should not put unreasonable restrictions on existing businesses.

The Drainage Section have therefore been made aware of this concern and have no
objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to surface water drainage.
scheme. On the basis of this, it is considered the proposal would sufficiently accord with
PfE Policy JP-S4: Flood Risk and the Water Environment, and would also meet the
requirement of paragraph 200 of the NPPF.

Layout and Design
The application site sits within the Pennine Foothills (West/South Pennines), Knowl and
Rooley Moors, Fringes and Foothills, landscape character area.

PfE Policy JP-G1: 'Landscape Character' requires development within a Landscape
Character Type, should reflect and respond to the special qualities and sensitivities of the
key landscape characteristics of its location, including having regard to:

e Topography, geology and drainage;

Page 124



Land use and field patterns;

Semi-natural habitat and woodland cover;
Archaeology and cultural heritage;

Settlement, road pattern and rights of way; and
Views and perceptual qualities.

The interface of new development with the surrounding countryside/landscape is of
particular importance. These transitional areas require well-considered and sensitive
treatment.

By virtue of securing a new use for the listed building, subject to the repair, alteration and
maintenance materials for the building being secured by condition, the proposals would
enhance the worn down appearance of the building and in turn the landscape in which the
building is set. Similarly, planning conditions can be used to ensure the alterations
proposed to the rear of the site, including the proposed retaining walls, are constructed in
materials appropriate to this rural landscape and are suitably landscaped. Therefore, the
proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, JP-G1 and JP-P1.

PfE Policy JP-H3: "Type, Size and Design of New Housing' states that all new dwellings
must:

1. Comply with the nationally described space standards; and
2. Be built to the 'accessible and adaptable' standard in Part M4(2) of the Building
Regulations unless specific site conditions make this impracticable.

This is further supported by UDP Policy H2/4: 'Conversions' that seeks to consider the
impact of any proposals on the amenity of the occupants.

The proposed apartments would each provide two bedrooms. All bedrooms proposed
exceed the minimum bedroom sizes set out in the nationally prescribed space standards
and would therefore provide a satisfactory level of living accommodation. Three of the five
apartments proposed would be duplex apartments and all habitable rooms would be served
by windows, thus the proposal would secure a satisfactory standard of living for future
occupiers.

Compliance with Part M4(2) is secured by condition.

Ecology

PfE Policy JP-G8: 'A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity' states that through
local planning and associated activities a net enhancement of biodiversity resources will be
sought. This is supported by UDP Policy EN6/3: Features of Ecological Value that seeks to
retain, protect and enhance the natural environment and seeks to retain features of
ecological or wildlife value. Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that the planning policies and
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. Policy
ENB8/2: 'Woodland and Tree Planting' supports and encourages new woodland and tree
planting within the borough.

Bats

The loft of the existing premises has already been converted, and the external works
required to facilitate the proposed conversion are minor. As such, Greater Manchester
Ecology Unit (GMEU) consider that the proposal would be a low risk for bats and
recommend that an informative would be appropriate informing the applicant of what should
be done should a bat/ bats be found during works.

Page 125



Other Protected Species

GMEU are satisfied that it is very unlikely that any other protected species will be present
within the building, on or within the zone of influence of the development. No further
information or measures are therefore required.

Nesting Birds
The development appears to result in the loss of the trees/shrubs to the rear of the existing

building, potential bird nesting habitat. Birds may also nest on the exterior of the former
public house. All British birds nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are
protected by Section 1 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, as amended. A condition has
therefore been applied to restrict works to trees and shrubs to outside of the nesting
season.

Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment & Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)
While every grant of planning permission in England is deemed to have been granted
subject to the biodiversity gain condition, commencement and transitional arrangements,
due to some exemptions. This means that certain permissions are not subject to
biodiversity net gain (BNG) . The application for planning permission was made before 2nd
April 2024 and is therefore exempt from statutory BNG requirements.

That said, as set out above, paragraph 187 of the NPPF requires developments to
contribute to an enhance the natural environment and this can still be accommodated within
the development through suitable mitigation. The development would result in the loss of a
small area of vegetation to car parking to the rear of the existing buildings. Potential adverse
effects on wildlife include loss of bat roosting and bird nesting opportunities. It appears
likely that full mitigation could be achieved on the site through appropriate soft landscaping
proposals. An indicative landscaping scheme has been submitted with the proposal that
indicates areas of hedgerow and lawn, but no tree planting and no provision for bat and bird
boxes. As such a landscaping condition is proposed to secure these details.

Subiject to conditions securing both landscape/ countryside appropriate landscaping and bat
and bird box provision, the proposal would accord with PfE Policy JP-G8.

Amenity

UDP Policy H2/4: 'Conversions' requires applications for conversion to have regard to the
effect on the amenity of the neighbouring properties through noise, visual intrusion, the
position of entrances, impact of parking areas, extensions and fire escapes.

The application site is attached to neighbouring residential properties via a flat roof two
storey side addition. It has an open aspect to three of its four elevations. It has clear
views to its front and rear over the adjoining countryside. Its north facing elevation
overlooks the former car park associated with its former use and the countryside beyond

Other terraced properties are orientated at 90 degrees to the application site and are
positioned to its south-west. The area to the rear of the application site borders detached
garden areas, located to the rear of Nos. 13-28 Mount Pleasant.

The position of the openings on the existing building would not change and would all serve
the proposed apartments. The first floor of the existing building was in use as residential
accommodation for the landlord of the pub and as such, the proposed development would
not have any greater impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties than the existing
arrangements.

The rooms in the roofspace would be served by rooflights and as such, would not have a
significant adverse impact upon the neighbouring properties.

Page 126



At the rear, the existing two storey rear flat roof extension would have full height glazing and
would relate to a staircase. As this would not be habitable, the proposed glazing would be
acceptable. In addition, a lightwell would be provided to ensure full illumination of the rear
staircase.

The accommodation within the existing flat roof rear extension located to the rear and side
of the building, is orientated to face away from neighbouring properties. Therefore,
occupation of the building for the residential uses proposed would not directly overlook any
neighbouring residential properties.

In terms of noise and disturbance, the permitted fallback use for the property is its use as a
public house. At its busiest, this Public House served food and was well used, as is
indicated by the size of the adjacent former car park. The proposed occupation of the
building by up to 10 occupants (2 occupants per apartment), plus any visitors, would be
quieter than the previous use. As such, the proposed development would not have a
significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties in terms of
noise.

Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the
amenity of the neighbouring properties in terms of noise and loss of privacy/light and would
be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/4 and EN7/2 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

Carbon and Energy

PfE Policy JP-S2: 'Carbon and Energy' sets out the steps required to achieve net zero
carbon emissions. The submitted details state the proposals would align with the 2022 Part
L Building Regulations and therefore the proposal accords with the requirements of this
policy.

Digital Connectivity

PfE Policy JP-C2: 'Digital Connectivity' requires all new development to have full fibre to

premises connections unless technically infeasible and / or unviable. The policy supports
the provision of free, secure, high-speed public wi-fi connections, particularly in the most
frequented areas.

In compliance with PfE Policy JP-C2, the submission advises that the proposed
development would support high-quality digital infrastructure through the following
measures:

e Full Fibre Superfast Internet will be installed to the development, when and if it is
available in Nangreaves.

o Mesh network throughout the property, ensuring seamless fast wireless internet to all
rooms.

A mesh network Wi-Fi system uses multiple access points (nodes) to create a single,
seamless Wi-Fi network throughout a home or building, eliminating dead zones and
providing consistent coverage. Unlike traditional routers, which broadcast from a single
point, mesh systems distribute the Wi-Fi signal from multiple access points, ensuring a
strong and reliable connection everywhere. The proposal would therefore comply with
Policy JP-C2.

Response to objections
o With regards to the asset of community value, the Lord Raglan is no longer listed as a

Page 127



formal ACV and has stood vacant for 8 years.

¢ As detailed above, the proposed development would bring back into use an important
historic building within the conservation area which would preserve the longevity of the
building for years to come. The proposed development is therefore considered to be
appropriate development in compliance with planning policies and which would
contribute to the Borough's housing stock.

o Details of materials would be sought by condition to ensure an appropriate and
sympathetic development.

¢ A Construction Traffic Management Plan, including a dilapidation survey prior to the
commencement of development would be included.

o A scheme for 5 apartments is considered not to be of a scale to add significant levels of
traffic to the area to cause demonstrable highway safety or parking issues.

e All other issues raised have been covered in the above report and by condition relevant.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings -

Location plan 101 rev 2

Site - block plan 102 rev 2

Existing and proposed site plan 002 rev 17

Existing GA plans 002

Existing elevations 003 rev 2

Proposed GA plans 004 rev 3

Fire plan 020 rev 3

Finishes 030 rev 2

Window schedule and elevations 081 rev 2

Setting out elevations 012 rev 1

Driveway and retaining walls sections - proposed 221 rev 2
Driveway and retaining wall sections - proposed 0.221 rev 2
Driveway and retaining wall sections - existing 222

Existing and proposed sections 223

Existing and proposed landscape plan 0.002 rev 17
Existing and proposed sections - pub rear 0.223

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the

Page 128



drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

No development hereby permitted (except demolition and site clearance) within
any approved phase shall take place until the works relating to land contamination
detailed below are fully completed:

With consideration to human health, controlled waters and the wider environment,
the following documents shall be completed to characterise potential risk to
sensitive receptors and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval:

I.  Preliminary Risk Assessment (PRA). Submission of this document is the
minimum requirement.

Il.  Generic Quantitative Risk Assessment (GQRA). Submission of this document
only if PRA requires it.

lIl. Detailed Quantitative Risk Assessment (DQRA). Submission of this document if
GQRA requires it.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs 187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(December 2024).

No development hereby permitted (except demolition and site clearance) shall
take place until the works relating to land contamination detailed below are fully
completed:

In accordance with the findings of site characterisation and risk assessment as
previously approved, documents from the following shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval:

I. Remedial Options Appraisal.
Il. Remediation Strategy.
lI. Verification Plan.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs 187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(December 2024).

The development hereby permitted within any approved phase shall not be
occupied/brought into use until the works relating to land contamination detailed
below are fully completed:

Where remediation is required, it shall be carried out in full accordance with the
approved Remediation Strategy.

A Verification Report must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval upon completion of remediation works. The Verification Report must
include information validating all remediation works carried out; details of imported
materials (source/quantity/suitability); details of exported materials; and details of
any unexpected contamination.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs

187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December 2024).

The development hereby approved within any approved phase shall not be

Page 129



brought into use until written confirmation is provided to the Local Planning
Authority that unexpected or previously unidentified contamination was not
encountered during the course of development works.

If, during development, unexpected contamination is found to be present on the
site, no further works shall be carried out at the affected location until the following
are submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval:

l. Risk Assessment (GQRA or DQRA);

Il. Remediation Strategy & Verification Plan;

If remediation is required, it shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
Remediation Strategy. Upon completion of remediation works, a Verification
Report shall be submitted for approval. The Verification Report must include
information validating all remediation works carried out; details of imported
materials (source/quantity/suitability); details of exported materials; and details of
any unexpected contamination.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs 187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(December 2024).

Any soil or soil forming materials to be brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use.

Proposals for contamination testing including testing schedules, sampling
frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as determined by
appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to any soil or soil forming materials
being brought onto site.

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc.) submitted to
Local Planning Authority for approval prior to the development being brought into
use.

Reason. To prevent unacceptable risk to Human Health and Controlled Waters
and to prevent pollution of the environment in accordance with the aims and
Paragraphs 187(f), 196 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(December 2024).

No works to trees or shrubs shall occur or conversion works commence between
the 1st March and 31st August in any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a
suitably experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to clearance
and written confirmation provided that no active bird nests are present which has
been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies JP-G8: A Net Enhancement of Biodiversity and Geodiversity
and ENG6/3 - Features of Ecological Value of the Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The contents of the
plan should include native tree and shrub planting and the provision of bat and bird
boxes. The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12
months from the date the buildings is first occupied or within the first available tree
planting season, and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely

Page 130



10.

11.

12.

13.

damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be
replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required
to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

Development shall not commence until details of surface water drainage proposals
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme must be based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National
Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in accordance with the
Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March
2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water
drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support the chosen
solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also be provided.
The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first occupation and
thereafter maintained.
Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact. To promote sustainable
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Policies JP-S4 Floor Risk and the
Water Environment and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate change,
flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a sprinkler/misting
system to meet the requirements of BS 9251:2014 or other subsequent standard
that meets the requirements of Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service and
deemed suitable to overcome the site's emergency access deficiencies, shall be
installed in each of the dwellings hereby approved and shall thereafter be
maintained at all times.

Reason. In the interests of fire safety and to ensure the safe and satisfactory
development of the site and for its future occupiers pursuant to Development Plan
Policies H1/2 - Further Housing Development, H2/2 - The Layout of New
Residential Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and JP-C8-
Transport Requirements of New Development.

Notwithstanding the submitted information, no development shall commence until
details of all external materials and finishes to be used for the repair, maintenance
and refurbishment of the building, the erection of any external boundary walls and
for the retaining walls has been submitted to, inspected, and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. All works shall be undertaken in accordance with
the details so approved which shall thereafter be maintained for the lifetime of the
development.

Reason. A pre-commencement condition is required in order to ensure that the
details are satisfactory to preserve the listed building and its setting and character
in accordance with EN2/1 - Character of Conservation Areas, EN2/2 -
Conservation Area Control, EN2/3: Listed Buildings of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan, Policy JP-P2: Heritage of the Greater Manchester Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide:

{Residential less than 10 parking spaces}
¢ 1 no. electric vehicle (EV) charging point (minimum 7kW*) per dwelling/parking

Page 131



14.

15.

space.

Certification and photographic evidence of the installation of the agreed electric
vehicle charge points shall be submitted to Local Planning Authority for approval
prior to the development being brought into use. The infrastructure shall be
maintained and operational in perpetuity.

*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to
be used. Further information regarding minimum standards can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/transport/low-emission-and-electric-vehicles.

Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the
development is sustainable and to safeguard residential amenity, public health and
quality of life with respect to Local Air Quality, in accordance with paragraphs
112e, 117e, 187e and 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December
2024) and Places for Everyone Policy JP-S5 (Clean Air).

The development hereby approved shall not be commenced unless and until the
scope of a photographic dilapidation survey of the access to the site has been
submitted to/agreed with the Local Planning Authority and the undertaking of the
agreed dilapidation survey has been submitted to and approved by the Local
planing Authority. Within one month of completion of the development, a further
survey shall be undertaken to assess the condition of the route. Any remedial
works required as a result of damage caused by demolition/construction traffic
shall be undertaken at the expense of the applicant to a specification and
programme to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To maintain the integrity of the adjacent Public Right of Way and in the
interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies
H2/2 - the Layout of New Residential Development, and JP-C8 - Transport
Requirements of New Development.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

1. Access route for all construction vehicles to the site from the Key Route
Network;

2. Access point/arrangements for construction traffic from Radcliffe New Road
and all temporary works required to facilitate access for construction vehicles;

3. If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, incorporating the provision,
where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection measures;

4. A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the
vicinity of the site and its access onto Radcliffe New Road;

5. Confirmation of hours of operation and delivery & construction vehicle sizes;

6. Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage
of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres;

7. Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and
construction vehicles, together with storage on site of construction materials;

8. Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto
the adjacent highways as a result of the groundworks operations or carried on the
wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust
nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction

Page 132



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Development Plan
Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, JP-C5 Streets for All, JP -C6
Walking and Cycling and JP-C8 - Transport Requirements for New Development.

The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved being
brought into use.

Reason. To ensure good highway design and adequate off-street car parking
arrangements and provision, in the interests of road and pedestrian safety
pursuant to Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design,
JP-C5 - Streets for All, JP-C6 - Walking and Cycling, JP-C8 - Transport
Requirements of New Development, HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development
and Supplementary Planning Document 11: Parking Standards in Bury.

The bin storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be made available
prior to the use hereby approved commencing and maintained thereafter.
Reason. To ensure adequate provision for the storage and disposal of refuse
within the curtilage of the site, clear of the adopted highway pursuant to
Development Plan Policies En1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, H2/4 -
Conversions, H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development, JP-C5 Streets
for all, JP-C6 Walking and Cycling and JP-P1 Sustainable Places.

The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before the
development hereby approved is first occupied and the areas used for the
manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all
times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Development Plan Policies
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, JP-C5 Streets for All, JP -C6 Walking and
Cycling and JP-C8 - Transport Requirements for New Development.

The dwelling hereby approved shall be built in accordance with the ‘accessible and
adaptable’ standard in Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site pursuant to Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Policy JP-H3: Type, Size and Design of New
Housing.

Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015, as subsequently amended, no development
shall be carried out within the terms of Classes A to F of Part 2 of Schedule 2 of
the Order, without the submission and approval of a relevant planning application.
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur
pursuant to policies of the Development Plan listed.

No development shall commence unless and until a scheme for secured cycle

Page 133



storage has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planing Authority. The
approved scheme only shall thereafter be implemented prior to first occupation
and thereafter maintained.

Reason. To provide acceptable levels of facilities for future occupiers and provide
alternative means of sustainable travel pursuant to Policies H2/4 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan, Policy JP-C6 of the Places for Everyone Joint
Development Plan and Supplementary Planning Document 11 - Parking
Standards in Bury

22.  All roof lights shown on drawing no. DA18037 012 rev 1 - Setting out elevations
shall be of a 'conservation style' to sit flush with the roof surface and shall not
protrude from the roof plane.

Reason. To ensure a sympathetic relationship with the character and appearance
of the host building, a listed building and in accordance with the requirements of
Policies EN2/3: Listed Buildings of the Bury Unitary Development Plan, Policy
JP-P2: Heritage of the Greater Manchester Places for Everyone Joint
Development Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 134



Page 135



Ward: North Manor ltem 06

Applicant: Windlehurst Estates Limited
Location: Lord Raglan, Mount Pleasant, Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SP
Proposal: Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 5 no. apartments

Application Ref: 70214/Listed Building Target Date: 06/05/2024
Consent

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The proposal relates to a vacant public house and its rear and side curtilage. The Public
House is a Grade Il Listed Building and falls within the Mount Pleasant Conservation Area
and the Green Belt. The application site also sits within the Pennine Foothills
(West/South Pennines), Knowl and Rooley Moors, Fringes and Foothills Landscape
Character Area.

The site is situated to the north of the former cotton mill complex and associated factory
village Mount Pleasant. It is in an elevated position relative to the neighbouring buildings to
the south. The cobbled road on which the property fronts rises up hill towards Harden
Moor.

The land falls westwards from the rear of the building and continues to rise to the north and
east. The northern boundary of the application site forms the southern boundary of the car
park that was previously associated with the former public house use. This boundary is
formed by retaining walls at the juxtaposition with the curtilage area to the public house,
which is at a significantly lower level that the former car park.

During the course of this application, the development proposals have revised and reduced,
with the submitted red edge to exclude the car park formally used by the Public House, on
which the initial scheme proposed the erection of 3 no. terraced dwellings on the car park
area. These have been removed from the proposal, hence the proposal now solely seeks
permission to convert the building into 5 x 2 bedroom apartments and for changes to the
area to the rear of the former Pub.

This application seeks Listed Building Consent.
The conversion of the Lord Raglan would comprise:

Insertion of two rooflights to the principal roof slope;

Installation of a glazed roof lantern on part of the existing flat roof rear extension;
Demolition of an external steel staircase and blocking up of the associated fire door;
Conversion of the public house to 5 no. two bedroom apartments.

Removal of the trees and planting to the rear of the building and re-grading of the land
to the rear of the building to create car parking provision and space for refuse storage
e Erection of retaining walls to the side and rear of the listed building.

The submission is supported by a Planning, Design and Access Statement and a Heritage
Statement and a statement on the proposals compliance with relevant policies within the

Page 136



Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan.

A full planning application has also been submitted for the conversion of the Lord Raglan ,
reference 70213.

Relevant Planning History
59669 - Listed building consent for installation of defibrillator and cabinet on front elevation.
Approve with Conditions 31/03/2016

64476 - Conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments and erection of 6 no.
terraced houses. Withdrawn by Applicant 10/12/2019

64594 - Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments
and erection of 6 no. terraced houses. Withdrawn by Applicant 10/12/2019

65331 - Listed building consent for conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments
and erection of 4 no. terraced houses. Withdrawn by Applicant 09/09/2022

65428 - Conversion of existing public house to 4 no. apartments and erection of 4 no.
terraced houses. Refused 14/04/2022.

70213 - Conversion of existing public house to 5 no. apartments and erection of 3 no.
terraced houses on existing car park - Presently undetermined.

Publicity

Due to the application being a Grade Il Listed Building, located within Mount Pleasant
Conservation Area, the application has been advertised in the Press and by Site Notice.
115 letters to both nearby properties, Councillors and persons who made representations to
the original scheme have been sent.

5 representations have been received which raise the following issues -

e The revised plans area cosmetic changes to previously refused applications.

e Building on the car park conflicts with the policy around the local conservation plan,
green belt and are further reasons to refuse this application.

e The pub is also a Grade Il listed building and was the only building in Nangreaves where
locals could get together.

e The Council recognised the pub as an asset of community value and the community has
come together with a viable business plan to buy and reopen it as a community pub in
line with other thriving community owned hubs throughout the country.

e We need a community hub for the village.

e There is already a large new build estate less than a mile from the pub, therefore
additional housing is not required in the area.

e | presume the application still contravenes numerous constraints and policies,
particularly H1/2, EN1/1, EN1/2, EN2/1, EN2/2, EN2/3, OL1/2 and OL1/3 of the Bury
UDP and NPPF

¢ Question the ability of emergency services to react to potential incidents north of Mount
Pleasant.

Page 137



e It also reduces the turning spaces for all vehicles but especially large ones in the
cul-de-sac that is Walmersley Old Rd/Bury Old Rd.

¢ Do we really want fire tenders and trailered farm vehicles performing a U-turn on the
widest part of the lane, a road bridge over the M667?

e The current owners care nothing for the village as demonstrated by the dilapidation they
have allowed to scar the village. Please do not allow this change of use and
inappropriate development.

e The road cannot take any more traffic

Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control
Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Listed buildings - National Amenity Societies: No comments received.

Conservation Officer: No objection subject to conditions.
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

EN2/3 Listed Buildings

JP-P2 Heritage

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

NPPF and the Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

The NPPF at Paragraph 7 outlines that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute
to the achievement of sustainable development. Paragraphs 8-10 provide more details on
sustainable development with paragraph 8 identifying that the planning system has three
overarching objectives (economic, social and environmental) which are interdependent and
need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways.

Paragraph 10 advises that so that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way at
the heart of the framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The
Framework should be read as a whole (including its footnotes and annexes). Paragraphs
11 and 12 re-affirm that decisions should be taken in accordance with the development plan
where it is up-to-date.

Page 138



The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) which lays out detailed guidance on the
application of planning policy to accompany the NPPF. Due regard should be given to this
guidance when determining planning applications.

Heritage Assets

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 require
decision makers to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or
its setting or any feature of architectural or historic interest it possesses. The decision maker
must also give considerable importance and weight to the desirability of preserving the
setting of the listed building.

Section 72 of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
local planning authorities to give special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and
should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations

Paragraph 210 of the NPPF states that in in determining applications, local planning
authorities should take account of:

o the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

e the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and

o the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.

Paragraph 212 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight
should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm,
total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance."

Paragraph 213 states any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage
asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should
require clear and convincing justification.

Mount Pleasant conservation area is located on the exposed shoulder of Snape Hill below
Harden Moor to the north of Bury. According to the Mount Pleasant Conservation Area the
settlement developed as an isolated factory village and illustrates an important aspect of
early textile industrial growth in the Upper Pennine area. The Mill complex employed over a
100 people at its height.

The Mill has now been demolished and the village redeveloped to incorporate new housing
which blends into the stone terrace style of the original village. The conservation area
covers the whole of the building group. The earliest surviving buildings date from the 18th
century and substantial numbers of the buildings have been included on the National
Heritage List for England (NHLE), including the Lord Raglan which is Grade Il listed.

Page 139



The Lord Raglan is set adjacent to a number of terraces which are also Listed Buildings.
Together they form a group of listed buildings providing group value within the conservation
area.

It is understood and accepted that the heritage significance of the former Lord Raglan
Public House is derived from its architectural and historic interest by virtue of its age,
design, use of local materials and its communal connection to the factory village and as
such it makes a strong contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation
area.

The conversion of the listed Lord Raglan would be acceptable in that it would be brought
back into a viable use compatible with its conservation. The external works would be
sensitively incorporated within the original fabric of the building and internally, works to
convert the building into apartments would largely retain its legibility.

In respect of the proposed internal adaptations the proposal would result in works that
would be reversible requiring the soft strip of non-historic fixtures and fittings within the
building. However, it must be noted that there is nothing of any historical significance
remaining within the building to the additions and alterations carried out over many reays.
As such, subject to sympathetic windows and doors being used, where they need to be
replaced, its group value within the conservation area would be preserved and its
significance as a listed building would not be harmed. Any replacement doors and
windows can be secured by planning condition, and such a condition is therefore
recommended. Sympathetic rainwater goods that are appropriate to a listed building and
the conservation area are also recommended to be secured by planning condition.

The works proposed within the area to the rear of the listed building within its former rear
service area, include removal of overgrown landscaping and the regrading of this part of the
application site, to create a level area in which to accommodate car parking associated with
the proposed development, a small amenity area for future occupiers, and the refuse
storage and cycle storage facilities required for future occupiers of the building.

The proposal also includes rebuilding the boundary wall separating the site and its lower
level from the former car park that was associated with the building and its former use as a
Public House. However, the proposed external changes could be sympathetically
incorporated into the area at the side and rear of the building by constructing the proposed
altered boundary walls out of materials appropriate to this rural conservation area, and
securing soft planting within the proposed amenity space to the rear of the building and on
top and/ or within the proposed new retaining wall. These works are recommended to be
secured by planning condition.

The alterations to parking provision, landscaping, bin storage and amenity space would
have no more significant visual impact on the setting of the listed building than the existing
arrangements. As such the alterations to that part of the setting of the listed building would
not lead to any loss of significance of the listed building.

Given the above, it is considered that subject to the recommended planning conditions, the
proposed conversion and associated changes to the rear of the listed building would either
comply with, or not be contrary to, UDP policy EN2/3 - Listed Building, Policy JP-P2:
Heritage of the Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan and the heritage policies within
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Response to objections

e The Asset of Community Value listing for the Lord Raglan expired in December 2022.
The applicant purchased the building in 2019 and the community failed to purchase the

Page 140



building from the applicant (refer to the planning application ref 70213 for further detail).

e Issues raised relating to the Green Belt, Conservation Area, parking and access are
not relevant to this Listed Building application and are detailed in the associated
plamning application.

e The analysis of this application concludes that the proposals to convert the listed
buiklding would bring back into use an important historic building which has been vacant
since 2017 and as such would safguaurd its future and historc importance.
Adapatations and works would be sensitively carried out and conditions would secure
the details of the external and internal works are carried out approrpiately.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason - Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings Project number DA18037 -

Location plan 101 rev 2

Site - block plan 102 rev 2

Existing and proposed site plan 002 rev 17

Existing GA plans 002

Existing elevations 003 rev 2

Proposed GA plans 004 rev 3

Fire plan 020 rev 3

Finishes 030 rev 2

Window schedule and elevations 081 rev 2

Setting out elevations 012 rev 1

Driveway and retaining walls sections - proposed 221 rev 2
Driveway and retaining wall sections - proposed 0.221 rev 2
Driveway and retaining wall sections - existing 222

Existing and proposed sections 223

Existing and proposed landscape plan 0.002 rev 17
Existing and proposed sections - pub rear 0.223

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Places
for Everyone Joint Development Plan listed.

Page 141



3. Notwithstanding the submitted information, no development shall commence until
details of all external materials and finishes to be used for the repair, maintenance
and refurbishment of the building, the erection of any external boundary walls and
for the retaining walls has been submitted to, inspected, and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. All works shall be undertaken in accordance with
the details so approved which shall thereafter be maintained for the lifetime of the
development.

Reason. A pre-commencement condition is required in order to ensure that the
details are satisfactory to preserve the listed building and its setting and character
in accordance with EN2/3: Listed Buildings of the Bury Unitary Development Plan,
Policy JP-P2: Heritage of the Greater Manchester Places for Everyone Joint
Development Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

4, Notwithstanding the submitted plans, all external joinery including windows and
doors shall be of a timber construction only. Details of their design, specification,
method of opening, method of fixing, finish, and there set back in to the reveals, in
the form of drawings and sections of no less than 1:20 scale, shall be submitted to
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the windows and
doors hereby approved are installed. The works shall be carried out only in
accordance with the agreed window and door details.

Reason. In order to preserve the special architectural or historic interest of the
building in accordance with policies EN2/3 - Listed Buildings, JP-P2 - Heritage and
the principles of the NPPF.

5. All roof lights shown on drawing no. DA18037 012 rev 1 - Setting out elevations
shall be of a 'conservation style' to sit flush with the roof surface and shall not
protrude from the roof plane.

Reason. To ensure a sympathetic relationship with the character and appearance
of the host building, a listed building and in accordance with the requirements of
Policies EN2/3: Listed Buildings of the Bury Unitary Development Plan, Policy
JP-P2: Heritage of the Greater Manchester Places for Everyone Joint
Development Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

6. Details/Samples of the materials to be used in the external elevations of the
retaining wall along the access road, together with details of their manufacturer,
type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the development is commenced. Only the approved
materials shall be used for the construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 142



Viewpoints - 70213 and 70214

N
/
w=E)=E
ADDRESs: Lord Raglan, Mount Pleasant, i

Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SP S

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 143



70213 & 70214

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 144



70213 & 70214

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 145



70213 & 70214

Photo 5

Photo 6

Page 146



70213 & 70214

Photo 7

Page 147



1. Site - Location Plan

1:1250
10 0 10 20 40 50
EEE I | .
SCALE 1:1250 m
Legend - Boundaries
Site Boundary
Site Ownership
PROJECT SCALE @ A3 DATE DRAWN BY
The Lord Raglan - Site Model As indicated 28 NOV 2023 SP
City View Estates PLANNING
Site - Location Plan DA18037.0. 101 2

D/\ DEBTAL_

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.
DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY.

ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE.
ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN
MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

Page 148




61T abed

101
indil

[d APL.C  Apt.D [ d
|
|
} c101[|p1o1 1L D:Ei:z}ﬂ
b Flat Roof Below
3m? 37 1

A102 Hﬂ)

D102
chen / Living
26m?

D105

Bﬁdroom
D103 2

7 Pass.

I I ame

3o
RS R
=709

S
>5Q
idg

S
SR

L] [

1. Level 0 - GA Proposed 2. Level 1 - GA Proposed

1:100 1:100

3. Level B1 - GA Proposed 4. Level 2 - GA Proposed o waeen o et
1:100 1:100 The Lord Raglan 1:100 01 Feb 2019 SP
City View Estates Preliminary

Proposed GA Plans DA18037. 004. 3

DEETAL o nmmawstior s e ST s
1.0 1.2 3 4 5 k A s owersons we s FRSCTE SES S TS e
[ nn o  — TmET A R S I
i el T ke CCORDACE T CURREN STATUTORY Z0 N 3 ST CaOES o

SCALE 1:100 m e st ot e
R e




o LEVEL2 _

~o~ LEVEL1
224840

~g~ LEVELB!
219560

1. Front - Proposed

1:100

0ST abed

219560

3. Rear - Proposed

1:100

2. Right Side - Proposed

1:100

4. Left Side - Proposed

1:100

. _ -
|
F. 5
mac
[ I iy
1 -
——— — —Adjacent Building— — ——— _— —
. — s voun
HI e S & s
e
5 o & om
S s & S
T e A
v omsownon o o
srotecr conzen o J—
The Lord Raglan 1:100 01 Feb 2019 SP
City View Estates Preliminary
e naszcrne. S e
Proposed GA Elevations DA18037 005 6
1 0 1 2 3 5 i :l f— I'—], f .: 4 L . et L
(= s e e E.:' Tt . Rt oaoes Toce eroeD 0 12 DG ERTIORTo e




TGT abed

Walmersley Old Road

Walmersley Old Road

2. Site - Existing

1:200 1:200

1. Site - Landscaping Plan

Note Block - Landscaping

(SN TN

Existing parking removed

8 No. parking spaces for new apartments.

2 No. Visitor parking spaces.

Apartment refuse storage area.

Site retaining wall in stone or similar to match local
stone walling. With planted hedgerows in troughs
Paved front entrance area in natural stone paving
flags or similar.

Open access to communal garden area.

Note Block - Landscaping

Apartments parking access

Plot dividing wall in stone or similar to match local
stone walling. With hedgerow.

1 No. Parking spaces per house + 1 No. Visitor
Space.

Paved rear patio area in natural stone paving flags or
similar.

Lawn area in grass.

Rear garden access gate in timber.

Access steps from pavement down to dwelling
entrance level.

Amenity Space

0.5 0

SCALE 1:50

Legend -
Landscaping

Site Boundary

Parking Space
Parallel

Parking Space
Standard Bay

Paving - Natural
stone flags or
similar

Tarmacadam -
Permeable

Legend -
Landscaping

Lawn
Hedgerow

Refuse - Domestic
Wheelie Bin

Refuse - Eurobin

opose b s

The Lord Raglan - Site Model

1:200

03 Apr 2019 SP

City View Estates

Planning

Site - Existing and Proposed
Landscape Plan

erOsECTNO.

DA18037.0. 002. 17

0RANING 0, e

[ B B E— . S—




Proposed hedge planted in
trough on top of wall

Proposed hedge planted in A
trough on top of wall W E
I —
— Proposed retaining wall built D
using reclaimed stone from —
demolished wall /\
Proposed retaining wall built =
using reclaimed stone from | i o}
demolished wall W o L
8
)
2
B I B
2
7. Detail - Retaining Wall Section | I
1:50
8. Detail - Retaining Wall Elevation A .
1:50
.\ S

e A ii Road

1. Site - Retaining Wall - Key Plan - Proposed

1:500

2. Section - Site - Proposed - Driveway - A-A - Front

1:100

? Reference Wall Image

5. Section - Site - Proposed - Driveway - D-D - Long

1:100

3. Section - Site - Proposed - Driveway - B-B - Mid

1:100

. . . The Lord Raglan - Site Model As indicated 13 JAN 2025 SP
6. Section - Site - Proposed - Driveway - E-E - Long g —
1iee City View Estates PLANNING
“E“)Eriveway and Retaining Wall o Ny -
Sections - Proposed DA18037.0. 221. 1
D 'I'I— L 1A
4. Section - Site - Proposed - Driveway - C-C - Rear
1:100




€GT abed

4. Section - Site - Existing - Pub Rear - FF (N-S)

1:200

2. Section - Site - Proposed - Pub Rear - FF (N-S)

1:200

B el

1. Site - Sections 2 - Key Plan - Proposed

1:500

5. Section - Site - Existing - Pub Rear - GG (W-E)

1:200

B OOm

3. Section - Site - Proposed - Pub Rear - GG (W-E)

1:200

— - _ ' z
///////////// ////// —— OO0 —
/ / - ///%// -

::::::

The Lord Raglan - Site Model

sonEga onte orann

As indicated 17 JULY 2025 SP

City View Estates

PLANNING

ORI NO, rev

Site - Existing and Proposed
Sections - Pub Rear

eroscCTNO.

DA18037.0. 223.

D/\

ARCHT




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item 07

Applicant: Mclean
Location: Elms Bank Specialist Arts College, Ripon Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PJ

Proposal: Installation of temporary Portakabin single-storey building to be used as a classroom
for a temporary period of 156 weeks.

Application Ref: 71926/Full Target Date: 16/09/2025
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to a specialist secondary school which primarily caters for the needs
of children with mental and physical health disabilities. The school is located on Ripon
Avenue, Whitefield, within a predominantly residential area. The application site is flanked
on all boundaries by houses on Apollo Avenue, Sandown Road, Heathfield Road and Ripon
Avenue, off which is the main vehicular and pedestrian access into the site and the school
building.

The car park is located to the front of the school where there is parking for staff, visitors and
school minibuses. The pedestrian and vehicular access is off Ripon Avenue and is formed
in a one-way system round the school car park which is located to the front of the main
building. The 'in' route is from the eastern side next to No 27 Ripon Avenue and the exit
from the western side of the car park onto Ripon Avenue. This was granted planning
consent in 2015 (ref 56564). The permission also included segregated pedestrian routes at
both access points from Ripon Avenue, accessed via a gate.

Permission is sought for the installation of temporary single-storey modular building to be
used as a classroom for a temporary period of 156 weeks/ 3 years to enable the school to
accommodate 8 more children. It seeks to be sited along the side elevation of the school
building along the rear boundary of the school site which boarders properties on Sandown
Road and pat of the side boundary of no. 29 Ripon Avenue. A small strip of land which is
naturally landscaped and contains trees and other soft landscaping, separates the site from
the boundaries of these neighbouring residentiual properties

The proposed building would have a length of approximately 16.7m, that would extend
along the rear boundary of the application site. It would have a width of 7.4m. It would
have a flat roof and a maximum height of 3.5m. The building would be dark grey in colour.

The representations received indicate the proposed Portacabin building has been placed on
the application site during assessment of this application proposal already. The
accompanying photographs taken at the time of the Council's Site Visit show this is the
case. The proposal therefore seeks retrospective planning permission for this
development.

On visiting the site, it was evident that two air-conditioning units are present on the rear
elevation of the building.

Relevant Planning History
43308 - EXTENSION TO FORM DRAMA STUDIO - Approved with Conditions, 14/10/2004

Page 155



51222 - COVERED SEATING AREA/SHELTER; STORAGE AREA AND WALL PANELS -
Approved with Conditions,16/06/2009

56257 - Variation of condition no. 11 (lifetime homes checklist) of planning permission
55383 for demolition of existing garages and erection of 5 no. dwellings with amendments to
vehicular access - Approved with Conditions 12/06/2013

56791 - New two storey classroom block with single storey link corridor to main school
building; Construction of paved patio area with retaining walls and installation of multi use
games area with path access from adjacent new building; Installation of land drainage
system in the remaining area of the playing field and marking out of grass football pitch on
existing playing field; 9 additional parking spaces; a temporary access off Ripon Avenue for
the construction period. - Approve with Conditions, 18/12/2013

58564 - Creation of new vehicular and pedestrian access from Ripon Avenue; Extension to
existing car park; Replacement of existing canopy to main school entrance; Erection of a 3M
high fence to football pitch; Erection of a 2.4M high boundary fence - Approved with
Conditions, 03/06/2015

62051 - Creation of hardstanding car park for 7 no. spaces, (to rear of 97-107 Heathfield
Road and 21-27 Ripon Avenue) and erection of 2.2 metres high boundary fence - Approved
with Conditions, 11/12/2017

62519 - Construction of new hydrotherapy pool and changing rooms and demolition of
existing hydrotherapy pool, drama studio, sensory room,changing rooms and garage. -
Approved with Conditions, 03/05/2018

68122 - Extension of car park for 19 new parking spaces - Refused, 01/03/2023

Publicity
Letters sent to 12 neighbouring properties on 24 July 2025.

3 representations have been received which raise the following concerns:
- Concerned about over-development of the site, which borders domestic gardens

- Concerned that the proposal would increase the number of pupils at the site and
exacerbate the traffic congestion and on-street car parking that takes place on Ripon
Avenue.

- Questioning what happens when the temporary time period comes to an end.

- Stating the diagrams submitted in the planning application do not illustrate or describe any
heating, ventilation or air conditioning vents or equipment and stating they have reason to
believe that the air conditioning equipment is to be installed on the North elevation, directly
facing their garden. They raise concerns that if any equipment or vents are installed on the
North elevation, that they could produce unwanted noise that will be directed towards their
property and neighbours to the detriment of their amenity.

- Background information provided over the course of action previously taken by colleagues
in the Council's Environmental Protection section relating to noisy vents that were present
on a former building located on the application site, which caused a noise nuisance to
neighbouring residents. Advise they do not want to experience such noise disturbance as

Page 156



a result of this building.

- Advise the proposed building has been placed on the application site, during the
assessment timeframe of this application.

Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control
Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - No objections.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No observations or recommendations received.

Pre-start Conditions - Not applicable.

Development Plan and Policies

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

JP-P5 Education, Skills and Knowledge

JP-C8 Transport Requirements of New Development
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Principle of Development

The school was asked by the Local Education Authority (This Council) to accommodate 8
additional SEND children this school year. The Council has a duty to provide education for
its residents.

The school advises it is already operating at capacity and therefore this building is
necessary to accommodate the 8 children that needed a space at this specialist school this
school year (2025/2026).

PfE Policy JP-P5: 'Education, Skills and Knowledge' seeks to enable the delivery of new
and improved accessible facilities for all ages. The proposal is to provide additional
teaching accommodation for the School. On this basis, the proposal is acceptable in
principle.

Siting and Design

The proposed modular building is typical of similar modular buildings used at other
educational establishments. Its design therefore meets the needs of teachers and

Page 157



students.

It is sited to the rear of the school building which is bordered by a belt of trees, which exists
between the School and the residential properties along Sandown Road and is sited in
close proximity to the main school building.

The belt of trees provides a screen to ensure that the proposed building would not be
visually prominent when viewed from neighbouring gardens or any public vantage points.
The proposed development is therefore considered to be suitably sited from a visual
amenity perspective. The proposal therefore complies with the relevant criteria laid out
within UDP Policy EN1/2: "Townscape and Built Design'.

Parking and Highway Safety

Although the proposal would provide 8 no. additional school places for children attending
this School, this number of pupils would not intensify the number of pupils so significantly to
justify refusal of the application on highway safety grounds, particularly as many of the
children to the school arrive in mini-buses.

Residential Amenity

The presence of the belt of trees and soft landscaping between the application site and the
properties on Sandown Road, nos. 20 - 24 (even) Sandown Road and 29 Ripon Avenue,
would ensure that the bulk and massing of the proposed building would not cause
demonstrable harm to the amenity of the above-mentioned properties.

Whilst visiting the application site, it was noted that two air conditioning units have been
installed on the rear elevation of the proposed building.

No information relating to the noise generated by these air conditioning units accompany
this application. Given the noise nuisance neighbouring residents have experienced via a
previous building/ use on the application site, it is not unreasonable of neighbouring
residents to raise concern. This said, the building appears to have been in use since the
start of the new school year in September (2025)

Paragraph 56 of the NPPF states: "Local planning authorities should consider whether
otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of
conditions or planning obligations". Paragraph 57 of the NPPF states that Planning
conditions should be kept to a minimum and only imposed where they are necessary,
relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and
reasonable in all other respects.

Taking account of the above and noting that the Council's Environmental Protection
department has received no complaints since the building was but in situ, and has been in
use since the beginning of September, it is reasonable that a planning condition be imposed
to require the noise output of both units working at the same time be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority, along with a scheme of any necessary mitigation,
if required. Such a condition is therefore duly recommended.

Conclusion

The Local Authority is responsible for providing school places for children and young adults
with SEND needs. The proposal therefore accords with the requirements of PfE Policy
JP-P5.

The proposed building is located at the rear of the school which is bordered by a belt of

trees and other soft landscaping. The proposal is therefore suitably sited in close proximity
to the School and would not cause demonstrable visual harm, if any at all.

Page 158



Subiject to the recommended planning condition, the amenity of neighbouring residential
occupiers will also be satisfactorily protected.

Based on all of the above, subject to the recommended planning condition, it is
recommended that the application be approved.

Response to Objections

e The relationship of the development in relation to outlook, amenity and noise have been
discussed within the above report.

o s73A of the Town and Country Planning Act permits applications to be submitted
retrospectively and conditions to be imposed that meet the statutory tests.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

Permission is hereby granted for a limited period only, namely for a period expiring
3 years from the date of this decision notice, and the building, works and use
comprising the development for which permission is hereby granted are required
to be respectively removed and discontinued at the end of the said period and the
land reinstated to its former condition unless a valid application is received by the
Local Planning Authority for its retention.

Reason. In view of the temporary nature of the development and in order to retain
control over its continued use having regard to the particular nature of the site and
surroundings pursuant to The National Planning Policy Framework.

This permission relates to the following plans:
Drawing no. JE420066054A: Location Plan, Proposed Block Plan; and,
Drawing no. HD/14251/01: Proposed elevations & floor plan

Except as provided for by other conditions to this permission, the development
shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved drawings.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
development in accordance with the policies contained within the Bury Unitary
Development Plan, the Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan and the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, a scheme to demonstrate noise
output from both air conditioning units together with any appropriate noise
insulation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

The approved scheme shall be implemented in full within 8 weeks of any
subsequent approval by the Local Planning Authority

Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the building and occupiers
of nearby properties pursuant to UDP Policy EN7/2 Noise Pollution.

Page 159



For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 160



N
Elms Bank Specialist Arts WE
[

ADDREsSs: College, Ripon Avenue,
Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PJ )

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 161




71926: Elms Bank Specialist Arts College

Photo 1: Aerial Imagery from Google Maps

-
Rigon Ave
'

&
£
S
v
c
-
0




71926

Photo 3: View from the rear of the proposed building looking towards properties on Sandown Road

BV

~d

Pas

o
)
b

/]
N

3

Page 163



Scale Bar (1:200)

E 10m 20m

Car Park

ate

Proposed location of
single storey —]
Portakabin Building.

Crown Copyright 2006

Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited

without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.

Portakabin

Title

Proposed Block Plan

Elms Bank Schoola
Ripon Ave,

Unsworth,

Manchester

M45 8PJ

Date: 11th April 2025

Scale : 1:200 & 1:1250 @ A1

Drawing Number

JE420066054A

NOTES:
Site plan is based on existing Ordnance Survey information
Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in
scaling from this drawing. Contractors must check all
dimensions on site. Discrepancies must be reported to the
drawing owner before proceeding.

Rev. |Date |Notes

Portakabin Limited 2000

This drawing is the property of Portakabin Limited,

it must not be copied or reproduced or divulged
to anyone without written permission.

Application Boundary

- Area owned by client but not in application
E— Existing fencing 1.8mH

— Proposed foul drainage route

— Proposed grey water drainage route
— Proposed surface water drainage route

_ Proposed fencing




Copyright Portakabin Limited 2024

This drawing is the property of Portakabin Limited.
It must not be copied or reproduced or divulged to anyone
without written permission.

Do not scale off this drawing.
All discrepancies to be reported to Portakabin Limited.

Elevation titles are indictive, not representative of
orientation on site

‘Hev‘ Description ‘ Date ‘ By ‘

3512

North Elevation East Elevation
2 1:100 3 1:100

Standard floor loading is 3kN/e. Any loading imposed on a floor that
is greater than 3kN/m? may require strengthening. Please contact
your hire centre if you expect to exceed 3kN/m?.

Any fire strategy shown on this drawing is subject to Fire Officer and
Building Control approval

Please note that this and any accompanying drawing(s) are for
illustrative purposes only and as such, the building shown may vary

- L]
from the actual finished building on site.
The position of windows, external doors and electrical fixtures (if
shown) are dependent on stock availability at time of order.
1:100 1:100
. .

EXTERNAL COLOUR SCHEME | Uttima

Walls - Goosewing Grey - nearest BS ref 10 A05

Vertical wall trim - Goosewing Grey - nearest BS ref 10 A 05

Bottom wall trims - White - nearest BS ref 00 E 55

Long wall fascias (covering wall) - Goosewing Grey - nearest BS ref 10 A 05

G9T abed

Long wall tascia (covering beam) - White - nearest BS ref 00 E 55
Short wall composite fascia - Goosewing Grey - nearest BS ref 10 A 05
1 6776 Roof - White - nearest BS ref 00 E 55
External Skirt - Goosewing Grey - nearest BS ref 10 A 05
Visual Examp|es Columns, external corners - Grey - BS 4800 00 A 05
Columns, intermediate - Grey - BS 4800 00 A 05
Windows - Blue Grey - nearest BS 4800 18 B 29
Doors (insulated door) - Slate grey - nearest BS 18 B 25

6748 Ll 1500 L 1155 Ll 6748

N fan] rrﬂ" ,H ,m sl sl fuml

il I

Dis.WC |[~ WC

3m? 3 m?

internal Portakabin Note:
For connection details please see
drawing DQO539

ZURICH®

2200
Q)
&

#

Constructionline

Partof Capitaplc

s
BOARD OF
AGAEmENT|

Classroom Classroom
48 m2 48 m2

7430

Portakabin

Lobby

13 m?

4753

D Safety Flooring

|| Vvinyl

Portakabin Limited New Lane Huntington
York YO32 9PT United Kingdom

+44 (0)1904 611655

| =) |m) |m =) |m =)

Client:
Bury Council Children's Services

Project:
Elms Bank - Classroom

. 1 OO GRAPHIC SCALE: 1:100 Proposed Layout, 5 x UK073 Ultima Modules.

@ I?roposed Layout e e P Total Floor Area - 116m2

=———= 99mm Single Skin Partition
=== 124mm Double Skin Partition

Scale @ A3: Date: Drawn By:
1:100 27.03.2025 MT

Fire Strategy to be confirmed. Subject to Fire/building officer approval. Max compartment size to be confirmed when location of nearest existing (functional) — — Indicates where 30 min fire rating to be maintained
hydrant is known. If found to be more than 100m from the proposed buildings (where a hose can run), upgraded 60min wall construction or full redesign
may be required to reduce compartments to 280m2. Alternatively additional hydrant(s) could be installed as per building regs requirements’

Drawing Number: Rev:

— — Indicates where 60 min fire rating to be maintained HD/14251/01




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Bury West ltem 08

Applicant: Jaguar Paw Properties Ltd
Location: 240 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PA

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to 8 bed house in multiple occupation (HMO)
(sui generis) including extending/raising the roof over existing rear garage

Application Ref: 71978/Full Target Date: 21/08/2025
Recommendation:

Description

The application relates to a large end terraced dwelling which has a front garden and a rear
yard area which is located on Bolton Road on the corner of Glenboro Avenue. Back Bolton
Road North, a cobbled street runs along the rear of the terrace to which the application site

forms part.

Planning permission is sought to change the use of the property from a dwelling (Class C3)
to an 8 bedroom house in multiple occupation (HMO) (sui generis). Permission is also
sought to both extend and raise the roof over an existing flat roof rear garage.

The accommodation proposed would be spread over three floors as follows:

Ground Floor: Kitchen and dining, Lounge and dining, W/C and storage; Bedroom 1 and 2
First Floor: Bedrooms 3, 4, 5 and 6
Second Floor: Bedrooms 7 and 8

All rooms have ensuite facilities

During the course of the application the application has amended the proposal, as follows:
Reduced the number of bedrooms from 9 to 8

Created a communal Lounge Area

Removed the front external amenity space

Relocated the bicycle storage to be stored inside the garage

Added more private external amenity space to the rear yard (approx. 18m?)

Widened the garage door to 2.5m for better access to park a car

Moved the access to the ground floor communal WC to the hallway.

Relevant Planning History
71521 - Lawful development certificate for proposed loft conversion with hip to gable roof
extension solar panels at front and rooflights at rear - Lawful Development, 02/05/2025.

Publicity

The application has been advertised by consulting adjoining and nearby properties by letter
and by erecting Site Notices adjacent to the front boundary of the site and on a pole located
on the corner of the application site at the junction of Glenboro Avenue with Back Bolton
Road North.

11 (adressee) representations objecting to the proposal have been received raising the

Page 167



following objections:

e Experiencing noise problems (during construction).

o This is a bigger development and will be managed by the same company, which will
pose more issues for residents and lower property value in an already overcrowded
area.

e This is also next to a nursery so poses safe guarding issues.

e The fact the developer has converted this without correct planning and approval
whilst being misleading when questioned by the council and residents sets a
dangerous standard if he is allowed to get away with what he has done.

e There have also been modifications that have not been approved such as the
windows overlooking the nursery and the skylight on the front.

e They have already been issues with this development including damage to residents
property and working all hours.

o This development should not be approved, it has been submitted in retrospect to the
work already having been carried out, the work completed in preparation should be
ordered to be reverted to its original state. A HMO in close proximity is affecting the
right to sell our home as people do not wish to reside close to an HMO obvious
reasons

e This is a retrospective application after being caught after a s196A was filed by the
council as part of a formal complaint

e The following will’/have been an issue with this development — property damage,
waste, noise, antisocial behaviour, loss of water pressure, parking and overcrowding

e The only people gaining anything from this development are the developer/owner
and the subletting company, who will be making money off it.

e overdevelopment is completely out of place on our street.

e Party Wall concerns

e There is already limited parking, and this increase in occupancy will only worsen
congestion and impact road safety.

e People have been heard and seen at the property with cars already parking outside
other properties and obstructing garages.

e The yard is not big enough for 5 bins. 2 cars tables to seat 14 people and a bike
store And gates that open inwards.

¢ By having this many people in a terrace house with only a kitchen as living space it
would inevitably present noise or disruptive behaviour.

e 8 bedrooms is still too many for the size of the property. The rooms are all double
bedrooms with potential for guests/ visitors. This is likely to result in excessive noise
and disruption.

Objectors have been informed of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Adult Care Services - No comments or observations received.

Traffic Section - Any response shall be provided within the supplementary.
Environmental Health - Pollution Control — Adjoining walls should be soundproofed
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - — No comments received

Waste Management — No response received

United Utilities - No objections. Advice provided where residents can approach the
provider regarding concerns around water pressure.

Housing - Public Protection — No comments received

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant

Development Plan and Policies

Page 168



NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H2/4 Conversions

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation
JP-C2 Digital Connectivity

JP-C5 Streets For All

JP-C6 Walking and Cycling

JP-C8 Transport Requirements of New Development
JP-82 Carbon and Energy

JP-P1 Sustainable Places

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Places for
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) and the saved policies within the
adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP), together with other relevant material
planning considerations.

The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For
simplicity, just the UDP and PfE Policies will be referred to in the report, unless there is a
particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically
mentioned.

Process

The property had been subject to a Certificate of lawfulness which confirmed that the
property to be altered internally and including the loft space would not require planning
permission.

The officer report noted -

Whilst the proposed plans show a layout similar to an HMO the dwellinghouse has not yet
been occupied as such and thus its lawful use remains that of a dwellinghouse and as such
it retains its permitted development rights. Also worth noting is the high court judgement
London Borough of Brent v Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities &
Anor [2022] EWHC 2051 (Admin). This judgement confirms that the meaning of a
‘dwellinghouse’ is wider than Use Class C3. It includes Use Class C4 and may also include
large HMOs and other uses provided they meet the Gravesham test. A such even if the
conversion to an HMO had taken place the property would retain its permitted development
rights and would therefore be lawful.

The applicant then submitted an Initial Notice to Building Control concerning the change of
use of the property to a 9 bed HMO. This is a statement that all Building Regulations
matters were to be assessed by a private inspector. The Local Planning Authority (LPA) did
speak to the applicant who confirmed that the initial notice was incorrect and that the
proposals to be implemented were for a 6 bed HMO.

Despite this, following complaints received, the LPA’s Enforcement team arranged a visit
and indeed the property had been converted into a 9 bed HMO.

Page 169



This planning application now under consideration and was submitted very shortly after
Enforcement’s visit to the site.

Section 73A of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) confirms applications
can be made retrospectively.

Permitted Fallback Position

A dwelling changed to a 6 bed HMO is Permitted Development. The applicant could
therefore utilise the existing property as a 6 bed HMO without the need for planning
permission. This is the permitted fallback use of the property.

The LPA will therefore only be able to assess whether two additional occupants over and
above the fallback use would cause demonstrable harm when considering the proposals as
a whole.

Principle of Development

UDP Policy H1/2: "Townscape and Built Design' states that the Council will have regard to
various factors when assessing a proposal for residential development, including whether
the proposal is within the urban area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of
the site, with regard to amenity, the nature of the local environment and the surrounding
land uses.

UDP Policy H2/4: 'Conversions', has specific regard to effects on amenity of neighbouring
properties, general character of the area, amenity of occupants, effects from external
changes on the street scene, car parking, and servicing requirements. This is supported by
SPD 13: 'The Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation', that seeks to
ensure that properties are of a sufficient size to accommodate the proposals and are large
enough to offer satisfactory levels of accommodation for future residents. This document
also seeks to ensure that HMO's are located in suitable locations. SPD 13 is rather dated
in absolute terms (adopted in May 2007) and in some of the assumptions expressed (e.g.
HMO's tend to attract residents in their teens and twenties who by their nature can be a little
more energetic than older people, leading to a more active social life in the evenings).
However, the general factors against which proposals should be assessed at UDP Policy
H2/4 remain relevant.

PfE Policy JP-H3: "Type, Size and Design of New Housing' seeks to provide an appropriate
mix of dwelling types and sizes reflecting local plan policies and having regard to relevant
local evidence. Development across the plan area should seek to incorporate a range of
dwelling types and sizes, including for self-build. Paragraph 63 of the NPPF confirms that
"the size, type and tenure of housing needed for different groups in the community should
be assessed and reflected in planning policies. These groups should include (but are not
limited to) those who require affordable housing; families with children; older people
(including those who require retirement housing, housing-with-care and care homes);
students; people with disabilities; service families; travellers; people who rent their homes
and people wishing to commission or build their own homes", however, no direct reference
is made to HMOs or buildings of multiple occupation. For clarification, a house in multiple
occupation is a form of housing tenure, where occupants live together forming more than
one household (i.e. where facilities such as kitchen, living areas, and/ or bathrooms can be
shared with other tenants).

The conversion of properties to multiple occupation can often make an important
contribution to local housing stock. However, it is recognised that such conversions can
put pressures on buildings, sites and areas depending upon the amount of accommodation
to be provided, demands created from parking etc and thus have an adverse effect on

Page 170



residential amenity and the character of an area. The main issues in relation to this proposal
is the consideration of the impact of the proposed accommodation in relation to the
suitability of the site and location, impacts on amenity, nature of the local environment,
surrounding land uses and highway issues. These issues are discussed in more detalil
below and in light of the policies set out above.

Accessibility of the site to services, jobs and amenities

PfE Policy JP-C1, seeks to deliver an accessible, low carbon Greater Manchester with
world-class connectivity, by, amongst other things, delivering a pattern of development that
minimises both the need to travel and the distance travelled by unsustainable modes to
jobs, housing and other key services, including healthcare, education, retail, recreation and
leisure facilities, green space and green infrastructure; and locating and designing
development, to deliver a significant increase in the proportion of trips that can be made by
walking, cycling and public transport;

The application site fronts onto a busy throughroute where there are ample bus services to
and from the Town centre and heading west to Bolton and Radcliffe. It is located within
walking distance of bus stops leading to both directions. As such, the application site is
considered to be suitably located for this type of residential accommodation.

Character of the area

UDP Policy H2/4 - 'Conversions' takes into consideration the concentration of building
conversions for multiple occupation and the impact this can have to the character of an
area. The justification for this policy makes it clear that it is necessary to ensure that
dwelling standards are maintained and to ensure that, generally, an over provision of
building conversions does not adversely affect the need to maintain a good mix of housing
types, or adversely affects the character and amenity of residential areas.

Having visited the application site, checked the Planning register and the HMO Licensing
register, there two properties in use as homes in multiple occupancy within 50 metres of the
application site and therefore the proposal would not result in an over concentration of
HMOs in this area and therefore the area would maintain a good mix of housing types.

Amenity of neighbouring occupiers

UDP Policy H2/4 requires applications for conversion to have regard to the effect on the
amenity of the neighbouring properties through noise, visual intrusion, the position of
entrances, impact of parking areas, extensions and fire escapes.

The existing property fronts a very busy road and has a residential property adjoining.

Houses in Multiple Occupation tend to operate as a normal house, however, due to this
proposal seeking 8 single occupants, the use of the property, the use would intensify
occupation of the property. It is therefore recommended that a condition securing the
imposition of soundproofing to the party walls of the property be secured by planning
condition. Such a condition is duly recommended.

Subject to the recommended condition, the proposed internal arrangement is unlikely to
generate additional noise, disturbance and activity to cause serious harm to neighbour
amenity and thus the proposal complies with UDP Policy and guidance relating to HMO's.

Amenity of future occupiers
PfE Policy JP-H3: states that all new dwellings must:

1. Comply with the nationally described space standards; and
2. Be built to the 'accessible and adaptable' standard in Part M4(2) of the Building

Page 171



Regulations unless specific site conditions make this impracticable.

This is further supported by UDP Policy H2/4 that seeks to consider the impact of any
proposals on the amenity of the occupants.

All bedrooms and storage areas proposed would comply with the national prescribed space
standards. Due to the access to the front and rear of the property using pre-existing
historic steps, it would be impractical to make the property 'accessible and adaptable'.

In terms of the proposed communal spaces, the spaces are considered generous and there
are more than one communal area which would assist to disperse concentrations and
maintain a reasonable standard of space within the property.

The National Design Guide states that an aspect of ensuring development is well designed
by ensuring that refuse bins are accessible and well-integrated into the design of streets,
spaces and buildings, to minimise visual impact, unsightliness and avoid visual clutter.

The proposed Site Plan indicates sufficient refuse storage provision can be provided. The
revisions of the layout to put parking within the garage has enabled more amenity space to
be provided within the curtilage of the property. Secure cycle storage would now be
provided within the garage area for up to 8 bikes and is considered to be appropriate.

All of the above, leads me to conclude that the proposals would provide satisfactory living
accommodation for future occupiers.

The proposal thus accords with PfE Policy JP-H3.

Visual Amenity

The proposals involve alterations to the garage elevation of the property. This would include
raising the boundary wall and roof. This change is considered to be minor and would be
considered acceptable even if a private individual sought to do the work.

Other changes include the conversion of the roof void area. Rooflights are to be provided to
this space.

The proposed dormer would comprise slate cladding to the elevations and a flat roof and
would be set up from the eaves of the property by approximately 200mm. Windows
proposed on the new dormers will comprise white uPVC which will match the existing
windows. The external alterations are in keeping with the character of the existing
properties and surrounding context.

The proposed rear dormer would have limited visibility, but would be visible from the
commercial property behind and from Hampson Mill Lane. However, HMO's up to 6
people have a permitted development fallback, which establishes such alterations are
acceptable to the rear roofslopes of dwellinghouses. Whilst an 8 bedroomed HMO is
considered to be a use classed as Sui-Generis, i.e. a use which does not fall into a specific
use class, the permitted fallback position is a material consideration which should be given
substantial weight in the decision making process.

Waste Management

The proposed scheme includes the provision of bins within the rear alley (as existing) which
would allow for the segregation of refuse and recyclable waste and would ensure the
storage of bins would not adversely impact on the street scene. The number of bins
provided has been shown as eight, which is considered satisfactory for the numbers of
occupants proposed.

Page 172



Bins would continue to be collected from Hampson Mill Lane as they are currently and it is
therefore considered that there would be a no detrimental effect on the safety and operation
of the local highway network, as it would operate in the same manner as the existing site
and nearby properties.

The concern raised about the number of bins causing a fly nuisance, if this does occur,
neighbouring occupants could report this issue to the Council's Environmental Health,
Public Protection section.

Highway Safety

There are no specific car parking standards for HMO's in SPD11: 'Parking Standards in
Bury'. SPD 13: 'The Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation' gives some
general advice. It states that parking and road safety issues will be important considerations
when assessing a planning application and any proposal that is considered to have a
detrimental impact on highway safety or harm to amenity will not be permitted.

PfE Policy JP-C1: 'An Integrated Network' seeks to deliver an accessible, low carbon
Greater Manchester with world-class connectivity. It seeks to achieve this by a range of
measures, including, amongst other things, delivering a pattern of development that
minimises both the need to travel and the distance travelled by unsustainable modes to
jobs, housing and other key services, including healthcare, education, retail, recreation and
leisure facilities, green space and green infrastructure; and locating and designing
development, to deliver a significant increase in the proportion of trips that can be made by
walking, cycling and public transport.

Off-road car parking is possible, with one garage space and a second within the yard area.
Notwithstanding this, HMQO's are best located in sustainable areas well served by public
transport and close to amenities, services and facilities, which can reduce the demand of
parking.

The application site is located on Bolton Road, a strategic road within the borough, close
to the convenience store at the Petrol Filling Station and is within walking distance of bus
stops on either side of Bolton Road. 170m to Bury direction; 55m Bolton direction.

The proposals would accommodate a secure and covered cycle store with space for eight
bikes (100%) provision as indicated on the submitted drawings. This will promote cycling as
a viable and attractive means of travel. The level of provision proposed within the scheme
will also help to support a reduction in reliance upon the private car and help to encourage
use of more environmentally friendly and sustainable modes of transport amongst future
occupants of the proposed development.

The site is also within a residential area, and is therefore suitably located for a development
of this nature.

In terms of assessing highways matters paragraph 111 of the NPPF is relevant which
advises ‘Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on
the road network would be severe’.

This is a high bar policy test and it is not considered that the development would be
associated with severe adverse highway impacts which would warrant a refusal.

It has been demonstrated that the scheme accords with the transport requirements of the
NPPF; UDP Policy HT2/4 and would be acceptable when assessed against part e of UDP

Page 173



Policy H2/4 and the relevant cycle parking storage guidance within SPD 11.

Carbon and Energy

PfE Policy JP-S2 sets out the steps required to achieve net zero carbon emissions. The
submitted details state the proposals will be align with the 2022 Part L Building Regulations
and therefore the proposal accords with the requirements of this policy.

Digital Connectivity

PfE Policy JP-C2 requires all new development to have full fibre to premises connections
unless technically infeasible and / or unviable. The policy supports the provision of free,
secure, high-speed public wi-fi connections, particularly in the most frequented areas.

In compliance with Policy JP-C2 of the PfE plan, the submission advises that the proposed

development would support high-quality digital infrastructure through the following

measures:

e Full Fibre Superfast Internet will be installed to the development

o Mesh network throughout the property, ensuring seamless fast wireless internet to all
rooms.

A mesh network Wi-Fi system uses multiple access points (nodes) to create a single,
seamless Wi-Fi network throughout a home or building, eliminating dead zones and
providing consistent coverage. Unlike traditional routers, which broadcast from a single
point, mesh systems distribute the Wi-Fi signal from multiple access points, ensuring a
strong and reliable connection everywhere.

Safeguarding

The site is located close to a nursery. Many objections have been raised in relation to
concerns of occupants and use being in close proximity to the nursery to the rear. Many
properties have the same degree of overlooking and Planning cannot control the occupants
of such properties. HMOs do provide an alternative type of residential accommodation and
there is no known direct link that the use would be occupied by residents of any difference
to other propertties within the row.

The application as proposed with a higher number of occupants before being revised was
consulted upon with the GM Police and no comments were received.

There is no demonstrable evidence that crime or misdemeanors would have any higher
possibility of occurring as part of the implementation of this scheme by its occupants and
therefore would not give any ground to resist the proposals on this basis.

Response to Objections

Retrospective applications are able to be submitted under the main planning act. It must be
noted that the risk of securing permission rests with the developer and indeed any
additional controls that may be imposed by a decision maker also mean the risk rests with
the developer.

It is not relevant to planning why the applicant went down the LDC route without expressing
their intentions, despite the submission of the initial notice to Building Control. It is
unfortunate that the developer did not liaise with the LPA in good time or indeed prior to
undertaking works. However, as was demonstrated through the assessment, the initial
application for 9 occupants was reduced due to available internal space and the demands 9
occupants would have upon the space availble within the site. Again this demonstrates the
risk that the developer chose to take.

Issues of damage during implementation to other people's property, including the party wall

Page 174



are private civil matters and are otherwise controlled through the Party Wall Act 1996. This
act ensures that appropriate discussions and agreements, together with notifications and
the right to arbitration exist to prevent or adjudicate when issues occur. However, these
matters take place away from the planning process and are for aggrieved parties to
undertake their own civil recourse.

Noise and disruption experienced during implementation of a development is otherwise
goverened by the Environmental Protection Act. Building works ordinarily are short term
and whilst some disruption may occur, there is not normally a significant conern.
Nevertheless, the overriding issue is that nuisance is a matter that Environmental Health
consider.

Residents have experienced low water pressure, alledgedly as a result of the increased
occupants of the site. This is a matter for the Water Companies to address to ensure that
appropriate water provision is maintained to residential properties.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to
identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal
comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan.
These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning
condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement
in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to the following plans:

Drawing no. Location plan, dated 28 May 2025,

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-01Rev. A: Existing Plans 01

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-02: Existing Plans 02

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-03: Existing Elevations 01;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-04: Existing Elevations 02;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-05: EX|st|ng Section;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-06 Rev. B: Existing and Proposed Site Plans;
Drawing no. HAD3912-02-07 Rev. B: Proposed Plans 1;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-08 Rev. A: Proposed Plans 2;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-09 Rev. B: Proposed Elevations 01;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-10 Rev. A: Proposed Elevations 02;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-11 Rev. B: Proposed Section;

Drawing no. HAD3912-02-12 Rev. A: Bike and Bin Store Details; and,
Drawing no. HAD3912-02-17 Rev. B: Proposed Refuse Plan (Check REV).

Wrrwow>w0>wWw

Page 175



The development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings
hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
development, pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan, the
Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan and the National Planning Policy
Framework.

3. The cycle and bin storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be made
available prior to the use hereby approved commencing and maintained thereafter.
Reason. To ensure adequate cycle storage arrangements and provision for the
storage and disposal of refuse within the curtilage of the site, clear of the adopted
highway, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Development Plan policies
H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built
Design, H2/4 - Conversions, JP-C5 Streets For All and JP-C6 Walking and
Cycling.

4, Within 3 months of the development hereby approved, sound insulation of the
party walls shall be improved in accordance with Building Regulations Approved
Document E (or similar method), and thereafter maintained.

Reason. To reduce nuisance from noise to the occupiers of the adjoining dwelling
pursuant to the NPPF and UDP Policy EN7/2 Noise Pollution.

For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 176



Viewpoints

Glenboro
Court

ADDRESS: 240 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PA ‘@ B
[/

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 177



71978

Photo 1: Front Elevation — Google Street View image

Page 178



71978

Photo 4: Side of rear flat roof projection taken from Glencoe Avenue

:'* - Q :':‘.

Photo 5: Photo of rear elevation

L RS
LY "‘:*‘
2

NN e




Location Plan :
‘ ' PlanningFortal
Site Address: 240, Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PA

Date Produced: 28-May-2025 Scale: 1:1250 @A4

Wellington,
o W .-'I'I__:'.'-L

08T abed

0 50
Planning Portal Reference: PP-14029524v1 *
Metres
Do By
e lerraCluest

© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 OS 100042766



TOT afpd

Existing Site Plan - 210m?
1:200 @ A3

Om 1m 2m 4m 6m 8m

10m

NORTH

2x240L - General waste (grey)
1x240L -Paper, cardboard and

Proposed Site Plan - 210 m?
1:200 @ A3 .

Om 1m 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

Notes:
All work is to be carried out to the latest current British Standards Codes
of Practice and recognised working practices.

All work and materials should comply with Health and Safety legislation.
All dimensions are in millimetres unless where explicitly shown otherwise.

The contractor should check and certify all dimensions as work proceeds
and notify the agent of any discrepancies.

Do not scale off the drawings, if in doubt ask.

HAD & Co. are not liable for any work undertaken prior to Full Planning
Consent and/ or Building Regulations Approval.

CDM REGULATIONS 2015

The client must abide by the Construction Design and Management
Regulations 2015. The client must appoint a contractor, if more than one
contractor is to be involved, the client will need to appoint (in writing) a
principal designer (to plan, manage and coordinate the planning and
design work) and a principal contractor (to plan, manage and coordinate
the construction and ensure there are arrangements in place for managing
and organising the project).

Domestic clients
The domestic client is to appoint a principal designer and a principal
contractor when there is more than one contractor, if not your duties wil
automatically transferred to the contractor or principal contractor.

The designer can take on the duties, provided there is a written agreement
between you and the designer to do so.

The Health and Safety Executive is to be notified as soon as possible
before construction work starts if the works:

(a) Last longer than 30 working days and has more than 20 workers
working simultaneously at any point in the project.

or:

(b) Exceeds 500 person days.

PARTY WALL ACT

The owner, should they need to do so under the requirements of the Party
Wall Act 1996, has a duty to serve a Party Structure Notice on any
adjoining owner if building work on, to or near an existing Party Wall
involves any of the following:

* Support of beam

« Insertion of DPC through wall

« Raising a wall or cutting off projections

+ Demolition and rebuilding

- Underpinning

« Insertion of lead flashings

« Excavations within 3 metres of an existing structure where the new
foundations will go deeper than adjoining foundations, or within 6 metres
of an existing structure where the new foundations are within a 45 degree
line of the adjoining foundations.

A Party Wall Agreement is to be in place prior to start of works on site.

THERMAL BRIDGING
Care shall be taken to limit the occurrence of thermal bridging in the
insulation layers caused by gaps within the thermal element, (i.e. around
windows and door openings). Reasonable provision shall also be made to
ensure the extension is constructed to minimise unwanted air leakage
through the new building fabric.

MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP
All works are to be carried out in a workmanlike manner. All materials and
workmanship must comply with Regulation 7 of the Building Regulations,
all relevant British Standards, European Standards, Agreement
Cerificates, Product Certification of Schemes (Kite Marks) etc. Products
conforming to a European technical standard or harmonised European
product should have a CE marking.

Revisions List:

a- Updated to show new external layout
b- Bikes to be stored in garage

HAD & Co.

www.hadmanchester.co.uk
0161 327 2529

Address: 240 Bolton Road,
Bury,
BL8 2PA

Title: Existing and Proposed Site Drawn: RAY
Plans ’

Client: James Harrison-Sherlock | Checked: NME

Date: 10-09-2025 Paper: A3

Drawing No: HAD3912-02-06 Scale: 1:200

Revision: a| b




<

13

Z0T afpd

GO

Bin Store

BOILER

I

3525

KITCHEN/DINING
27.5m

I\

| Kitchen Island

SININS

{

BEDROOM 01

°

less storage = 10.6m*

1763

STORAGES
C AL WC 1.13m2 O
fad N

/ 2 x Car Parking Spaces (EV)

3500

EXTER ENIT

SPACE

O
v

alajals

17

V% 27'

LIVING & DINING ROOM
18.7m?

INR7]

3551

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
GIA 98.67m?
1:100 @ A3

GO
©©© S

2 || Drwrs
D
!

—

i
| 3722
= ‘ BEDROOM 03

13.Jm?

less storage = 12.1m*

\

NN B

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
GIA 83.45m?
1:100 @ A3

® & 0 o o o o o

8 Bedroom HMO

8 beds with eresuites, all above 10.2m"
Kitchen/Dining = 2F.4m’*

Living-Dining = 18.7m"*

Bin store

8 Bike store placss

3 x parking spaces

Garage = 22.2mv

TOTAL stormges = 29 S8m?*

2070

=
07

1 5%@
ISUITE 04
3.2m?

@%g

3423

BEDROOM 04
16.5m?
less storage = 15.5m*

UITE 05 |
4m?

]

Tm 2m

o
)

Storage for each bedroom:

. Wardrobe, 750mm x 500mm =
0.375m?

e  Bedside tables (x2), 400mm x
400mm = 0.32m?

. 4-drawer chest of drawers, 760mm x
400mm = 0.304m?

e TOTAL storage each bedroom =
0.999m?

e  Requirements for single bedrooms
NDSS = 0.36m?

Built in storage:

e Ground floor under stairs = 1.25m?
e Ground floor living room store =
1.13m2

e  Second floor store on stairs = 2.22m?

e  TOTAL built in storage = 4.6m?

e  Requirement for 6b 8p = 4m?

e  Additional eaves storage for bed 7 =
9.8m?

e  Additional eaves storage for bed 8 =
7.19m2

TOTAL storage including provision for

each bedroom = 29.58m?

| |
6m 8m 10m

Notes:
All work is to be carried out to the latest current British Standards Codes
of Practice and recognised working practices.

All work and materials should comply with Health and Safety legislation.
All dimensions are in millimetres unless where explicitly shown otherwise.

The contractor should check and certify all dimensions as work proceeds
and notify the agent of any discrepancies.

Do not scale off the drawings, if in doubt ask.

HAD & Co. are not liable for any work undertaken prior to Full Planning
Consent and/ or Building Regulations Approval.

CDM REGULATIONS 2015

The client must abide by the Construction Design and Management
Regulations 2015. The client must appoint a contractor, if more than one
contractor is to be involved, the client will need to appoint (in writing) a
principal designer (to plan, manage and coordinate the planning and
design work) and a principal contractor (to plan, manage and coordinate
the construction and ensure there are arrangements in place for managing
and organising the project).

Domestic clients
The domestic client is to appoint a principal designer and a principal
contractor when there is more than one contractor, if not your duties wil
automatically transferred to the contractor or principal contractor.

The designer can take on the duties, provided there is a written agreement
between you and the designer to do so.

The Health and Safety Executive is to be notified as soon as possible
before construction work starts if the works:

(a) Last longer than 30 working days and has more than 20 workers
working simultaneously at any point in the project.

or:

(b) Exceeds 500 person days.

PARTY WALL ACT

The owner, should they need to do so under the requirements of the Party
Wall Act 1996, has a duty to serve a Party Structure Notice on any
adjoining owner if building work on, to or near an existing Party Wall
involves any of the following:

* Support of beam

« Insertion of DPC through wall

« Raising a wall or cutting off projections

+ Demolition and rebuilding

« Underpinning

« Insertion of lead flashings

« Excavations within 3 metres of an existing structure where the new
foundations will go deeper than adjoining foundations, or within 6 metres
of an existing structure where the new foundations are within a 45 degree
line of the adjoining foundations.

A Party Wall Agreement is to be in place prior to start of works on site.

THERMAL BRIDGING
Care shall be taken to limit the occurrence of thermal bridging in the
insulation layers caused by gaps within the thermal element, (i.e. around
windows and door openings). Reasonable provision shall also be made to
ensure the extension is constructed to minimise unwanted air leakage
through the new building fabric.

MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP
All works are to be carried out in a workmanlike manner. All materials and
workmanship must comply with Regulation 7 of the Building Regulations,
all relevant British Standards, European Standards, Agreement
Cerificates, Product Certification of Schemes (Kite Marks) etc. Products
conforming to a European technical standard or harmonised European
product should have a CE marking.

Revisions List:

a- Reduced scheme, revised parking, added more
communal space, storage areas shown, details added.
b- Bikes stored in garage, garage door widened,
external amenity area to rear yard.

HAD & Co.

www.hadmanchester.co.uk
0161 327 2529

Address: 240 Bolton Road,
Bury,
BL8 2PA

Title: Proposed Plans 1 Drawn: RAY

Client: James Harrison-Sherlock | Checked: NME

Date: 10-09-2025 Paper: A3

Drawing No: HAD3912-02-07 Scale: 1:100

Revision: a|b




cQT abed
colLorta

__SE
+6.7M

_ _FF
+3.9M

_ FRL
£0.000M

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION - No Changes
1:100 @ A3

__SF
+6.7M

New raised Flat Roof

RN FF*
+3.0M

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION - Raised Garage roof
1:100 @ A3

Om 1Tm 2m

FF

H3M

_FFL___
+0.000M

4m

6m

8m

10m

Notes:
All work is to be carried out to the latest current British Standards Codes
of Practice and recognised working practices.

All work and materials should comply with Health and Safety legislation.
Al dimensions are in millimetres unless where explicitly shown otherwise.

The contractor should check and certify all dimensions as work proceeds
and notify the agent of any discrepancies.

Do not scale off the drawings, if in doubt ask.

HAD & Co. are not liable for any work undertaken prior to Full Planning
Consent and/ or Building Regulations Approval.

CDM REGULATIONS 2015
The client must abide by the Construction Design and Management
Regulations 2015. The client must appoint a contractor, if more than one
contractor s to be involved, the client will need to appoint (in writing) a
principal designer (to plan, manage and coordinate the planning and
design work) and a principal contractor (to plan, manage and coordinate
the construction and ensure there are arrangements in place for managing
and organising the project).

Domestic clients
The domestic client s to appoint a principal designer and a principal
contractor when there is more than one contractor, if not your duties will
automatically transferred to the contractor o principal contractor.

The designer can take on the duties, provided there is a written agreement
between you and the designer to do so.

The Health and Safety Executive is to be notified as soon as possible
before construction work starts if the works:

(a) Last longer than 30 working days and has more than 20 workers
working simultaneously at any point in the project.

or:
(b) Exceeds 500 person days.

PARTY WALL ACT

The owner, should they need to do so under the requirements of the Party
Wall Act 1996, has a duty to serve a Party Structure Notice on any
adjoining owner if building work on, to or near an existing Party Wall
involves any of the following:

« Support of beam

« Insertion of DPC through wall

« Raising a wall or cutting off projections

« Demolition and rebuilding

« Underpinning

« Insertion of lead flashings

« Excavations within 3 metres of an existing structure where the new
foundations will go deeper than adjoining foundations, or within 6 metres
of an existing structure where the new foundations are within a 45 degree
line of the adjoining foundations.

A Party Wall Agreement is to be in place prior to start of works on site.

THERMAL BRIDGING
Care shall be taken to limit the occurrence of thermal bridging in the
insulation layers caused by gaps within the thermal element, (i.e. around
windows and door openings). Reasonable provision shall also be made to
ensure the extension is constructed to minimise unwanted air leakage
through the new building fabric.

MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

Al works are to be carried out in a workmanlike manner. All materials and
workmanship must comply with Regulation 7 of the Building Regulations,
all relevant British Standards, European Standards, Agreement
Cerlificates, Product Certification of Schemes (Kite Marks) etc. Products
conforming to a European technical standard or harmonised European
product should have a CE marking.

Revisions List:

HAD & Co.

www.hadmanchester.co.uk
0161 327 2529

Address: 240 Bolton Road,

Bury,
BL8 2PA

Title: Proposed Elevations 01 Drawn: RAY

Client: James Harrison-Sherlock | Checked: NME

Date: 19-05-2025 Paper: A3

Drawing No: HAD3912-02-09 Scale: 1:100

Revision:




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem-5

REPORT FOR NOTING

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 October 2025

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the 5151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director M/A

of Resources:

Equality /Diversity implications: Mo
Considered by Monitoring Officer: | MN/A
Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: MN/A

Page 185




TRACKING /PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This 15 a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury BL2 0OE]

Tel: 0161 253 5291
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 186



Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers
Between 21/08/2025 and 12/10/2025

a

ali)
s o
=

[-]
[
[

Ward:
Application No.: 71673 App. Type: CONDIS 17/09/2025 Split Decision
s Saw Mills Off, Spring Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9313

Proposal:  Application to discharge conditions on planning permission 71343: 4 & 5 (contaminated land),
10 (landscaping), 12 (drainage}, 13 {water main])

Application Mo.: 71941 App. Type: CONDIS 01/10/2025 Approve

p Land off James Street & Alfred Street, Bury
Location:

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 4 on planning permission 70109:
Submission of Streetworks Permit (HZ762UUE161KMOL-01]) signed off by Bury Highways; The
permanent wvehicular access arrangements incorporating inward opening gates have been
implemented to the specification indicated on the approved plans:
BO062003-02-GHD-092LR-95-DR-01-00030 PO2 and
80062003-02-GHD-092LR-9%-DR-01-00031 PO3.

Application No.: 71974 App. Type: CONDIS 04/0%/2025 Approve

Location: Longfield Shepping Centre/Car Park & adjeining land at Bury New Road, Rectory Lane B Fairfax
" Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 SAY

Proposal:  Application for the discharge of condition 18 (Bird Mesting and Roosting provisions}, condition

22 [Highway Improvement Works) and condition 40 {(Low/Zero Carben Energy Sources)
pursuant to application reference 70449

Application No.: 72064 App. Type: COMDIS 01/10/2025 Approve
s Holcombe Brock Sports and Tennis Club, Hazel Half Lane, Tottington, Bury, BLO 3FS

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 4 {warks to trees or shrubs), cendition 5 {Biodiversity Gain
Plan} and condition & (Habitat Management and Monitoring Plan) and Statutory Biodiversity
Gain Plan Conditionon planring permission 71043

Application No.: 72118 App. Type: COMDIS 28/08/2025 Approve
Location: owes Park Golf Club Ltd, Hill Top, Lowes Road, Bury, BL® 6Q5

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition no. 2 (Technical Approval of Highway Structures) on
planning permission 71687

Application No.: 72148 App. Type: CONDIS 04/09/2025 Approve
R Land off Victoria Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 6DP

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 17 (highway works) on p/p 68691

Application No.: 721568 App. Type: REGS  21/08/20Z5 Raise Objections
s Junction of Sunny Bank Road & Westdale Avenue, Bury, BL9 BES

Proposal: Regulation 5 notice (ref. BRY0486) for removal of existing 15m high streetpole with 2No
antennas and replacement with a propesed 18m high streetpole {with wraparound cabinet)
accommodating 8No new antennas, 1Mo relocated transmission dish and ancillary development
The proposal also involves the instaliation of 2Mo eguipment cabinets at ground fevel and
ancillary eguipment thereto

Page 1of18 01012025
Page 187



Application No.: 72170 App. Type: REGS  26/08/2025 Raise No Objection
Location:  Highways verge at Junction 17, M&0 & Hardmans Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7BD

Proposal: Regulation 5 notification (ref.C5 13287024 of intention to remove existing 15m pole to be
replaced with proposed 20m pole on new foundation:
= Existing eguipment on existing pole to be removed
* Proposed installation of 6MNo. Antennas
* Proposed installation of 3Mo, ERS medules
» Proposed installation of 1Mo, 300mm dish
* Proposed relocation of 1Mo, GPS module onto new pole
* Proposed installation of 1Mo. meter cabinest
» Ancillary equipment as per drawings

Application No.: 72171 App. Type: REGS  26/08/2025 Raise Objections
Location: Pavement near 7 Croich Green, Tottington, Bury, BLE 4PH

Proposal:  Regulation 5 notification of intention to install 1 new 10m medium wooden pole

Application No.: 72172 App. Type: REGS  21/08/2025 Raise No Objection
Location: Grass verge before Heaton Farm, Heywood Old Road, Rochdale, Manchester, M24 4RF

Proposal:  Regulation 5 notification of intention to install 1 no. 8m light wooden pole

Application No.: 72177 App. Type: REGS  26,/08/2025 Raise No Objection
Location: Fernhill streetworks, end of Hardman Street, Bury, BLS 58]

Proposal: Regulation 5 notice (ref. C513210723) of intention to replace and reposition 20M pole
supporting & no. antennas with 20M pole supprting 9 no. antennas, removal of 1 no. cabinet,
installation of 2 no, cabinets and ancillary development thereto {revision of notification dated
01/05/2025)

Application Mo.: 72182 App. Type: COMDIS 01/09/2025 Approve
Location: Warth Industrial Park, Warth Road, Bury, BLS 9NB

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition & (bird nest survey) on planning permission 70993

Application No.: 72194 App. Type: CONDIS 11/09/2025 Approve
Location: Ainsworth Mursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth, Bolton, BLZ SPT

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition no 11 (Surface Water Sustainable Drainage Assessment] of
planning permission 68661

Application Mo.: 72195 App. Type: CONDIS 19/093/2025 Approve
Location: &1 Pinfold Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 7NY

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition nos. 3 [Site Verification Report) 4 (EV charging) 8 (Bat
Mitigation Licence] & 10 (Bicdiversity Enhancement Scheme) of planning permission 69677

Application No.: 72204 App. Type: REGS  01/09/2025 Raise No Objection
Location: Corner of Bridge Hall Lane (oppposite Burger King), Bury, BLS 7PB

Proposal:  Regulation 5 notice (ref. BRY021) of intention to install Proposed 19.0m High Phase 7.2
streetworks pole with wraparound cabinet with 3no antennas; Removal of the existing 17m
High Phase 4 Monopole; Proposed Zno cabinets and ancillary development

Page 2 of 18 1010/2025
Page 188



Application No.: 72209 App. Type: CONDIS 01/10/2025 Approve
Lacalans 47 Knowisley Street, Bury, BLS 05T

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 3 {sound insulation) on planning permission 71276

Application No.: 72210  App. Type: CONDIS 03/10/2025 Approve
R Land on south east side of Milltown Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, MZ6 1WN

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 4 (construction envirenmental management plan - CEMP),
condition 3 {construction traffic management plan - CTMP} and condition & {method statement
for invasive species] on planning permission 67945

Application No.: 72232 App. Type: CONDIS 26/09/2025 Approve
Location: 12 Barw ood Lea, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 3AX

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 3 (reinstatement roof slates) on planning permission 71984

Application Mo.: 72242 App. Type: COMDIS 23/09/2025 Approve
Location:  Higher House Cottage, Moor Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLE 4NY

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition nos. 3 {roof material), 4 (external elevation and boundary
wall materials), 5 {window frame material) and 6 {gate and door materials) on listed building
cansent 71823

Application No.: 72244 App. Type: COMDIS 23/09/2025 Split Decision
L ik Higher House Cottage, Moor Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLE 4HY

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition nos. 4 {contamination), 5 (soil materials) and 6 (roof
material}), 7 [externzal elevation and boundary wall fnish), & [window frames materizls) and 2
[gates and deors materials) on planning permission 71808

Application No.; 72254 App. Type: CONDIS 07/10/2025 Approve

it Site of Car Time, Bell Lane, Bury, BLY 6BB

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 3 {contaminated land/remediation measures) and condition
9 {construction traffic management plan [CTMP]) on planning permission 70945

Application No.: 72263 App. Type: REGS  22/09/2025 Raise Mo Objection
Location: Pavement adj Bury Elton Gas Works, Victoria Street, Bury, BLE 25L

Proposal: Regulation 5 notice of intention to install 1 ne, 9M medium wooden pole (ref. OGEAA2149381)

Application Mo.: 72265 App. Type: COMDIS 26/09/2025 Approve
LG alion: Ferns Farm, Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BLE 30H

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 4 (construction traffic management plan (CTMP)) on
planning permission 71688

Application No.: 72266 App. Type: CONDIS 26/09/2025 Approve
S Star Academy, Spring Lane, Radcliffe, M26 252

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition 4 (Remediation Strategy Closure Statement) on planning
permission 71529

Application No.: 72267 App. Type: REGS  0B/09/2025 Raise Mo Objection
et Pavement adj 7 Cemetery Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M25 4FT

Proposal: Regulation 5 notice of intention to install 1 no. M light wooden pole (ref.0GEAA1963101)

Page 3of 18 01012025
Page 189



Application No.: 72279 App. Type: COMDIS 29/09/2025 Refused
Location:  2ite of former Riverside High School, School Street, Radcliffe, M23 5BW

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition no. 9 (Construction and Environmental Management Plan) of
planning permission 69233

Application Mo.: 72281 App. Type: CONDIS 26/09/2025 Approve
el Land south of Pimhole Business Park {adj Rover Roch), Alfred Street, Bury

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition nos, 12-15 (Biodiversity Net Gain) of planning permission
71027

Application No.: 72389 App. Type: REGS  17/09/2025 Raise No Objection
Location: Land at 26 Chapel Road, Prestwich

Proposal: Regulation 5 Motice for intention to install 1 no, m light pole {ref. 54032)

Application Mo.: 72401 App. Type: REGS  09/10/2025 Raise No Objection
Location:  Pavement at Walshaw Road, Bury

Proposal: Regulation 5 notice of intention to install GPS node on existing pole, installation of 6130
cabinet, installation of half bowler cabinet, installation of link AC cabinet and ancillary
development

Ward: Bury East

Application No.: 71024 App. Type: FUL 7/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
g 2B Haymarket Street, Bury, BL9 0AY

Proposal: Replacement of timber windows at first and second floor levels with timber framed sliding sash
style windows

Application Mo.: 71927 App. Type: FUL 09/10/2025 Refused
E 1 The Rock, Bury, BLS 0JF
Location:

Proposal: Change of use of basement, rear of ground floor and 1st/2nd/3rd/4th floors from commercial
[Class E) to 10 no. self-contained Aats with external alterations

Application Mo.: 71928 App. Type: LBC 09,/10/2025 Refused
3 1 The Rock, Bury, BLS 01F
Location:

Proposal:  Listed building consent for change of use of basement, rear of ground fioor and

1st/Znd/3rd/4th floors from commercial (Class E) to 10 no. self-contained flats with external
alterations

Application No.: 71937 App. Type: ADV 09,/09/2025 Approve
g 29-33 The Rock, Bury, BL9 0JP
Location:

Proposal: Internally Illuminated ATM and MFD external Collars

Application No.: 72017 App. Type: FUL 19/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
- Angouleme Way, Bury, BLS DEL
Location:

Proposal:  Erection of access staircase between Angouleme Way underpass and Metrolink platform for a
temporary period of 3 years,

Page 4 of 18 01012025
Page 190



Application No.: 72044 App. Type: FUL 237092025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Metrolink car park, Haymarket Street, Bury, BLS 0AY

Proposal:  Erection of site office and welfare compound; 2 no. smoking shelters; 2.4m high hearding for a
tempeorary period of 2 years

Application No.: 72103 App. Type: FUL 05/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: First Floor,18 Bolton Street, Bury, BLS OLg

Proposal: Change of use from Class E {professional services) to Class F1 (learning and no-residential
educational institutions)

Application No.: 72116 App. Type: FUL 031072025 Approve with Conditions
Location: The Art Picture House, Haymarket Street, Bury, BLS 0AY

Proposal: Installation of 5 additional condensers and two grilles to the rear elevation

Application Mo.: 72133 App. Type: LDCP 05/09/2025 Lawful Development
Location:  +99 Rochdale Old Read, Bury, BLS 7TB

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for propesed loft conversien including dormer window to rear
elevation, roof lights to front elevation and change of use from Dwellinghouse [C3) to & person
HMO (C4)

Application No.: 72144 App. Type: LDCP 20/08/2025 Lawful Development
Location: 108 Rochdale Old Road, Bury, BLS 7LR

Proposal:  Lawful development certificate for proposed conversion of dwelling into HMO

Application No.: 72165 App. Type: FUL 05/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Pyramid Park, Market Street, Bury, BLS 0BG

Proposal:  Variation of the approved Habitat Management and Menitoring Plan (HMMP) associated with
the Bicdiversity Gain Plan [BGP) condition

Application No.: 72167 App. Type: PIIPA  03/10/2025 Prior Approval Required and Granted
Location: 14-16 Bolton Street, Bury, BLS 0L

Proposal:  Prior approval for change of use of existing first and second floors from (Class E) into
residential use (Class C2) (7 no. apartments in total)

Application No.: 72189 App. Type: P3IPA  09/09/2025 Prior Approval Required and Granted
. First floor, 60 Bolton Street, Bury, BLS OLL
Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed change of use from first floor office (Class E) to 1 no. flat [Class
c3)
Application No.: 72187 App. Type: FUL 03/09/2025 Approve with Conditions

Location: £4-86 The Rock, Bury, BL9 OPB

Proposal:  Alterations to existing shop front to include the removal of the timber effect slats, installation
of a new fascia panel and the redecoration of window frames and door.

Application No.: 72188 App. Type: ADV 03/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 64-66 The Rock, Bury, BL9 OPB

Proposal: 1 no. internally illuminated fascia sign with 1 no. yellow internally illuminated gelden
underscore and the redecoration of the existing projecting sign.

Page 5 of 18 1010/2025
Page 191



Application No.: 72269 App. Type: LDCP  02/10/2025 Lawful Developmeant
Location: 10 Irwell Street, Bury, BLY OHE

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed change of use from C3 dwelling, to maximum &
persen HMO C4 use, with Loft Conversion including Dermer Extension to Rear Elevation and

Roof Lights to Front Elevation.

Application No.: 72322 App. Type: ADVY 0of10/2025 Approve with Conditions
. 24 Central Street, Bury, BLS 0JN
Location:

Proposal:  Front-lit box letters logo to shopfront;  Internally illuminated replacement sign to existing
projecting sign housing: Internally illuminated lightbex mounted to internal display window
wall behind shopfront [high level); Internally illuminated digital display screen (behind
shopfront)

Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 72031 App. Type: FUL 22/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Pavement adjacent to car park in front of 174-175 Walmersley Road, Bury, BLS SLL

Proposal:  Installaticn of 1 no. BT Street Hub Unit with 2 no. digital 75 inch LCD display screens either
side of unit and relocation of existing phone kiosks

Application No.: 72032 App. Type: ADV 22/08f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Pavement adjacent to car park in front of 174-175 Walmersley Road, Bury, BLS SLL

Proposal:  Advertisement censent for 2 no. digital 75 inch LCD display screens either side of 1 no. BT
street hub unit

Application No.: 72121 App. Type: FUL 26/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
. 75 Fairlands Road, Bury, BLS &0QB
Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at side/rear; Replacement 1.8M high fence/gates at side/rear

Application No.: 72203 App. Type: LDCP 0271072025 Lawful Development
. 23 Monmouth Avenue, Bury, BLS 5DU
Location:

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for propesed change of use from 2 no. flats to 1 no. dwelling

Application No.: 72251 App. Type: FUL 25/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
. 2 Beech Grove Close, Bury, BLY 6ES
Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and front porch

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Application No.: 72075 App. Type: FUL 27/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
. 1 Wiltshire Close, Bury, BLY SEY
Location:

Proposal: Side extension; Single storey rear extension; Loft conversion with front & rear dormers;
Relocation of main entrance to front elevation; Front porch & caneopy: Bay windows to front
elevation; Relocation of wvehicular access to sidefrear

Page 8 of 18 1010/2025
Page 192



Application No.: 72101 App. Type: FUL 08/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
21 Devon Street, Bury, BLS SBN

Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at the rear; rear dormer extension and 2 no. roof lights to front
elevation
Application No.: 72113 App. Type: GPDE  04/09/2025 Prior Approval Required & Granted - Ext

Fiicalions 74 Gigg Lane, Bury, BLS 9HU

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposad single storey rear extension

Application No.: 721B1 App. Type: LDCP 04032025 Lawful Development

b tieabions 44 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 05X

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed change of use from C3 dwelling, to & bed, &
person HMO C4 use, with internal works and new velux roof lights to front and rear

Application Mo.: 72248 App. Type: FUL 22/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 3 Kent Drive, Bury, BL% DL

Proposal:  Front porch and single storey / two storey extension at rear

Application Mo.: 72249 App. Type: COMDIS 07/10/2025 Approve
Location: Land south of Pimhole Business Park, adjacent to the River Rech

Proposal:  Application to discharge condition nos. 8 (land contamination) and 11 {access arrangements)
on planning permission 71027

Application No.: 72252 App. Type: FUL 25/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
N 47 Wellington Reoad, Bury, BL SEQ

Proposal:  Part single/part two storey rear extension,

Ward: Bury West

Application Mo.: 72062 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
. 116 Ainsworth Road, Bury, BLE ZRX
Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extensicn

Application No.: 72072 App. Type: FUL 29/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
N Sillivan Works, Wood Street, Bury, BLE 251

Proposal: Over cladding of an existing mongo pitch asbestos roof to rear and replacement of existing
slated roof to front

Application No.: 72145 App. Type: FUL pD4/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 202 Ainsworth Road, Bury, BLS 2L5

Proposal: Two storey side extension: single storey front and rear extensions and extension of existing
vehicular access and driveway

Application No.: 72299 App. Type: FUL p2f10/2025 Approve with Conditions
el 2 Winmarleigh Close, Bury, BLE 2TA

Proposal:  Two storey side extension

Page 7 of 18 01012025
Page 193



Application No.: 72302 App. Type: FUL 09/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Lecation: 1% Abbey Drive, Bury, BLE 2HP

Proposal:  First floor side extension

Ward. Bury West - Elton

Application No.: 71608 App. Type: FUL 27/0BF2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: L2 Holbeach Close, Bury, BLE 1XA

Proposal: Single storey extension at side/rear

Application No.: 71952 App. Type: FUL 21/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
L acalicis 1 Rudgwick Drive, Bury, BLE 1¥A

Proposal:  Single storey side and rear extension, including raising of eaves and ridge heights; side
dormers; demolition of existing garage at side and erection of single storey outbuilding at rear

Application No.: 72178 App. Type: FUL 010972025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2P Scholes Street, Bury, BLE 2RA

Proposal: Demolition of part rear single storey extension

Application No.: 72139 App. Type: FUL 11/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
— 31 Rudgwick Drive, Bury, BLE 1¥A

Proposal:  First floor front extension and external alterations

Application No.: 72261 App. Type: GPDE  26,/09/2025 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
Locations 278 Brandlesholme Road, Bury, BLE 1H]

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 72296 App. Type: FUL 07/10/2025 Approve with Conditians
el 12 Springside View, Bury, BLE 4LU

Proposal:  Single storey front extension, first floor side extension over existing garage with conversion of
garage to living accommodation; Addition of render finishes and cladding to external elevations

Ward: North Manor

Application Mo.: 71217 App. Type: FUL 03/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Bassfield Farm, Manchester Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLS 3LY

Proposal:  Change of use of building from storage to residential

Application No.: 71552 App. Type: FUL 11/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location:  1° Broocklands Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 95W

Proposal:  Variation of Conditions 2 {approved plans) 3 (Materials) and 3 {parking arrangements] of
planning permission 68279 - To take account of the revised drawings showing the elevational
treatment and parking ammangements

Page 3 of 18 01012025
Page 194



Application No.: 71746 App. Type: FUL 0B/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Miller & Carter, Brandlesholme Road, Tottington, Bury, BLE 4D5

Location:

Proposal: Installation of roof mounted 43.23kW sclar PV system comprising of 95 x Canadian Solar 455w
modules

Application No.: 71827 App. Type: FUL 177092025 Approve with Conditions

Location: 24 Beech Grove, Tottingten, Bury, BLS 4DY

Proposal:  Single storey side extension

Application No.: 71922 App. Type: FUL 01/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Falshaws Farm, Rowlands Road, Bury, BL9 5L]

Proposal: Construction of a lined earth bank slurry lagoon and installation of a slurry separator

Application No.: 72056 App. Type: LDCP 21/08/2025 Lawful Development
Location: 129 Mather Road, Bury, BLS &5L

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for propesed single storey extension to the rear

Application No.: 72136 App. Type: FUL 2B/08f2025 Approve with Cenditions
Location: 7 St Austell Drive, Tottington, Bury, BLE 4EY

Proposal:  Variation of condition 2 {approved drawings) and 3 (approved materials) of planning
permission 71837 to allow for a pitched roof on the rear dermer and replace the proposed
render finish en both front and rear dormer with tile hanging

Application No.: 72211 App. Type: FUL 07/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 1 Kimble Close, Tettington, Bury, BLE 430

Proposal: Two storey extension at side

Application No.: 72213 App. Type: LDCP  16/09/2025 Lawful Development
Location: 158 Railway Street, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLS 3QB

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for propesed single storey rear extension - following existing
roof to outbuilding

Application No.: 72239 App. Type: GPDE  26/03/2025 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
Location: - 1% Holcombe Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLE 4E]

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposad single storey rear extension

Application No.: 72255 App. Type: FUL 29/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2 Kimble Close, Tottington, Bury, BLS 400

Proposal:  First floer extensions at front and rear; External alterations to include render and cladding to
external elevations

Application Mo.: 72259 App. Type: PIP 01/10/2025 Refused
Location: Land on south side of Bolten Road, Hawkshaw, BLE 41F

Proposal:  Application for permission in principle for residential development of between 4 and 7 dwellings

Page 9 of 18 1010/2025
Page 195



Application No.: 72277 App. Type: FUL 09/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Lacation: 19 Hillstone Clese, Tottington, Bury, BLS 4EZ

Proposal: Single storey rear extension: Front porch

Application No.: 72286 App. Type: FUL 10/10/2025 Refused
E & Tor Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BLE 4HG
Location:

Proposal:  Increase wall height of front boundary wall to maximum 2.8m high and installation of new
gates to driveway

Application No.: 72290 App. Type: FUL 011072025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2 Rowlands Road, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 SNF

Proposal:  Single storey extension at front/side and two storey rear extension; Replacement/alteration to
existing windows,doors, rendering of existing dwelling and replacement of existing gate

Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 71907 App. Type: FUL 050972025 Approve with Conditions
ecaiaig 1P Penrith Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 U]

Proposal: Removal of conservatory and erection of single storey extension at sidefrear; Conversion of
existing garage to living accommedation

Application No.: 72057 App. Type: FUL 26/08f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: © Pine Grove, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DR

Proposal:  Raising of roof ridge height with hip to gable roof extension, loft conversion and rear dermer

Application No.: 72131 App. Type: FUL 12092025 Approve with Conditions
yhcaee M Peveril Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 6NR

Proposal: Two storey extension at sidefrear and single storey rear extension with roof alterations:
Replacement front porch

Application No.: 72141 App. Type: FUL 23/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
3 27 Daklands Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 113
Location:
Proposal: Replace flat roof with a pitch roof on existing side extension; single storey rear extension and
front porch
Application No.: 72142 App. Type: FUL 2B/08/2025 Approve with Conditions

Location: 39 Simister Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 250U

Proposal:  Variation of condition 2 (approved drawings) of planning permission 64576 - To Breedon
anthracite smooth concrete tile & Cladce black dermer cladding

Application No.: 72150 App. Type: FUL 11/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
L i 4 Croft Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 25E

Proposal:  Single storey front extension

Application Mo.: 72189 App. Type: FUL 26/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
A 209 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 20H

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension: 1.8m fence to side elevations

Page 10 of 01012025
Page 196



Application No.: 72192 App. Type: FUL 19/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 20 Nursery Reoad, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DG

Proposal: Demalition of a single storey rear extension and conservatory; Two storey rear extension

Application No.: 72223 App. Type: FUL 11/09/2025 Approve with Conditians
Location: L2 Busst Road, Prestwich, Manchester, MZ5 301

Proposal:  Single storey rear pitch roof to flat roof with parapet wall

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Application No.: 71577 App. Type: FUL 29/08/2025 Refused
Location: 17 Bishops Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHT

Proposal:  Loft conversion with raised ridge and front and rear dormers

Application No.: 71800 App. Type: FUL 01/10/2025 Refused
z 299 Middleton Road, Manchester, M3 4LY
Location:

Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 1 no. replacement dwelling

Application No.: 719687 App. Type: FUL 09/09,2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: B Chandes Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WW

Proposal:  Single storey front extension; Single storey extension at side and rear: Hip to gable roof
extension with loft conversion and dormer extensions at front and rear

Application No.: 72001 App. Type: FUL 03/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
facation: Hardman Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 0HB

Propoesal:  Loft conversion with rear dormer and 2 no. front darmers

Application No.: 72013 App. Type: FUL 25/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 106 Kings Road, Prastwich, Manchester, M25 OFY

Proposal:  Proposed side extension: proposed front perch: proposed first floor rear extension; pitched
roof above existing First Floor flat roof: alterations to the front and side window arrangements.

Application No.: 72018 App. Type: FUL 010972025 Approve with Conditions
Location: > Blackburn Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1FT

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 72097 App. Type: FUL 01/10/2025 Refuzed
Location: 2¢ bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 21¥

Proposal: Retrospective application for a freestanding pergola to the front of the restaurant, used as an
outdoor dining area andillary to the sxisting Class E use.

Application Mo.: 72099 App. Type: FUL 03/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
b tieabions B6/88 Kings Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFY

Page 11 of 01012025
Page 197



Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear (86 Kings Road); first floor extension at rear (88 Kings Road);
extension to existing retaining wall at rear {B6 Kngs Road); new roof to existing single storey
rear extension (88 kings Road) and new fencing at front, sides and rear (86/58 Kings Road)

Application No.: 72114 App. Type: FUL 01/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: o5 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFA

Proposal:  Single storey side & rear extensions and loft conversion with rear dormer along with internal
and external alterations

Application No.: 72173 App. Type: GPDE  05/09/2025 Prior Approval Mot Required - Extension
Location: I Mowbray Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 OLP

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 72183 App. Type: FUL 11/09f2025 Approve with Cenditions
Location: ° Hilton Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9NQ

Proposal:  Single storey side extension with steps to garden level; Dormer at rear

Application No.: 72191 App. Type: FUL 04092025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2+ Brookfield, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1EL

Proposal: Two storey/single storey rear/side extensions

Application No.: 72275 App. Type: FUL 26/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DZ

Proposal:  Front porch

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Application No.: 71973 App. Type: FUL 10/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 142 B 144 Butterstile Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9T]

Proposal: Conversion of 2 no. shops into 1 no. shop; alterations to shop front; new window / door and
external staircase at rear for first floor access,

Application Mo.: 71987 App. Type: FUL 01/10/2025 Refused
Location: L-2nd adjacent to 48 Rainsough Brow, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 3XW

Proposal:  Erection of a two storey mixed use development consisting of 1 no. shop [Class E) on the
ground floor and 1 no.apartment on first floor (Class €32) and associated car parking,
landscaping and boundary treatment

Application No.: 72125 App. Type: LDCP  10/09/2025 Lawful Development
Location: 02 Gardner Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3]E

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed replacement of pitched roof with flat roof on
existing rear extension

Application No.: 72152 App. Type: LDCP 0470972025 Lawful Development
Location: 1 Agecroft Road West, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3RF

Proposal:  Lawful development certificate for proposed - Demaolish existing garage, remove existing front
porch, remove rear bay window and construction of single storey side extension and
alterations to fenestrations

Page 12 of 1010/2025
Page 198



Application No.: 72198 App. Type: FUL 26/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
L acakicn: 3 Woodward Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TX

Proposal:  Removal of existing garage and erection of single storey extension at side/rear

Application No.: 72245 App. Type: FUL 18/09/2025 Approve with Conditians
Location: 20 Sandy Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M23 9NA

Proposal:  Two storey side extension and and single storey rear extension

Application No.: 72276 App. Type: FUL 29/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 22 Gardner Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HX

Proposal: Single storey rear extensicn

Application Mo.: 72303 App. Type: FUL 07 10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 71 Agecroft Road West, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 SRF

Proposal: Remove existing garage/front perch/rear bay window and construction of single storey side
extension; Alterations to fenestrations including insulatien/replacement of all windows and
render to all external elevations

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 71000 App. Type: FUL 1B/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
. Eton Business Park, Eton Hill Road, Radcdliffe
Location:
Proposal:  Erection of 17 no. small light industrial units (Class B2) with asscciated servicing and car
parking
Application No.: 71145 App. Type: FUL 04/09/2025 Approve with Conditions

Al ulinn Champion Mouldings Ltd, Eton Hill Industrial Estate, Eton Way South, Radcliffe, Bury, M2& 22T

Proposal:  Erecticn of a surface-mounted ancillary storage building anchored to existing hardstanding:
render to existing brick office building and expansion of car parking.

Application No.: 71563 App. Type: FUL iB/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
R Site of Whittaker House, Whittaker Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2TD

Proposal:  Variation of condition nos, 1, 14, 15 and 16 of planning permissien 63805 in accordance with
revised drawings submitted.

Application No.: 71812 App. Type: FUL 19/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
il Station Works, Bury Road, Radclife, Manchester, M26 2UA

Proposal:  Variation of condition no. 12 following approval of planning permission 69463 - To change the
wording for the foul and surface water drainage at the site

Application Mo.: 72054 App. Type: FUL 19/09/2025 Refused
Location: Land off Brookbottom Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4HX

Proposal: Demualition of 2 no. Stable Blacks; Erection of 5 no, Dwellings and a Stable Building

Application No.: 72119 App. Type: FUL 26/08f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: L2 Davenport Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4HS

Proposal:  Single storey extension at side

Page 13 of 01012025
Page 199



Application No.: 72258 App. Type: FUL 03f10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: ‘580 Church Street West, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 25Y

Proposal:  External works to existing fenestration and demolition of single storey rear extension

Ward. Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth

Application No.: 71B46 App. Type: LDCP  1B/09/20Z5 Lawful Development
Location: Mt 34 Bradley Fold Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 &8RS

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed development of yard area for the provision of
temporary material storage bays using movable concrete 'lege’ blocks,

Application Mo.: 71955 App. Type: FUL 21/08/ X025 Approve with Conditions
Lacation: 2F Krowsley Road, Ainsworth, Radcliffe, Belton, BLZ SPY

Proposal:  First floor extension at side and garage conversion

Application No.: 71988 App. Type: FUL 23/09/2025 Approve with Conditions

L 1 Pendennis Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2UH
Location:

Proposal:  Single storey front extension

Application No.: 719391 App. Type: FUL 1B/09/2025 Approve with Conditions

P 56 Starling Road, Radcliffe, Manchestar, M26& 4LN
Location:

Proposal:  Demclition of existing double garage; Single storey rear extension

Application Mo.: 72138 App. Type: LDCP 03/09/2025 Lawful Development

Fhcalions 179 Turks Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3W'Ww

Proposal:  Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 72196 App. Type: FUL 26/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 137 Turks Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3WW

Proposal:  Single storey rear/side extension

Application No.: 72205 App. Type: GPDE  09/0%/2025 Prior &pproval Mot Required - Extension
Location: 125 Starling Road, Bury, BLS 2HF

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposad single storey rear extension

Ward: Radcliffe - West

Application No.: 72140 App. Type: LDCP  11/09/20Z5 Lawful Development
Location: 1897167 Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M2& 1IR

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed change of use from Indoor sports to Shop &
storage {Class E)

Page 14 of 01012025
Page 200



Application No.: 72287 App. Type: FUL 03710/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: ©1 Coronation Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M2& 3RA

Proposal: Demolition of existing rear outbuilding and erection of two storey extension at side and single
storey extension at rear

Application No.: 72297 App. Type: FUL 26/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location:  >: Wolsey Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3AS

Proposal:  Single Storey Rear Extension; Chimney Remaoval

Ward: Ramsbottom

Application Mo.: 71705 App. Type: FUL 10/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 548 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLD SHX

Proposal:  Proposed new air conditioning cendenser unit to side elevation: alterations to shop front and
installation of louvres to the rear elevation.

Application No.: 71706 App. Type: ADV 10/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: E48 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HX

Proposal:  1no. externally illuminated fascia sign and 1no. externally illuminated prejecting sign

Application No.: 71914 App. Type: FUL 12/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 7 Dundee Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO SHL

Proposal: Demolition of conservatory; single storey rear extension; Side dormer

Application Mo.: 71949 App. Type: FUL 26/09/2025 Refused
Location:  Bast House Cottage, 335 Manchester Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL® 5LZ

Proposal: Replace existing windows with UPVC woodgrain windows; change window to ground floor front
B side elevation to glazed door, addition of window to first floor rear elevation and increase
size of window to existing ground floor rear elevation. Upgrade house insulation to improve
thermal performance which will need side gable recessed bay to be insulated and renderad
white externally

Application Mo.: 71950 App. Type: LBC 26/09/2025 Refused
Location: Bast House Cottage, 335 Manchester Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL3 5LZ

Proposal:  Listed Building Consent to replace existing windows ; change window to ground floor front &
side elewvation to glazed door, addition of window to first floor rear elevation and increase size
of window to existing ground floor rear elevation, Upgrade house insulation to improve thermal
performance which will need side gable recessed bay to be insulated and rendered white
externally

Application No.: 72026 App. Type: FUL 10/09f2025 Approve with Cenditions
Location: Brook Bottorm Farm, Bury Old Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO ORZ

Proposal: Change of use of dwelling (Class C3) to 5 ne. holiday let units

Application No.: 72027 App. Type: FUL 10/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Brook Bottom Farm, Bury Old Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO ORZ

Proposal: Detached holiday let unit, hydrotherapy ped & 2 no. hot tubs

Page 15 of 1010/2025
Page 201



Application No.: 72076 App. Type: PIAPA 01/09/2025 Prior Approval Required and Granted
B3 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HY

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for change of use building from commercial (Class E) to 1no. dwellinghouse
[Class C3]

Application No.: 72081 App. Type: FUL 29/08/2025 Refused

. Limit, 1-2 Halter Inn Works, 11 Redisher Croft, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 954
Location:

Proposal:  Variation of condition no. 2 of planning permission 63702 [Demolition of existing industrial
buildings and erection of 3 no. detached dwellings): alterations to the design and size of the
propased dwellings to increase internal floor area; balcony at first floor; roof amended and
gables increased and changes to fenestration

Application Mo.: 72100 App. Type: FUL 22/09/2025 Refused
Location: The White Rabbit, 12 Peel Brow, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 0A&4&

Proposal: Retention of timber outbuildings for use as outdoor bar/seating areas and pizza bar

Application No.: 72111 App. Type: FUL 017092025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLOD SNA

Proposal: Change of use from restaurant (Class E(b)) to coffee shop/hot food takeaway (Sui Generis)
and installation of flue to the rear elevation.

Application Mo.: 72257 App. Type: LDCP 23/09/2025 Lawful Development
Location: 22 stanford Hall Crescent, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9FD

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for propesed single storey rear extension and porch

Application No.: 72280 App. Type: LDCPF  02/10/2025 Lawful Development
Location:  © Stanford Hall Crescent, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9FD

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension on domestic dwelling
under PD rights

Ward: Tottington

Application No.: 70870 App. Type: FUL 037092025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 32 Sunny Bower Street, Tottington, Bury, BLE 2HL

Proposal:  Conversion of part of adjoining barn to form a two storey addition to existing dwelling

Application No.: 72149 App. Type: FUL 26/09f2025 Approve with Cenditions
Location: Meadow View, Watling Street, Tottington, BLE 30QR

Proposal: Demolition and replacement of existing agricultural building

Application No.: 72153 App. Type: FUL 04/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 250 Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BLE 447

Proposal: Two storey side extension

Page 18 of 1010/2025
Page 202



Application No.: 72186 App. Type: FUL 11/09/2025 Refuzed
Lacakion: 04 Holcombe Road, Tottingten, Bury, BLE 4AY

Proposal: Rear dormer; extension of the existing side dormer, and front canopy aleng with dadding to
front & rear elevations

Application No.: 72235 App. Type: FUL 1B/09f3025 Approve with Conditions
Fiicalions 2 Rosewood Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BLE 3HG

Proposal: Two storey sidefrear extension; Single storey rear extension

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Application No.: 71954 App. Type: LDCP 21/08/ X025 Lawful Development
Location: 27 Victoria Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6BZ

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for proposed use of a (C3a) dwelfing as a residential hame for
a maximum of two children with twa carers who would sleep overnight en a rota basis {C2].

Application No.: 72123 App. Type: FUL 050972025 Approve with Conditions
vecatiaig 2V Thatch Leach Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 6EN

Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear and single storey rear extension with steps to garden level

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 71417 App. Type: FUL 03/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
s 4 Ringley Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7HR

Proposal:  Erecticn of replacement dwelling with landscaping and extension to driveway

Application Mo.: 721397 App. Type: FUL 04/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
g 41 Ringley Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LA

Proposal:  First floor side extension: Addition of first floor window to front elevation

Application No.: 72207 App. Type: ADV 04/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 229 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 BGW

Proposal: 1 Mo. free standing non-illuminated sign in front garden

Application No.: 72212 App. Type: FUL 10/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
g 1 Ganton Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M43 7LT
Location:
Proposal:  First floor side extension with extension of existing front canopy and alterations/render to front
elevation
Application Mo.: 72260 App. Type: pPIP 03/10/2025 Refused

P Hileden Farm Stables, Ringley Foad West, Radcliffe, M26 1DW
Location:

Proposal:  Application For permission in principle for erection of up to 4 no. dwellings

Page 17 of 01012025
Page 203



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Application No.: 719749 App. Type: FUL 03/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Brick House Farm, Griffe Lane, Bury, BL9 805

Proposal:  Erection of 1 no. livefwork unit

Application No.: 72128 App. Type: FUL 27/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: o2 Church Meadow, Bury, BLS BIF

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 721249 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Brick House Farm, Griffe Lane, Bury, BL9 205

Proposal:  Variation of condition 9@ (approved materials) following approval of planning permission 65542
to change roof tiles over single storey lean-to to Planum Roof Tiles by La Escandella

Application No.: 72208 App. Type: ADV 04/09/2025 Refused
Location: The Gatehouse, Connect 36 Business Hub, Manchester Road, Bury, BLS SNY

Proposal: 1 No. non-illuminated Smm diabond sheet sign to frent elevation

Application No.: 72220 App. Type: FUL 09/10/2025 Approve with Conditions
Location: Brick House Farm, Griffe Lane, Bury, BL9 205

Proposal:  Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) following approval of planning permission 70796
including removal of the proposed basement, mirroring the approved floor plans, revised
window lecations and removal of the proposed lean-to roof to the sidefrear and replacement
with a flat roof

Application No.: 72228 App. Type: LDCP 03/10/2025 Lawful Development
Location: 236 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 3PA

Proposal:  Lawful development certificate for proposed change of use frem residential (Class C3) to
children’s residential care home for up to three children with up to three staff working on a
rota basis [Class C2].

Application No.: 72233 App. Type: FUL 17/09f2025 Approve with Conditions
- 22 Ventnor Avenue, Bury, BL% EHH
Location:

Proposal:  Single storey side and rear extension

Application No.: 72274 App. Type: FUL 25/09/2025 Approve with Conditions
. 19 Bleomfield Drive, Bury, BLS 81X
Location:

Proposal: Single Storey Rear Extension

Application No.: 72278 App. Type: FUL 101042025 Approve with Conditions
Location: 66 Hathaway Road, Bury, BLS BEG

Proposal:  Variation of condition 3 (approved materials) following approval of planning permission 70103
- Change to a render finish

Total Humber of Applications Decided: 163

Page 18 of 1010/2025
Page 204



Agenda ltem-6

REPORT FOR NOTING

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 October 2025

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:

-  Lodged

- Determined

Enforcement Appeals

-  Lodged

-  Determined
OPTIONS & The Committee iz recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the 5151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director

of Resources:

N/A

Equality /Diversity implications: Mo

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | MN/A

Page 205




Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: MN/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership
Team

Executive
Member/Chair

Ward Members

Partners

Scrutiny Committee

Committee

Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Motices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that

were upheld.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management
Flanning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,

3 Knowsley Place ,Bury

Tel: 0161 253 5291

BLS 0OE]

Email: d.marno@bury,gov.uk

Page 206




Planning Appeals Lodged
between 21/08/2025 and 12/10/2025 e e

Application No.: 71502/FUL Appeal lodged: 15/09/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations

Recommended Decision: Refuss

Applicant: BT Group plc
Location Pavement ad) 65-69 Rochdale Road, Bury, BLS 7AX

Proposal Installation of 1 no. BT street hub unit with 2 no. digital 75 inch LCD display screens
either side of unit

Application No.: 71641/FUL Appeal lodged: 10/09/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Zvi Portnoy
Location 17 Belle Vue Temace, Bury, BLS 05Y

Proposal Change of use of existing 6 bed house in multiple occupation (HMO) to 8 bed
(single occupancy) HMO (Sul Generis)

Application No.: 71905/PIP Appeal lodged: 27/08/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Steven
Location Land between 145 and 115 Holcombe Old Road, Bury, BLS 4MF

Proposal Permmission in principle for the removal of barn/storage shed and erection of 1no.
three bedroom detached dwelling

Application No.: 71982/FUL Appeal lodged: 09/10/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type:

Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Dileep Singh Ahuja

Location Land adjacent to 4% Rainsough Brow, Prestwich, Mancheaster, M25 9XW

Proposal Erection of a two storey mixed use development consisting of 1 no. shop (Class E)
on the ground floor and 1 no.apartment on first floor (Class C3) and associated car
parking, landscaping and boundary treatment

Page 207



Application No.: 72009/FUL Appeal lodged: 06/10/2025

Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Hushand
Location 177 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO SJD

Proposal  Replacement of timber windows with UPVE

Application No.: 72039/FUL Appeal lodged: 15/09/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: BT Group Plc

Location Pavement at side of Momisons, Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45
80s

Proposal Installation of 1 no. BT Street Hub Unit with 2 no. digital 75 inch LCD display
screens either side of unit and relocation of existing phone kiosk

Application No.: 72040/ADV Appeal lodged: 15/09/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: BT Group Plc

Location Pavement at side of Momisons, Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45
80s

Proposal  Advertisement consent for 2 no. digital 75 inch LCD display screens either side of 1
no. BT street hub unit

Application No.: 72088/aDV Appeal lodged: 15/09/2025
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: BT Group Plc

Location FPavement ad) 65-69 Rochdale Road, Bury, BL9 7AX

Proposal  Advertisement consent for 2 no. digital 75 inch LCD display screen either side of 1
no. BT street hub unit

Application No.: 72100/FUL Appeal lodged: 07/10/2025

Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuss

Applicant: The Hearth of the Lamb
Location The White Rabbit, 13 Peel Brow, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 0AA

Proposal Fetention of timber outbuildings for use as outdoor bar/seating areas and pizza bar

“Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 9

Page 208



Details of New Enforcement Appeals Lodged B@]W

0
between 21/08/2025 and 12/10/2025 s
Case Ref: 24/0442 Date of Appeal: (08/08/2025

Appeal Type: REP
Location: 5 Crompton Street, Bury, BL9 0AD

Issue: Unauthorised works to elevations/windows

Total Number of Appeal Cases: 01

Page 209
Date of Report - 101072025 Page 1 of1



Details of Enforcement Appeal Decisons E@W

between 21/08/2025 and 12/10/2025 R
Location: 21 Castle Hill Road, Bury, BL? 7RN Case Ref:
0401 /22
Issue: Erection of fencing to front, side and rear

Appeal Decision: Dismissed 12/09/2025

Page 210
Date of Report - 101072025 Page 1 of1



| m Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

by D Boffin BSc (Hons), DipTP, MRTPI, DipBldg Cons (RICS), IHBC
an Ingpacior appainted by the Sacratary of State
Declslon dafe: 12" Saptember 2025

Appeal Ref: APPIT4210/C/24/3348416
Land and Property at 21 Castle Hill Road, Bury BL9 TRN

The appeal 1= made under section 174 of the Town and Courntry Planning Act 1280 [as amended)
ithe 1980 Act).

The appeal is made by Clare Reynolds against an enforcement notice [EM) isswed by Bury
Metropolitan Borough Council.

The EM was issued on B July 2024,

The breach of planning controd as alleged in the EM is: Without the benefit of planning permission,
the erection of fimbker fencing in excess of 3 metres in height located on the side boundary of the
property. {Moted as 'A-A' om the attached red edged plan).

The requirernent of the EM is:

Reduce the height of the timber fencing, shown in the approximate position on the attachad red
edged location plan and marked '&-4, o no more than 2 meters in height measured from natural
ground level.

The period for compliance with the reguirement is; G0 days.

The sppeal is proceeding on the ground set out in section 174(2)(f) of the 1980 Act.

Decision

1.

It is directed that the enforcement nofice is varied by:

» the deletion of the word "meters” and the substitution of the word "metres”
in the requirement; and

+ the deletion of the word "natural” in the reguirement.

Subject to the variations, the appeal is dismissed and the enforcement notice is
upheid.

Preliminary Matters

2.

On an appeal any defect, error, or misdescription in an EN may be corrected using
the powers available in section 176(1)(a) of the 1990 Act, or the terms may be
vared, where the correction or vanation will not cause injustice to the appellant or
local planning authorty. |n this case the requirement cites 2 metres in height
measured from natural ground fevel. There is a typographical error as ‘mefers’
should be ‘mefres’. Moreover, the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (the GPDO) at Part 2, Class A, section A.1(b)
refers to ‘the height of any other gate, fence, wall or means of enclosure erected or
constructed would exceed 2 metres above ground fevel”. Therefore, to ensure
precision | intend to delete the word ‘nafural” from the requirement. As these
variations to the requirement are minor no injustice would result to any party if i
used the powers available to me under section 176(1) of the 1950 Act. | will
therefore do so.

section 172(3) (b) of the 1980 Act states that ‘the senvice of the notice shall take
place—.__ ... (b} not less than twenty-eight days before the date specified in it as

hifps: e gov ukiplanning-inspectorate Page 211




Appeal Decision APPT2210/C2473348418

the date on which it is fo taxke effect.” In this case the date of issue of the EMis 9
July 2024 and the date on which it fakes effect is 23 July 2024. As such, it was not
issued in accordance with section 172 of the 1990 Act. However, the appeliant
was able to make a valid appeal in time and therefore they have not been
substantially prejudiced. As a result, if a ground (e) appeal, under section

174(2)(f) of the 1990 Act, had been made it would not have been successful.

The ground (f) appeal

4.
5.

The ground of appeal is that the requirement of the EN is excessive.

An EM can have the purpose of remedying the breach of planning conirol. This
can include making any development comply with the terms (including conditions
and limitations) of any planning permission granted in respect of the land or
restoring the land to its condition before the breach took place. Alternatively, an
EM can have the purpose of remedying any injury to amenity which has been
caused by the breach.

Reducing the fence to no more than 2 metres in height would bring it within the
terms of the planning permission granted by the GPDO at Article 3, Schedule 2,
Part 2, Class A. Therefore, its purpose is clearly to remedy the breach. Retaining
the fence at its current height would sustain the breach described in the EN. This
would not achieve the purpose of the EN.

| understand the need for approprate secunty to protect the occupiers of a
dwelling and their property from harm and vandalism. However, that is a planning
merits argument and there is no deemed planning application before me, as no
ground (a) appeal has been made. Aside from retaining the fence at its cumant
height uniil a neighbour has passed away, the appellant has advanced no
alternative to the reguirement set out in the EN. Whilst, that would eventually
remedy the breach, the imescale is unknown, and no ground (g) appeal has been
made. Moreover, the fence is not required to be removed only reduced in height
to no more than 2 metres in height.

Therefore, the EN requirement is not excessive; it is a proportionate remedy
involving the minimum works necessary to remedy the breach of planning control.
The ground (f) appeal fails.

Conclusion

8. For the reasons given above | conclude that the appeal should not succeed. | shall

uphold the enforcement notice with variations.

D Boffin

INSPECTOR

NEpE M. a0y ukiplannin g-ne rate F%ge 212



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 2nd September 2025
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 1 Final
	Item 2 Final
	Item 3 Final
	Item 4 Final
	0a950aac-2b28-417a-9d21-e264509290d1.pdf
	35ee57de-3c17-408d-921c-ca6fa68cf29a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LU281 - P02A - Existing Site Plan


	672aad9e-b007-45d5-822f-210045ecc581.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LU281 - P05H - Proposed Site Plan


	dea66e75-d07a-4411-8e6d-d57b9658b7ba.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LU281 - P04 - Existing plans


	6779832e-63d3-4ddd-958a-9d2e41699b82.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LU281 - P06D - Proposed drawings


	5c8a2756-6b82-4069-815b-8e66bbd4c632.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LU281 - P08B - Proposed Elevations


	3e07e06b-9edb-4340-8980-3924cb1897a4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LU281 - P07E - Proposed Site sections




	Item 5 Final (1)
	Item 6 Final  (1)
	Item 7 Final
	Item 8 Final

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

